DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To the Members of
JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED

Your Directors hereby take pleasure in presenting the thirteenth Annual Report of your Company, together
with the Standalone and Consolidated Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 315 March, 2022,

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS
(Rupees in lacs)
Particulars Standalone Consolidated
FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21
Total Income
100,919.34 47,118.88 104,708.51 50,298.77
Profit before
Depreciation & Tax 3,074.92 474.34 4,423.75 026.63
Less : Depreciation
1,988.64 2,052.57 2,093.26 2,158.00
Loss/ Profit before
Tax 1086.28 (1,578.23) 2,330.49 (1,231.37)
Less: Tax
- - 311.26 111.04
Loss/ Profit after Tax
1086.28 {1,578.23) 2,019.23 (1,342.41)
2. INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS {Ind AS):

The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standard (referred to as ‘Ind AS’) with effect from
April 1, 2016 and accordingly these financial results along with the comparatives have been
prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles stated therein, prescribed
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with the relevant Rules framed there
under and the other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

(A) STANDALONE RESULTS

The total output of your Company for the FY 2021-22 stood at 58,244 tonnes {previous year 33912

tonnes), @\
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(B)

The total revenue for the year under review was Rs. 100,919.34 lacs, (Previous year: Rs. 47,118.88
lacs). The net profit/ net loss after tax was Rs. 1086.28 lacs (Previous year: Rs. -1,578.23 lacs)

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

The consolidated total revenue for the year under review was 104,708.51 lacs, {Previous year: Rs.
50,298.77 lacs). The consolidated net profit / net loss after tax was Rs. 2,019.23 lacs (Previous year:
Rs.-1,342.41 lacs).

In accordance with the Accounting Standards AS — 21 on Consolidated Financial Statements, read
with the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’), the audited Consolidated Financial Statements are
provided in the Annual Report.

DIVIDEND

During the year under review, your Directors have deemed it prudent not to recommend any
Dividend on Equity Shares for the year ended 31* March, 2022. Hence, no Dividend on Equity Shares
was declared by the Directors for the FY 2021-22.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Company this year has not transferred any amount to the Reserve.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

The provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to your Company as
there was no declaration of dividend.

PROSPECTS

Having gone through a tough pandemic year, FY 21-22 was the year of recuperation and returning to
normal. Although the first quarter was very challenging in terms of factory production as the second
Covid19 wave engulfed almost every part and paralysed the complete country. JSSL managed to
recover reasonably well in the second half. The series of Phoenix projects, Colt, Adani Data Center
and L&T Infotech project formed a major part of the Bellary fabrication load.

The increasing and all-time high steel prices remain to be a major concern and a possible deterrent
for the conversion projects. JISW’s Barbil, Odisha and JSW HSM are the major projects which are
planned for this year and constitute majority of the fabrication and erection plan. Major push on the
erection front is being given to complete and handover L&T and Phoenix projects.

Forward outlook is positive and certain market segments like Data Centers, Hospitals and
Commercial builds are showing signs of large build plans. Having has decent success in these sectors,
ISSL is very positive on bagging a few projects in the current FY. JSW projects continue to remain our
focus for industrial jobs.
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11.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY

During the year under review, no change took place in the nature of business carried on by the
Company.

SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE AND ASSQCIATE COMPANIES

The Company does not have any Joint Venture and Associate Companies during the period under
the review.

JSW Structural Metal Decking Limited has not ceased to become the Subsidiary of the Company
during the FY 2021-22. Details of the subsidiary are given below:

(A) JSW STRUCTURAL METAL DECKING LIMITED - SUBSIDIARY

JSW Structural Metal Decking Limited (JSWSMD), a subsidiary company of JSW Severfield Structures
Limited (JSSL) is engaged in the business of the design, roll forming and installation of structural
metal decking and ancillaries, including shear connectors, for construction projects with a total plant
capacity of 16,000 Tonnes per annum at Bellary in Karnataka.

ISWSMD has achieved during FY 2021-22, sales of 11,730 MT of metal decking sheets & its
accessories, total income of Rs. 126.72 crores and PBT of Rs. 12.45 crores. The Company has an
investment of Rs. 8,96,58,100/- representing 66.67% shareholding in JSWSMD.

As per the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Act, a statement containing the salient features of the
financial statements of the Company’s subsidiaries in Form AOC-1 is attached to the financial
statements of the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company’s robust risk management framework identifies and evaluates business risks and
opportunities. The Company recognises that these risks need to be managed and mitigated to
protect its shareholders and other stakeholders, to achieve its business objectives and enable
sustainable growth. The risk framework is aimed at effectively mitigating the Company’s various
business and operational risks, through strategic actions. Risk management is embedded in our
critical business activities, functions and processes. It also provides control measures for risks and
future action plans.

INTERNAL CONTROLS & INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

Internal Control

The Company has a proper and adequate system of internal control commensurate with the size
and nature of its business. Some of the significant features of internal control systems include:
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e Documenting of policies, guidelines, authorities and approval procedures, encompassing the
Company’s all primary functions.

o Deploying of an ERP system which covers most of its operations and is supported by a defined
on-line authorisation protocol.

o Ensuring complete compliance with laws, regulations, standards and internal procedures and
systems.

o De-risking the Company’s assets/resources and protecting them from any loss.

e Ensuring the accounting system’s integrity, proper and authorised recording and reporting of all
transactions.

e Preparing and monitoring of annual budgets for all operating and service functions.
¢ Ensuring the reliability of all financial and operational information.

e Forming an Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, comprising Independent Directors in
majority. The Audit Committee reviews audit plans, significant audit findings, adequacy of
internal controls, compliance with accounting standards and so on.

e Continuous up-gradation of IT systems.

The internal control systems and procedures are designed to assist in the identification and
management of risks, the procedure-led verification of all compliance as well as an enhanced
control consciousness. The controls were tested on periodical basis and no reportable material
weakness in design and effectiveness was observed.

Internal Audit

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 13 of The Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company had appointed M/s. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu India LLP as
the Interna!l Auditors to undertake the Internal Audit (IA} of the Company for the Financial Year
ended 31% March, 2022. The Internal Auditors report to the Audit Committee Members who are
experts in their field. The scope of work, authority and resources of A are reviewed by the Audit
Committee. Through IA function the Board obtains the assurance it requires to ensure that risks to
the business are properly identified, evaluated and managed. IA also provides assurance to the
Board on the effectiveness of relevant internal controls. The Company successfully integrated the
COSO framework with its audit process to enhance the quality of effective controls and governance.

Internal Financial Controls

The Company has developed a framework for designing and assessing effectiveness of internal
controls over financial reporting and has already laid down entity level policies and process level
standard operating procedures.

The entity level policies comprise anti-fraud policies (Anti-Bribery Policy, including conflict of
interest and whistle-blower policy). The Company has also prepared Standard Operating Practices
(SOP) for each of its processes of revenue to receive, procure to pay, hire to retire, finance and
accounts, fixed assets, treasury, inventory, manufacturing operations and administrative expenses.
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12, FIXED DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any fixed deposits from the public. Therefore, it is not required to
furnish information in respect of outstanding deposits under Non-banking, Non-financial Companies
{Reserve Bank) Directions, 1966 and Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

13. SHARE CAPITAL

During the period under review, the Company’s paid-up equity share capital stood at Rs.
395,87,58,800/- comprising of 39,58,75,880 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each.

14, MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

With Bellary’s expanded capacity, JSSL was geared up to fabricate from the facility.
Our accredited sub-contracting partner network remains strong and provides us the desired
flexibility to augment delivery capacity as needed.

Large mix of fabrication during FY 21/22 was Phoenix projects, Adani and Colt Data Centers. This
year being the back to normal year, JSSL managed well to balance the in-house work force combined
with the peak requirement with sub- contracted work force in most departments. JSSL saw greater
interest by developers, hospital owners, and Data Center companies wanting to explore and build in

v\ / steel. The steep steel price increase remains to be a challenge in converting these projects.
q\‘ < At the front end, we have been exploring new sectors like bridges and airports. JSW’s expansion
/ remains our focus for industrial projects. With the bullish market outlook, JSSL is planning to expand

it's capacity further and the first step of land acquisition is targeted during this FY.

15. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and in terms of the
Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Alan Dunsmore (DIN- 03020101}, retires by rotation at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. The
necessary resolution proposing the appointment of aforesaid Director has been incorporated in the
Notice of the ensuing Annual General Meeting for your approval.

Changes in the Company’s Board of Directors during the period under review are as follows:

e Mr. Pawan Kumar Kedia (DIN: 00020570} appointed as the Director {Chairman} of the
Company with effect from 04" May, 2021.

e Mr. Naresh Lalwani ceased to be the Director of the Company with effect from 04" May,
2021.

¢ Mr. Ranjit Pillai (DIN: 08915833} re-appointed as the Whole Time Director of the Company
with effect from 16" October, 2021 for a period of 2 years.

e Dr. Derek Randall (DIN: 02433966} re-appointed as the Managing Director for a period of
one year with effect from 1 April, 2022,
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17.

BOARD EVALUATION

The Company has made annual evaluation of performance of the Board, its Committees and
Individual Directors on the basis of their attendance in the meetings, their contribution towards the
Board and Committee discussions, their views, opinions and assistance provided towards the
smooth functioning of the business. It was noted that the performance of the Board Members and
Committee Members was found satisfactory.

AUDITORS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT

(A) STATUTORY AUDITORS

At the Company’s 10" Annual General Meeting {AGM) held on 24™ June, 2019, M/s. BSR & Co. LLP,
Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, were appointed as the Company’'s Statutory Auditors from the
conclusion of the 10™ AGM till the conclusion of the 15™ AGM.

(B) AUDITORS’ REPORT

There are no qualifications, reservation or adverse remarks or disclaimer made by M/s. BSR & Co.
LLP, Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors in their report for the financial year 2021-22.

The Statutory Auditors have not reported any incident of fraud to the Audit Committee of the
Company under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, in the year under
review,

(C)  COST AUDITORS

Pursuant to Section 148(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies {Cost Records and
Audit}, Amendment Rules 2014, your Company is required to get its cost accounting records audited
by a Cost Auditor.

Accordingly, the Board at its meeting held on 4" May, 2022, based on the recommendation of the
Audit Committee, appointed M/s G.R & Co., Practising Cost Accountant to conduct the audit of the
cost accounting records of the Company for FY 2022-23 on a remuneration of Rs. 1,60,000/- plus
GST as applicable and reimbursement of actual travel and out of pocket expenses. The
remuneration proposed to be paid to Cost Auditors is subject to the ratification of the Members in
terms of Section 148 read with Rule 14 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and is
accordingly placed for your ratification.

(D) SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company had at its
Board Meeting held on 4th May, 2021 appointed M/s S. Srinivasan & Co, a firm of Company
Secretaries in Practice to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the Financial Year
ended 31% March, 2022. The Report of the Secretarial Audit carried out is annexed herewith as
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Annexure “A”. The report does not contain any observation or qualification requiring explanation or
comments from the Board under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013.

{E)  SECRETARIAL AUDITORS’ REPORT

No Qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer made by the Secretarial Auditor in the
Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year 2021-22, the said MR-3 Report enclosed herewith as

Annexure-A.
18. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The disclosure of material Related Party Transactions is required under Section 134(3){h) read with
section 188(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC - 2 which is annexed {Annexure “B”} hereto

to this report.

Your Directors draw your attention to Note No. 32 1o the Standalone financial statements which sets
out related party disclosures,

19. SAFETY, HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE

On Heaith and safety grounds, the company received an appreciation certificate for continuous
improvement and excellent performance in occupational Health, Safety & Environment from various
clients as mentioned below

» Best Safety Contractor of the Year award with Appreciation certificate from Phoenix client in
\(/- H10 site

» Best Contractor award with Appreciation certificate from SPCL for best safety performance in .,
Sattva site

» Best Contractor award with Appreciation certificate from JSW Steel in PP3 site, Vidyanagar
» Best Safety Champion award with Appreciation certificate from Leighton in Equinox site

» Certificate of appreciation from Gaurs client for Best safety performance in WSM Site

> Best Safety performer award with Certificate of appreciation Phoenix client in BHub site

Further, Mr. Ashok Reddy at Equinox, Pintu Kumar at Malpani, Fakruddin at PP3 and Ajit at BHub
site have been awarded the best Health & Safety manager’s award with certificate from clients for
the year 2021-22. Nine members (Erector & Foreman) have received the best safety performer
award from clients at various sites.

Total Safe man-hours without LTl in 2021/22 are:
Factory — 2,302,104 {2.3 Million)
Erection — 2,498,640 (2.5 Million)

Total — 4,800,744 {4.8 Million}
Safe days since last LTI (Factory) -2774
Safe days since last LTI {Erection) - 640
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AWARDS AND ACCREDITIONS

On Health and Safety grounds, the Company received a Certificate of Appreciation for continual
improvement and excellent performance in Occupational Health, Safety & Environment from JSW
for J1SW Vidyanagar works and Phoenix appreciated during their audit for valuable contribution &
commitment in implementation of HSE Standard in Phoenix Project and Seven JSSL employees got
certificate with appreciation from Phoenix client until now.

The Company had also bagged First prize in the category of “Safe employer of the year” from OSHAI
(Occupational Safety & Health Association India).

Further, Mr. Fakruddin Sab has been awarded the Best Health & Safety Manager in the JSW
Vidyanagar works by JSW Safety Head and Nameshwar Sahu has been awarded with certification for
best safety performance at Varanasi site by Client.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirements under Section 134 sub-section 3(c) and sub-section 5 of the
Companies Act, 2013, your Directors hereby state and confirm that:

k: In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed, along with proper explanation relating to material departures.

ii. Such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgements and
estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March, 2022, and of the Company’s profit for
the year ended on that date.

iii. Proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records, in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

iv. The annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis.

V. Proper systems were devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year, five Board Meetings were convened and held with requisite quorum. The
intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act,
2013.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company comprises of Mrs. Anuradha Ambar Bajpai, Mr. Jugal Kishore
Tandon and Mr. Alan Dunsmore.

Mrs. Anuradha Ambar Bajpai is the Chairperson of the Audit Committee. The Members possess
adequate knowledge of Accounts, Audit and Finance, among others.
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27.

29.

30.

31.

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company comprises of Mr. Jugal Kishore
Tandon, Mrs. Anuradha Ambar Bajpai and Dr. Derek Randall.

Mr. Jugal Kishore Tandon is the Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

The Company has not invited or accepted deposits from the Public covered under section 73 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies {Acceptance of Deposits} Rules 2014,

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEEE

The CSR Committee of the Company comprises of Mr. Jugal Kishore Tandon, Mr. Rajeev Pai and Mr.
Ranjit Kumar Pillai. Mr. Rajeev Pai is the Chairman of the CSR Committee. Pursuant to section
134{1){o) of the Companies Act, 2013 the brief details about the Companies CSR policy by the
company and initiatives taken by the company during the year is annexed (Annexure E ”)

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

[n accordance with the provisions of Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, the extract of the
Annual Return is annexed {Annexure “C”) hereto and forms a part of this Report.

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has a vigil mechanism named Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy to deal with
instances of fraud and mismanagement, if any as per Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company has put in place a policy known as Nomination & Remuneration Policy on
appointment and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel including criteria for
determining qualifications, positive attributes, Independence of a Director and other matters
provided under 178{3) of Companies Act, 2013.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators/Courts which would impact the
going concern status of the Company and its future operations.
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32. PARTICULARS REGARDING CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

information in accordance with the provisions of Section 134(3){m} of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 8 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 regarding Conservation of Energy, Technology
Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo, is given in the statement annexed (Annexure
“D”} hereto and forms a part of this repart.

33. APPRECIATION
Your Directors take this opportunity to express their appreciation for the cooperation and assistance
received from the Government of India, the financial institutions, banks and Shareholders during the

period under review.

The Directors also wish to place on record their appreciation for the valuable services rendered by
employees of the Company and look forward to their continued support in the future as well.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dr. Derek Randall hjit Pil
Place : Mumbai Managing Director Whale Time Director
Date: 04.05.2022 (DIN: 02433966) (DIN: 0008915833)
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Office No. 5, 5* floor,
AC Market Building CHS Lid.,

Tardeo Road, Mumbai~ 400 034
S. Stintvacan & Co. Tel no.: 022- 2351 7505
Company Secretaries Mobile: +91 93210 25730
E-mail: mumbaissandco{@yahoo.com

FORM NO. MR- 3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2022
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 201 4]

To,

The Members,

JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
05-08, B-wing, Lower Ground Floor,

Art Guild House, Phoenix Market City,

L.B.S Marg, Kurla (West), Mumbai,

Maharashtra- 400 070

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
bearing CIN: U28112MH2009PLC191045 (hereinafter called the “Company”). Secretarial
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorised representatives during the conduct of Secretarial
Audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period
covering the financial year ended on 31t March, 2022 appears to have complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board- processes
and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reportmg
made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022, according to the
provisions of:

. The Companies Act, 2013, (the Act) and the rules made 1_:here under.

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956, ("SCRA’) and the rules made j. e
under (Not Applicable to the Company during the period under review)..

Registered office address: 2" Floor, Evalappan Mansion, 188/87, Habibullah Road, T. Nagar, Chenn -
Maobile: +91 9841092661 | E-mail: ssriniS0@gmail.com




This forms part of our secretarial audit report of JSSL dated 28-04-2022

iii.  The Depositories Act, 1996, and the Regulations and Byelaws framed there under.
(Not Applicable to the Company during the period under review).

iv.  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, and the rules and regulations made there
under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and
External Commercial Borrowings.

v.  The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992; (‘SEBI Act’) are not applicable to the Company during the period under
review as the Company is an unlisted company.

vi. All other relevant applicable laws including those specifically applicable to the
Company, a list of which has been provided by the management. The examination and
reporting of these laws and rules are limited to whether there are adequate systems
and processes are in place to monitor and ensure compliance with those laws.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following
Secretarial Standards:

The Secretarial Standards issued and notified by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India
55-1 & §S- 2 has been complied with by the Company during the financial year under review.

During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of
the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, et¢. mentioned above.

We further report that:

s The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes
in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

* Adequate notices are given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance or other shorter as
prescribed under the act, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting,

¢ Decisions at the meetings of the Board of Directors were carried through based on
majority and there were no dissenting views by any Member of the Board during the
year under review.

We further report that,

Based on the information provided and the representation made by the Company and
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This forms part of our secretarial audit report of )SSL dated 28-04-2022

review of the compliance reports of Company Secretary/ Chief Financial Officer/ Whole-time
Director taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company, in our opinion there are
adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations
of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

The compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws such as direct and indirect tax
laws and maintenance of financial records and books of accounts has not been reviewed in this
Audit since the same have been subject to review by statutory firancial audit and other
designated professionals.

We further report that, during the audit period, there are no specific events/ actions
occurred which had any major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above
referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, and standards etc,

For 8. Sréwuasan & (5,
Company Secretaries

—

S. Srinivasan

5 8 ractiéing Company Secretary
Place: Mumbai . FCS: 2286 | CP. No.: 748
Date: 28-04-2022 UDIN: F002286D000186272
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To,

Annexure A

The Members,

JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
05-08, B-wing, Lower Ground Floor,

Art Guild House, Phoenix Market City,

L.B.S Marg, Kurla (West), Mumbai,

Mabharashtra- 400 070

Our Secretarial Audit report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on
our audit.

We have followed the audit Practices and processes as were considered appropriate to
obtain reasonable_ assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial
records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed, provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion,

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financlal records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to
the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretariai Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.

For S, Suniacan & (s,
Company Secretaries

S. Srinivasan

racticing Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai "~ FCS:2286 | CP. No.: 748
Date: 28-04-2022 UDIN: F002286D000186272
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Form No. AOC-2

ANNEXURE-B

{Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section {3)of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub-section {1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including

certain arms-length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year ended March

31, 2022, which were not at arm's length basis.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:-

S.r | Name of the Nature of Relationship Date of Duration | Salient Terms Amount
No. | Related Party Approval of {ln Rupees}
Contract
Reimbursement of expenses incurred on our behalf by
1 15W Steel Ltd. | The Investing party or 30.04.2021 - Reimbursement | 29,81,958.00
Venturer in respect of which of expenses at
the reporting Enterprise is a actual
joint venture
2 Severfield Enterprises over which the 30.04,2021 Reimbursement | 2,36,98,421.34
Reeve invasting party or venturer in of expenses at
International respect of which the actual
Ltd. reporting enterprise is a joint
venture exercise control or
significant influence
Purchase of Metal Decking Sheets
3 JSW Structural | Subsidiary of the company 30.04.2021 | Ongoing Ex Works 92,26,21,555.59
Metal Decking Delivery basis
Ltd.
Purchase of Steel
4 JSW Steel Ltd. | The investing party or 30.04.2021 | Ongoing FOR site 27,04,55,374.23
Venturer in respect of which basis/Delivery
the reporting Enterprise is a basis
jaint venture
Sale of Scrap
5 ISW Steel Ltd. | The Investing party or 30.04.2021 | Ongoing FOR site 0
Venturer in respect of which basis/Delivery
the reporting Enterprise is a basis
joint venture
Contract Revenue
6 JSW Steel Ltd. | The Investing party or 30.04.2021 | Ongoing FOR site 53,62,07,749.52
Venturer in respect of which basis/Delivery
the reporting Enterprise is a basis
joint venture
7 ISW Subsidiary of JSW Steel 30.04.2021 | Ongoing FOR site 73,26,34,231.44
Vijayanagar Limited basis/Delivery
Metallics basis
Limited
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8 JSW Paradip Enterprises over which the 30.04.2021 | Ongoing FOR site 0
Terminal Pvt.Ltd, | investing party or venturer in basis/Delivery

respect of which the basis
reporting enterprise is a joint
venture exercise control or
significant influence

9 Severfield Reeve | Enterprises over which the 30.04.2021 | Ongoing At actual 0
{international Ltd. | investing party or venturerin
raspect of which the
reporting enterprise is a joint
venture exercise control or
significant influence

Sale of Traded Goods
10 JSW Structural Subsidiary of the company 30.04.2021 | Ongoing At actual 12,52,12,749.00
Metal Decking
L.
Expense incurred on behalf of
11 JSW Structural Subsidiary of the company 30.04.2021 | Ongoing | Incurred 42,77,276.43
Metal Decking expenses at
Ltd. actual
Fabrication and Erection of Pre Engineered Building
12 J5w Steel Coated 30.04.2021 | Ongoing FOR site g
Products Ltd. basis/Delivery
basis
Fabrication and Erection of Structures
13 ISW Techno 30.04.2021 | Ongoing FOR site 0
Projects basis/Delivery
Management basis
Ltd.
Design and Detailing Services _
14 severfield (NI) Enterprises over which the 30.04.2021 | Ongoing - 26,08,022.62
Ltd. investing party or venturer in
respect of which the
reporting enterprise is a joint
venture exercise control or
significant influence
15 Severfield Enterprises over which the 30.04.2021 | Ongoing - 4]
Products and investing party or venturer in
Processing respect of which the
reporting enterprise is a joint
venture exercise control or
significant influence
16 Severfield {UK) Enterprises over which the 30.04.2021 | Ongoing - o
Limited investing party or venturerin
respect of which the
reporting enterprise is a joint
venture exercise control or
significant influence
Remuneration to KMP
17 Derek Randall, Key Managerial Personnel As and . As per 57,804,459.00
Ranjit Piltai, when it remuneration
Santanu arises and HR Palicy
Choudhury &
cs
For and on behalf of the Board of Diregtors
. ™
Place : Mumbai Dr. Derek Randall
Date: 04.05.2022 Managing Director Wh

(DIN: 02433966) IN: 0008915833)
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ANNEXURE-D

Information in accordance with the provisions of Section 134{3){m} of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 regarding Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption
and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo.

A. ENERGY CONSERVATION
Energy Conservation measures taken:

Company had initiated various steps to conserve the energy. All efforts were made to maintain the
reduced energy consumption level. The Company is now running the plant on mains power and not
the diesel generators. During power failure we are using the diesel generator as stand by source.

With the investment of new machinery with the latest technology installed in Fab line 1, 2 & 3 and
Indisec line it has allowed the factory to have highly energy efficient machinery.

On 2017-2018 (Wayn’s bay) FAB4 and 2018-2019 {Amaravati shed) FAB 5 installed with latest
technology welding machine it has allowed the factory to have highly energy efficient machinery.

With the investment of new machinery with the latest technology installed in Fab line 6 & 7, 8 & 9 and
tndisec line-2 it has allowed the factory to have highly energy efficient machinery.

The various steps being taken are as under for conservation of Energy:
¥ Set up of energy efficient LCD Computer Set at Factory and Head Office.
» Use of energy efficient high pressure sodium vapours lamps/Tube lights and LED lamps.

L » Al outdoor lights are automated with timer control which reduce the power consumption

A
{2—/ and man power utilization.

» The vse of Inverter powered welding sets in our plant which are 30% more energy efficient.

» Power correction units fitted to the 33KV power supply allowing uniformed phase angles
thus reducing energy consumption.

> Provision of Transparent Sheets at roof tops at shop floor so as to utilize Sunlight for
illumination.

» Gas optimize for each Mig welding set which regulates the shield gas flow and gas surge on
initial arc which reduces the Argon gas consumption on each welding machine by 20%.

Annexure “D” of Directors’ Report: 2021 - 2022
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> Segregation of the factory lighting power distribution has allowed us to split the roof lighting
into specific areas allowing us to only have the lights on in the area which is required.

» To reduce the running temperature and energy efficiency of our air compressors, place to
install a ducting system to remove the excess temperature from the compressor house and
bring down running temperature which in turn should make them more energy efficient.

¥ FAB Line 6&7,889,Indisec line2 Indoor lights are automated with timer control, which
reduce the power consumption and manpower utilization.

» FAB Line 6&7,88&9,Indisec line2 Indoor and outdoor we installed LED lamps which reduce
the power consumption and better illumination.

» FAB Line 6&7,8&9,Indisec line2 incoming 33KV/433V, 2000KVA X 2 nos. energy efficient
Transformer installed which reduce the power consumption.

> On FEB 2021 we charged the JSW energy supply and disconnected GESCOM supply.

Energy consumed from JSW energy and diesel used in Generator during the FY 2021-22 is as follows:

Type of Energy FY2021-22 Consumption
Electricity {(KWHTr) 6706406 Kwhr
Diesel {Litre) 14750 Ltr

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

A new type grade of Tungsten carbide drill insert is now being used in our CNC machines to reduce
running costs. This new grade of insert is a pressed to size insert rather than a ground to size insert
which is not only 30% cheaper but due to the surface finish gives 30% longer tool life also.

State of the art light curtain safety guard system being installed to bring our safety on the machines to
European standards. To improve our safety standards in the CNC machines we have developed a
safety light curtain system. This system uses infrared light beams to create an invisible light curtain
which if passed through automatically stops the machine. This access control is incorporated into the
machines CNC running system.

C. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (R & D)

Continued research into ways to save energy continues such as automatic light switching when
certain light levels are achieved and Smart box timers for street light reduce running time and thus
save energy.
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10 Ton side loaders 15 Ton side loader OEM engine (Deutz engine) got failed, we provided same
capacity Ashok Leyland engine instead of Deutz for that we have saved 10 times cost in each engine.

7 side loader OEM engine (Perkins engine) got failed, we provided same capacity Simpson
engine instead of Perkins engine for that we have saved 2.5 times cost.

Indisec line portable Single torch beveling machine we converted in to double torch
arrangement to bevel the web plate to single pass, due to this arrangement we saved the
beveling time.

We made bitshop bit shifter bogie for shift the bits from line 1 shot blasting machine out feed
conveyor to fabrication area. Reduced crane handling in that area.

FAB3 welding area devolved and 12 nos of welding boom installed like linel and line 2.

Indisec line double flange straightening machine in-feed and out-feed conveyor capacity
increased by modifying the chain sprocket.

Submerged arc welding technology from ESAB Sweden uses 1500 amp welding machines
allowing us to weld large sections in a single pass with the specified weld size requested.

This development of Indisec technology allows us to meet our customers’ requirements using
the most up to date technology.

FAB1&2, 60 mtr welding and fabrication area increased and welding boom installed to
increase our production capacity.

In-house made 4 nos of portable circular gas cutting machine capable to cut up to 250mm
used in FAB lines,

Continuous developments for the different machines have been done to increase the
productivity and performance of the machines.

Bit shop in-house made number punching machine which capable to punch 7 character with
50% of cost compare to OEM price.

Modification of shot blasting dust collector filtration unit at FABline2and Indisec line is
carried out to improve performance of the machine and dust emission control.

Modification of shot blasting dust collector filtration unit at FABline3 is carried out to
improve performance of the machine and dust emission control.

Introduced VFD drive at Indisec line 20-ton EOT crane long travel to reduce the breakdown
and smooth operation.

introduced VFD drive at FAB line 4 no’s of 15-ton EOT crane long travel to reduce the
breakdown and smooth operation.
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D. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND QUTGO

The information on Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo during the year under review is furnished as
under:-

(i) Foreign Exchange Earnings for the year ended 31.03.2022 is Rs. 26,08,023 (Previous Year Rs.
44,44,038.64)

(i) Foreign Exchange Outgo

Particulars For the year ended 31* For the year ended 31%
March 2022 March 2021
Employee benefits expense 3,25,96,496 3,31,89,488
Legal and professional fees - 7
Travelling 21,26,037 36,21,684
License fees 2 19,44,233
Insurance 5 15,51,207
Others 1,32,61,994 1,42,06,466
Total 4,79,84,527 5,45,13,078
\\ \f/‘
™~
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ANNEXURE - E

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility Activities
(Pursuant to Rule 9 of Companies {Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014)

1. Brief outline on CSR policy of the Company: Kindly refer the details of the Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy, forming part of this Annual Report as Annexure E (1)

2. The composition of the CSR Committee: -

Sl Name of the Director Designation / Number of meetings | Number of meetings
No Nature of of CSR Committee of CSR Committee
Directorship held during the year | attended during the
___ year
1.| Mr. Rajeev Pai Chairman 2 2
2.| Mr. Jugal Kishore Member 2 2
Tandon
3.| Dr. Derek Randall Member 2 2
{Ceased to be a member
w.e.f. 16.03.2022)
4. Mr. Ranjit Kumar Pillai Member - -
{Appointed as a
member w.e.f,
16.03.2022)

3 Provide the web-link where the CSR Policy etc. approved by the Board are disclosed on the
wehsite of the Company: www.jsslin

4. Details of impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of
the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable: Not applicable
since no project was due for impact assessment.,

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies
{Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the
financial year, if any: Nil

6. Average Net Profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 2,405.29 Lacs

7. {a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135{(5); Rs. 48.11 Lacs

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial
years: Nil

{c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Not applicable

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7¢}: Rs. 48.11 Lacs

Ch
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8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total

Financial year
{Rs. in Lacs.)

Amount
Spent for the

Amount Unspent {in Rs}

Total

Amount transferred to
Unspent CSR Account as per

Amount transferred to any fund specified under
Schedule VM as per second proviso to section

section 135(6) 135(5)
Amount Date of Name of the Amount Date of
transfer Fund transfer
Rs. 48.15 Lacs Not applicable
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against angoing projects for the financial year
Sr. | Name of the [tem from Local | Location of the Project Amount Amount Amount Mode of Maode of
No | Project the list of area project duration allocated | spentin transterrad | implement | implementati
activities In {yes/ {in for the the to ation on-Through
Schedule VII No} State District months} projact current Unspent - Direct Implementing
to the Act {Rs. in financial | CSR (Yes/ No) Agency
Lacs) year Account for
{in Rs) the project
a5
per Section
135{6} (in
Rs)
1 Renovation of Education Mo Karnata | Bellary Rs. 10 Rs. 10 - Yas
classrooms, ka lacs lacs
Teachers
Capability
building,
Projects for
malnutrition
2 Providing Healthcare Yes Karnata | Bellary Rs11 Rs1l Yes
sources for ka Lacs Lacs
clean water and
improving living
conditions by
building infra
support for
Sanitation.
Food Packets
distribution-
1500 Boxes to
school & poor
children
3 Sponsorship of Education Yes Mahara | Mumbai Rs. 8.15 Rs. 8.15 Yes
inter schoal in¢luding Sports shira / | /Bellary Lacs Lacs
tournament for | events for school Karnata
poor children children for ka
from unaided potential
schools assessment for
higher platforms,
4 Infra Support/ Entrepreneurship Yes Mahara | Mumbai Rs. 1.50 Rs. 1.50 Yes
Coaching inputs | for Socle shtra Lacs Lacs
to children of Economic
non-aided improvement
schools | |
5 Promoting and | Education Yes PAN PAN Rs. 12 Rs. 12 Yes
enhancing India India Lacs Lacs
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V.- d
Vocational skills
through
implementing
dgencies,
& Initiatives for HealthCare No Mahara | Mumbal Rs. 5.50 Rs.5.50 Yes
promaoting shtra / | / Bellary Lacs Lacs
health care Karnata
facilities’ ka
Total Rs. 48.15 | Rs.48.15
Lacs Lacs
{c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
NOT APPLICABLE
Sr. | Name of the Item from Local | Location of the Project Armount Amount Amount Mode of Mode of
No | Project the list of area project duration allocated | spentin transferred | implement | implementati
activities in {yes/ fin for the tha to ation on-Through
Schedule Vil No) State District months) project current Unspent - Direct implementing
to the Act {Rs. in financial C5R {Yes/ No) Agancy
Lacs) year Account for
{in Rs) the project
as
per Sectian
136(6) {in
Rs)
{d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NIL
{e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not applicable
(f} Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Rs. 48.15 Lacs
{g) Excess amount for set off, if any: Not applicable
SI. No | Particulars Amount
(Rs. In Lacs)
1 Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) Rs. 48.11
Lacs
2 Total amount spent for the Financial Year Rs. 48.15
Lacs
3 Excess amount spent for the financial year [{ii}-(i)] Rs. 00.04
Lacs
4 Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous
financial years, if any
S Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv}] Rs. 00.04
Lacs
9, (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: NOT APPLICABLE
Sl. No Preceding Amount Amount | Amount transferred to any fund | Amount
Financial transferred spentin | specified under Schedule VIi as per | remaining
year to the section 135(6), if any to
Unspent reporting be spent in
CSR Financial succeeding

CAn
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Account year financial
under years
section 135
(6} {in Rs)

Name of | Amount Date of
the {in Rs) transfer
Fund |

L . — —

10.

11.

{b} Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding
financial year(s): Not applicable

in case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so
created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year {asset-wise details): Nil

{a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s): -
{b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: -

(¢} Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is
registered, their address etc.: -

{d} Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired {including complete address and
location of the capital asset}):

Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as
per section 135(5): Not Applicable

We hereby confirm that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Palicy, is in compliance with
CSR Objective and Policy of the Company.

For and on behalf of the
Board of Directors of JSW Severfield Structures Limited.

Gt e Oectp—"

Dr. Derek Randall Rajeev Pai
Managing Director Chairman of CSR Committee
{DIN: 02433966) (DIN: 00045604)




ANNEXURE - E (1)

CSR Policy

Under this policy, JSW Severfield Structures Limited (JSSL) is committed to supporting selected causes
for the social and economic development of primarily, but not exclusively, the surrounding
communities of its offices and factories in which it operates in India.

It's Corporate Social Responsibility, reviewed and implemented by its CSR Committee, which
operates, reports to and is guided by the Company's JV Board, will engage inter alia in activities that
will help foster and improve standards in such areas as:

e Education
By way of access to quality education, training, teachers' capacity building and skill
enhancement and support for education at all levels from pre-primary to tertiary education
and improve employability which would include activities, whether urban, semi-urban and/
or rural in all aspects irrespective of locations.

e Health Care
By focusing on affordable solutions, improved access, awareness and health seeking behavior
and helping causes which reduce poverty, hunger, malnutrition and improve living conditions
such as sanitation, clean water etc.

e Water & Environment
By way of support to flora and fauna sustainability and improved overall sanitation with
efficient waste management

e Entrepreneurship for Socio Economic improvement
By way of promotion for overall socio-economic improvement and empowerment of the
communities including:

v" Promoting art and setting up libraries including their maintenance.

v" Ensuring that measures are in places for the welfare and wellbeing of war veterans,
ex-servicemen and retired police force, whether set up under the aegis of the Central
or the State Governments, whether local or otherwise in all their activities including
for the benefit of their dependents, widows and orphans.

v" Encouraging and promoting rural sports including paralympic and Olympic sports
which may involve monitory incentives to mentors, trainers and coaches.



v" Contributing to all funds initiated by the Government as relief to the down trodden
including Schedule Castes and Schedule Tribes for all rural, urban, semi-urban
development projects.

v" Contributions to research establishments in the field of science, technology,
engineering, medicine, etc. through Government agencies or otherwise and all
institutes which are funded or encouraged by the Government, Central or State.

Impact Assessment

The Company strives to capture the impact (social/economic and developmental) of its various
initiatives through multiple mediums. The Company shall undertake Impact assessment of programs
wherever applicable. The impact assessment studies shall be conducted in such manner as may be
prescribed under applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, as amended, from
time to time.

The reports of Impact assessments, if applicable, shall be put up for review to the CSR Committee and
Board of Directors of the Company and shall be annexed to the annual report on CSR.

Board and its Commitments

The Board of JSSL has constituted Corporate Social Responsibility Committee for implementing the
CSR policies and is committed to comply with all the relevant provisions as envisaged under the
Companies Act, 2013 and its relevant rules which Committee will monitor and govern all CSR
activities within the parameters set out under the Act and Rules.

The Board shall ensure that the administrative overheads shall not exceed five percent of the total
CSR expenditure of the Company for any financial year.

The Board of the Company shall satisfy itself that the funds so disbursed have been utilized for the
purposes and in the manner as approved by it and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company or the
person responsible for financial management shall certify to this effect.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

The CSR Committee will ensure that the company complies and meets its obligations under the
Companies Act 2013 and the (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, and that worthy
causes are validated by it prior to support being selected, approved and given by the Board. The CSR
Committee shall be fully empowered to revise, add and lay emphasis on specific areas for



interventions based on the needs assessed. The Committee is further committed to ensure absolute
financial discipline as required under the Act, Rules and the Schedule.

The CSR Committee shall formulate and recommend to the Board, an annual action plan consisting of
the following:

e The list of CSR programs that are approved to be undertaken in areas or subjects specified in
Schedule VIl of the Act.

e The manner of execution of such programs.

e The modalities of utilization of funds and implementation schedules for the programs.

e Monitoring and reporting mechanism for the programs; &

e Details of need and impact assessment, if any, for the programs undertaken by the Company
Provided that Board may alter the Annual Action plan at any time during the financial year, as
per the recommendation of its CSR Committee, based on the reasonable justification to that
effect.

The CSR Committee shall meet regularly to review the implementation of CSR programs/ programs
and give suitable direction.

In case of an ongoing program, the Board of the Company shall monitor the implementation of the
program with reference to the approved timelines and year-wise allocation and shall be competent
to make modifications, if any, for smooth implementation of the program within the overall
permissible time. “Ongoing Program” here means a multi-year program undertaken by the Company
in fulfillment of its CSR obligation having timelines not exceeding three years excluding the financial
year in which it was commenced and shall include such program that was initially not approved as a
multi-year program but whose duration has been extended beyond one year by the board based on
reasonable justification.

Budget

The Board of Directors of the Company shall ensure that minimum of 2% of the average net profits of
the company made during the three immediately preceding financial years is spent on CSR initiatives
undertaken by the Company. The "net profit" shall be calculated in accordance with the provisions of
section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013.

All expenditure towards the programs shall be diligently documented.

Any surplus arising out of the CSR activities shall not form part of the business profit of the Company
and shall be ploughed back into the same/similar program or shall be transferred to the Unspent CSR
Account and spent in pursuance of CSR Policy and annual action plan of the Company or transfer such
surplus amount to a Fund specified in Schedule VII, within a period of six months of the expiry of the
financial year.



Where a Company spends an amount more than requirement provided under Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013, such excess amount may be set off against the requirement to spend under
Section 135, up to immediate succeeding three financial years subject to the conditions that —

e the excess amount available for set off shall not include the surplus arising out of the CSR
activities, if any; and
e the Board of the Company shall pass a resolution to that effect.

Treatment with respect to unspent CSR amount

If the Company fails to spend prescribed CSR amount, the Board shall, in its report specify the
reasons for not spending the amount and unless the unspent amount relates to any ongoing project
and transfer such unspent amount to a Fund specified in Schedule VII, within a period of six months
of the expiry of the financial year.

Any prescribed CSR amount remaining unspent pursuant to any ongoing project, undertaken by a
Company in pursuance of its Corporate Social Responsibility Policy, shall be transferred by the
Company within a period of thirty days from the end of the financial year to a special account to be
opened by the Company in that behalf for that financial year in any scheduled bank to be called the
Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility Account, and such amount shall be spent by the Company in
pursuance of its obligation towards the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy within a period of three
financial years from the date of such transfer, failing which, the Company shall transfer the same to a
Fund specified in Schedule VII, within a period of thirty days from the date of completion of the third
financial year.

The details of the CSR programs shall be communicated through the Company’s website to the
relevant stakeholders and feedback received, if any, shall be used for further refinement of the CSR
programs.

Overall the Board is committed to comply with all related provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
along with Schedule VII and (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, and all their
amendments on an on-going basis.
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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 13" (Thirteenth) Annual General Meeting of the Members of JSW
Severfield Structures Limited will be held on Friday, the 15th July, 2022 at 17:00 hours at the Registered
Office of the Company at Office No. 05-08, B-wing, Lower Ground Floor, Art Guild House Phoenix Market
City, L.B.S Marg, Kurla (West) Mumbai - 400070 to transact the following business:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company (including Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements) for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 and the Reports of
the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Alan Dunsmore (DIN- 03020101), Director, who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3.

To fix remuneration of the cost auditor

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), the
remuneration of Rs. 1,60,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Sixty Thousand only) plus applicable taxes and
reimbursement of out of pocket expenses, to be paid to M/s G. R & Co., (Registration No. 101504),
Cost Auditor of the Company, for the financial year 2022-23, as approved by the Board of Directors
of the Company, be and is hereby ratified.”

To re-designate, Mrs. Anuradha Ambar Bajpai as Non- Executive Director of the Company
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the relevant provisions the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made
thereunder, and other applicable provisions, if any, (including any statutory amendment or
modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and on recommendation of the
Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”, which term shall
include any duly constituted committee(s) thereof or such other person(s) authorized by the
Board), Mrs. Anuradha Ambar Bajpai (DIN 07128141) who was appointed as an Independent
Director of the Company with effect from 20.07.2015, be and is hereby re-designated as Non-
Executive Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds,
matters and things as may be deemed necessary, desirable, proper or expedient for the purpose
of giving effect to the above resolution and to authorize any of the Directors and/or Key
Managerial Personnel and/or officers of the Company to take necessary actions on behalf of the
Company in that regard.”

To re-designate, Mr. Jugal Kishore Tandon as Non- Executive Director of the Company
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the relevant provisions the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made
thereunder, and other applicable provisions, if any, (including any statutory amendment or
modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and on recommendation of the
Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”, which term shall
include any duly constituted committee(s) thereof or such other person(s) authorized by the
Board), Mr. Jugal Kishore Tandon (DIN 01282681) who was appointed as an Independent Director
of the Company with effect from 20.07.2015, be and is hereby re-designated as Non-Executive
Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds,
matters and things as may be deemed necessary, desirable, proper or expedient for the purpose
of giving effect to the above resolution and to authorize any of the Directors and/or Key
Managerial Personnel and/or officers of the Company to take necessary actions on behalf of the
Company in that regard.”

By Order of the Board of Directors
For JSW Severfield Structures Limited

Place: Mumbai Swatika Gupta
Date: 04.05.2022 Company Secretary

é/—\
. T

NOTES:

(1)

(2)

A Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of business
under Item Nos. 3 as set out in the Notice is annexed hereto.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A
PROXY TO ATTEND AND ON POLL, TO VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND SUCH A
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PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. PROXIES IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE
MUST BE RECEIVED BY THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN FORTY EIGHT HOURS BEFORE THE
MEETING. A PROXY SO APPOINTED SHALL NOT HAVE ANY RIGHT TO SPEAK AT THE MEETING.

(3) Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting
under Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 are requested to send to the Company, a
certified copy of its Board Resolution authorizing its representative to attend and vote on their
behalf at the Meeting.

(4) Relevant documents referred to in the Notice and the accompanying statement is open for
inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days, except
Saturdays, during business hours up to the date of the Meeting.

(5) Prominent landmark for the venue of the meeting is Mercedes-Benz Showroom. The route map
of the venue of the Meeting is annexed hereto.

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
Item No. 3

The Board of Directors of the Company, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, at its meeting
held on May 4, 2022, had considered and approved the appointment of M/s G. R & Co. as the Cost
Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2022-23 at a remuneration of Rs. 1,60,000/- (Rupees One
Lakh Sixty Thousand only) plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses.

Pursuant to Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration, as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, is required to be subsequently ratified by the Members of the
Company.

Accordingly, ratification by the members is sought to the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for
the financial year 2022-23 by passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at Iltem No. 3 of the Notice.

None of the Directors and/or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is concerned
or interested, financially or otherwise, in the proposed resolution.

The Board commends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice for approval by the
members.
Item No.4 & 5

As per General Circular no 9 of 2017 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) dated 5
September 2017, MCA had exempted ‘unlisted public joint venture’ companies under Rule 4 of the
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Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules 2014 from the appointment of
Independent Director. With reference to the said exemption, The Board of Directors at its meeting held
on 4th May 2022 had decided to re-designate Mrs. Anuradha Ambar Bajpai and Mr. Jugal Kishore
Tandon as Non- Executive Directors of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.

Mrs. Anuradha Ambar Bajpai is a Chartered Accountant from The Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. Currently she is practicing in individual capacity on Financial Reporting and Auditing of different
companies. Before that she worked on a flexi-schedule basis for 17 years till March 2013 with Deloitte,
Haskins & Sells for different group of Companies like the Merrill Lynch group of Companies, the Morgan
Stanley Group of Companies, The J M Financial Group of Companies, etc. She had also worked as a
Senior Manager with DSP Merrill Lynch Private Limited and as a sub-broker on the Bombay Stock
Exchange for two years. She possesses efficient management skill, talent to fulfill her responsibility
effectively and efficiently.

Mr. Jugal Kishore Tandon holds a Bachelor of Technology degree in Metallurgical Engineering from IIT
Mumbai. He has over 40 years of rich and vast experience in setting up of mega projects, bringing them
to commercial operation and overseeing all aspects of business enterprise. He possesses efficient
management skill, talent to fulfill his responsibility effectively and efficiently.

Mr. Jugal Kishore Tandon and Mrs. Anuradha Ambar Bajpai may be deemed to be concerned or
interested in the proposed Resolution in so far as it relates to his/ her own appointment. None of the
other Directors and/or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company either directly or through their
relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, whether financially or otherwise, in the proposed
Resolution.

The Board of Directors recommends the resolution as mentioned in Item No. 4 & 5 of Notice for
approval of the Members.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For JSW Severfield Structures Limited

Nivatitn frued”

Place: Mumbai Swatika Gupta
Date: 04.05.2022 Company Secretary
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JSW Severfield Structures Limited
CIN : U28112MH2009PLC191045
Registered Office : Office No. 05-08, Lower Ground Floor, B-Wing, Art Guild House, Phoenix Market
City, L.B.S. Marg, Kurla (West), Mumbai 400070
Website : www.jssl.in, Email: arun.singh@jssl.in

PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of Companies (Management

and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN:

U28112MH2009PLC191045

Name of the Company :

JSW Severfield Structures Limited

Registered Office :

Office No. 05-08, Lower Ground Floor, B-Wing, Art Guild House,
Phoenix Market City, L.B.S. Marg, Kurla (West), Mumbai 400070

Name of the Members(s) :

Registered address :

Email Id :

Folio No. :

I/We, being the Member (s) of

shares of the above-named Company, hereby appoint

1. Name :

Address :

E-mail Id :

Signature :

or failing him :

Name :

Address :

E-mail Id :

Signature :

or failing him :

Name :

Address :

E-mail Id :

Signature :

as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Thirteenth
Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Friday, the 15Th JULY, 2022 at 17:00 HOURS at
OFFICE NO. 05-08, B-WING, LOWER GROUND FLOOR, ART GUILD HOUSE PHOENIX MARKET CITY, L.B.S
MARG, KURLA (WEST), MUMBAI- 400 070 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such




resolutions as are indicated below:

Ordinary Business

Vote (Optional)
(See Note no. 3)

Resolution Resolution For Against
No.
1. ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2022
ALONG WITH AUDITORS’ REPORT AND DIRECTORS’ REPORT
(Ordinary Resolution)
2. APPOINTMENT OF Mr. ALAN DUNSMORE (DIN- 03020101),
WHO RETIRES BY ROTATION, AND BEING ELIGIBLE, OFFERS
HIMSELF FOR RE-APPOINTMENT
(Ordinary Resolution)
SPECIAL BUSINESS
3. FIXING THE REMUNERATION OF COST AUDITORS
(Ordinary Resolution)
4, RE-DESIGNATING MS. ANURADHA AMBER BAJPAI AS NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
(Ordinary Resolution)
5. RE-DESIGNATING MR. J.K. TANDON AS NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR
(Ordinary Resolution)
Signed this ................. day of weeveerennee 2022
Signature of the Shareholder: ........cccevvevevie v Affix
Revenue
Stamp

Signature of Proxy holder(s): ......cceueeeevvneeeeceereree e

Note:

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

2. Any alternation or correction made to this Proxy form must be initialled by the signatory/ signatories
3. If you wish to vote for a Resolution, place a tick in the corresponding box under the column marked
“For”. If you wish to vote against a Resolution, place a tick in the corresponding box under the column
marked “Against”. If no direction is given, your proxy may vote or abstain as he/she think fit.




ATTENDANCE SLIP

REGD. FOLIO NO.
NO. OF SHARE(S) HELD

| hereby record my presence at the Thirteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company held on Friday,
the 15Th JULY, 2022 at 17:00 HOURS at OFFICE NO. 05-08, B-WING, LOWER GROUND FLOOR, ART
GUILD HOUSE PHOENIX MARKET CITY, L.B.S MARG, KURLA (WEST), MUMBAI- 400 070

Full name of Shareholder/ProXy .........eceieececeieeeeee et eveee et v
(in block letters)

Signature of the Shareholder/Proxy



ADDENDUM TO THE NOTICE OF 13™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

JSW Severfield Structures Limited (JSSL) had issued a Notice (Original Notice) dated May 04, 2022 of the
13" (Thirteenth) Annual General Meeting (AGM) to be held on Friday, the 15th July, 2022 at 17:00 hours
at the Registered Office of the Company at Office No. 05-08, B-wing, Lower Ground Floor, Art Guild
House Phoenix Market City, L.B.S Marg, Kurla (West) Mumbai - 400070 to transact five business items
(Two Ordinary Business and three Special Business) as specified in the said notice.

Further to the above, Notice is hereby given that at the said meeting following special business will also
be transacted as item no. 6, 7 & 8.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

6. To approve increase in managerial remuneration limit of Mr. Ranjit Pillai, Whole Time Director of

the Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a
Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in partial modification of the resolution passed at the Extra Ordinary General
Meeting of the Company held on 12t Oct, 2021 and pursuant to the provisions of Section 197 and
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and Rules made thereunder
(including rules, notifications, any statutory modification, amendment or re-enactment thereof for
the time being in force and as may be enacted from time to time) read with Schedule V of the said
act, and such other approvals, permissions and sanctions of such authorities and/ or agencies as
may be required in this regard and subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association of the
Company and pursuant to the recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee,
consent of the members be and is hereby accorded for the alternation in the maximum
remuneration payable to Mr. Ranjit Pillai (DIN: 08915833), whole time Director of the Company,
with an all-inclusive remuneration subject to a maximum total limit of an amount not exceeding
Rs. 1 crore (Rupees One crore) per annum.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized to
alter or vary the terms of appointment, including remuneration, of Mr. Ranjit Pillai, whole time
director of the Company, as it may deem fit, from time to time, provided that the increased
remuneration shall not exceed the limits specified in Schedule V of the Act.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT notwithstanding anything stated hereinabove, where in any financial
year during the currency of tenure of Mr. Ranjit Pillai, the Company incurs loss or its profits are
inadequate, the Company shall pay to Mr. Ranjit Pillai, remuneration by way of salary and
perquisites and allowances as specified above, subject to conditions specified in Schedule V to the
Companies Act, 2013 or any amendments thereto.
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7.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT CFO or Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby
authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed necessary, proper or
desirable and settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in the said regard.

To increase the borrowing limit under section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following Resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the Resolution passed at the Annual General Meeting of the
Company held on 24th June 2019 and pursuant to the provisions of Section 180 (1) (c) and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there under (including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and the Articles
of Association of the Company and such other approvals as may be necessary, consent of the
members be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company (‘the Board’) to
borrow any sum or sums of money, from time to time, which, together with the moneys already
borrowed by the Company (apart from temporary loans obtained or to be obtained from the
Company’s Bankers in the ordinary course of business) may exceed, at any time, the aggregate of
the paid-up share capital and free reserves, provided that the total amount so borrowed by the
Board shall not at any time exceed 1,700 Crores (Rupees One Thousand Seven Hundred Crores) or
equivalent amount in any other foreign currency.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this Resolution, the Board be and is
hereby authorized to finalize, settle and execute such documents/deeds/writings/papers/
agreements as may be required and to do all acts, deeds, matters and things, as it may in its
absolute discretion deem necessary, proper or desirable and to settle any question, difficulty or
doubt that may arise in this regard and also to delegate all or any of the above powers to a
Committee constituted/to be constituted by the Board and/or any Member of such
Committee/Board and generally to do all such acts, deeds and things that may be necessary,
proper, expedient or incidental for the purpose of giving effect to the aforesaid Resolution.”

To increase the limits for creation of charges / mortgages on the moveable and immoveable
properties of the company, in respect of borrowings under section 180(1)(a) of the Companies
Act, 2013

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following Resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the Resolution passed at the Annual General Meeting of the
Company held on 24th June 2019 and pursuant to the provisions of Section 180 (1) (a) and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there under (including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and such other
approvals as may be necessary, consent of the members be and is hereby accorded to the Board
of Directors of the Company (‘the Board’) to create such charges, mortgages and hypothecations
in addition or supplemental to the existing charges, mortgages and hypothecations, if any, created
by the Company, on its movable and/or immovable properties, tangible and/or intangible
properties/assets, both present and future and/or whole or substantially the whole of the
undertaking(s) of the Company in such form, manner and time as the Board may deem fit, in
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favour of Banks, Financial Institutions and any Lending Agencies or bodies/ Security Trustees/
Agents, for the purpose of securing any borrowing, loans and/or advances already obtained or
that may be obtained, together with interest, all other costs, charges and expenses and other
moneys payable by the Company to the concerned Lenders, does not exceed 1,700 Crores
(Rupees One Thousand Seven Hundred Crores) at any time.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and
things, to execute all such documents, instruments, agreements and writings as may be required
and to delegate all or any of its powers herein conferred to a Committee constituted/to be
constituted by the Board and/ or any Member of such Committee with power to the said
Committee to sub-delegate its powers to any of its Members for the purpose of giving effect to
the aforesaid Resolution.”

By Order of the Board of Directors
For JSW Severfield Structures Limited

/f W Q/i‘;éi“——vgz

Place: Mumbai Swatika Gupta
Date: 13.07.2022 Company Secretary

f
. —

NOTES:

(1)

(2)

(3)
(4)

(5)

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to the provisions of Section 102 of the Companies Act,
2013 in respect of Special Business as proposed above to be transacted at the 13™ Annual
General Meeting of the Company is annexed hereto.

Relevant documents referred to in this Addendum to Notice of AGM are available for
inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days, except
Saturdays, during business hours up to the date of the Meeting.

This addendum to the Notice of AGM is available on the website of the Company.

All the processes, notes and instructions relating to attending AGM and voting set out for and
applicable for the ensuing 13" AGM shall mutatis- mutandis apply to attending AGM and voting
for the resolution proposed in this Addendum to the Notice of AGM.

Prominent landmark for the venue of the meeting is Mercedes-Benz Showroom. The route map
of the venue of the Meeting is annexed hereto.

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 6



Mr. Ranijit Pillai was re-appointed and designated as Whole Time Director of the Company by the Board
at its meeting held on 12th October, 2021 for a period of 2 years. The same was subsequently approved
by the members at the EGM held on 12th October, 2021.

Further, considering the contribution of Mr. Ranjit Pillai and the progress made by the Company under
his guidance and as per the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the
Board at its meeting held on July 13, 2022 approved the revision in the maximum remuneration payable
to Mr. Ranjit Pillai for his tenure, effective from April 1, 2022, with an all-inclusive remuneration subject
to a maximum total limit of an amount not exceeding Rs. 1 crore (Rupees One Crore) p.a.

Pursuant to Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, the revised remuneration
limit of Mr. Ranjit Pillai as decided by the Board is required to be approved by the members at their
meeting due to inadequacy of profits.

It is submitted that based on the projections, the overall managerial remuneration may exceed the
limits specified in Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013. The members are requested to consider the
revision in remuneration limit of Mr. Ranjit Pillai, whole time director of the Company.

DETAILS OF FIXATION OF REMUNERATION / VARIATION OF THE TERMS OF REMUNERATION OF THE
DIRECTOR AT THE ENSUING ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE COMPANY
[Pursuant to Clause 1.2.5 of Secretarial Standards-2 on General Meetings]

Particulars Mr. Ranjit Pillai
Age 55 years
Qualification Commerce graduate (Honors) from Mumbai University

with MBA from Mumbai University specializing in Human
Resources and Industrial Relations. He has also done a
certification course from Indian Society of Training &
Development (ISTD), New Delhi.

Experience (including expertise in | Mr. Ranjit Pillai having a vast and rich year of experience.
specific functional area)/ Brief Resume He is currently the Occupier of the Company’s factory at
Bellary and heading Operations & Special Projects. Earlier
he oversaw Business Improvements for 2 years and was
heading the HR, EHS & IT functions since 2009. Prior to
this, he was in the Corporate HR department of JSW
Steel Limited. He is having a wealth of experience and
exposure and before joining JSW, Mr. Ranjit Pillai was
associated with Crompton Greaves, heading the HR
Operations and L&D Functions at Corporate office for the
entire group. Prior to this assignment he was associated
with Proctor and Gamble, leading the Sales HR Function.
Terms and Conditions of Appointment/ | As per the resolution stated above in item no. 6 read
Re-appointment with explanatory statement thereto

Remuneration last drawn (including | Rs. 75,00,000 p.a.

sitting fees, if any)
Remuneration proposed to be paid Maximum total limit of an amount not exceeding Rs. 1
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crore p.a. w.e.f. 15 April, 2022

Date of re-appointment on the Board

October 12, 2021

Shareholding in the Company as on | Nil

March 31, 2020

Relationship with other Directors/ Key
Managerial Personnel

Not related to any Director/ Key Managerial Personnel

Number of meetings of the Board
attended during during the year

5 out of 5in the last F.Y.

Directorships of other Boards Nil

Membership/ Chairmanship of | Nil

Committees of other Boards

Pursuant to clause (iv) of Section Il of Section V of Companies Act, 2013 the following statement is

given:

| General Information

(1) Nature of industry

Structural steel design and building solutions

(2) Date or expected date of commencement
of commercial production

The company is in operations since 2009

(3) In case of new companies, expected date
of commencement of activities as per
project approved by financial institutions

appearing in the prospectus

Not applicable

(4)

Financial performance based on given
indicators

Performance for F.Y. 2021-22:
(a) Standalone Financial performance: (Rs. In
Lacs)
Income from operations
income: INR 1,00,919.34
Profit/ Loss before Tax: INR 1,086.28
Profit/ Loss after Tax: INR 1,086.28

and other

(b) Consolidated financial performance: (Rs. In
Lacs)
Income from operations
income: INR 1,04,383.05
Profit/ Loss before Tax: INR 2330.48
Profit/ Loss after Tax: INR 2019.22

and other

(5)

Foreign investments or collaborations, if
any.

50% of the equity participation is made by
Severfield Mauritius Limited

1. Information about the appointee:

(2) Background details

Mr. Ranjit Pillai has been appointed as an
Occupier- whole time director on the Board of the
Company with effect from 16™ October, 2020.

Past remuneration

(2)

Rs. 75,00,000 p.a.

(3)

Recognition or awards

N.A.

(4) Job profile and his suitability

As stated above in Experience (including expertise
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in specific functional area)/ Brief Resume

(5)

Remuneration proposed

Maximum total limit of an amount not exceeding
Rs. 1 crore p.a. w.e.f. 1% April, 2022

(6)

Comparative remuneration profile with
respect to industry, size of the company,
profile of the position and person (in case
of expatriates the relevant details would be
with respect to the country of his origin)

Considering the responsibility shouldered by him
of the enhanced business activities of the
Company, proposed remuneration is
commensurate with industry standards and Board
level positions held in similar sized and similarity
positioned businesses.

(7)

Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly
with the company, or relation with the
managerial personnel, if any.

Not applicable

Other information:

(1)

Reasons of loss or inadequate profits

During the financial year ended 31t March, 2022
the profits of the Company may not be adequate
and therefore the remuneration payable to the
whole time director would exceed the limits
prescribed. Hence this proposal is under applicable
provisions of Schedule V.

(2)

Steps taken or proposed to be taken for
improvement

The Company has embarked on a series of
strategic and operational measures that is
expected to result in the improvement in the
present position.

(3)

Expected increase in productivity and
profits in measurable terms

The Company has taken various initiatives to
maintain its leadership and financial performance.
It has been aggressively pursuing and
implementing its strategies to improve financial
performance.

Disclosures

N.A.

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant rules made
thereunder, consent of members is being sought by way of a Special Resolution.

Except, Mr. Ranjit Pillai, none of the promoters, directors, key managerial personnel and their relatives
is considered to be concerned or interested financially or otherwise, in the Resolution.

The Board of Directors recommend passing of the Special Resolution at item no 6 of the Notice.

Item No.7 &8

At the 10%™ (Tenth) Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 24th June 2019, Special Resolution
pursuant to Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 was passed by the Members authorising the
Board of Directors (hereinafter referred as “Board”) of the Company to borrow any sums of money from
time to time as they may deem fit for the purpose of carrying on the business of the Company.
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However, that the total amount of such borrowings outstanding at any given point of time shall not
exceed Rs. 1200 crores.

Further, in order to secure the said borrowing, company would require to mortgage and/ or create
charge from time to time on the movable and / or immovable properties of the Company, in such form
and manner as may be deemed fit by the Board for securing funds raised by the Company, therefore,
approval of members was taken under section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 at the 10" Annual
General Meeting of the Company held on 24th June 2019.

In view to augment cash flow of the Company and to meet the increased requirements of funds in
future, which may arise on account of long-term working capital requirement, capital expenditure or the
expansion plan / program of the Company, it may be required to borrow money from various sources by
way of secured / unsecured loans in excess of the aggregate of the paid-up share capital and free
reserves of the Company. Hence, it is considered necessary to enhance the borrowing limits under
section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 from the existing limit of Rs. 1200 crores to Rs. 1700
crores, as mentioned in the proposed resolution.

Further, to secure the said borrowings, which the Company may borrow from time to time, the
Company may be required to create mortgages / charges / hypothecation in favour of the
Lenders/Financial Institutions/Bodies Corporate/others, on all or any of its movable and immovable
properties. In order to create aforesaid mortgages / charges / hypothecation, the consent of the
members by means of Special Resolution is required under section 180(1)(a) of Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, it is proposed to increase the present limits for creation of charges / mortgages on the
moveable and immoveable properties of the Company, in respect of borrowings under section 180(1)(a)
of the Companies Act, 2013 from Rs. 1200 Crores to Rs. 1700 Crores.

In view of the above, the Board of Directors recommends passing of resolutions under Item nos. 6 and 7
as Special Resolutions.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel including their relatives is concerned or interested,
financially or otherwise in the aforesaid resolutions.

By Order of the Board of Directors

For JSW Severfield Structures Limited

/f cw Q/i"_/fii—g’z

Place: Mumbai Swatika Gupta
Date: 13.07.2022 Company Secretary

f
. —
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JSW Severfield Structures Limited
CIN : U28112MH2009PLC191045
Registered Office : Office No. 05-08, Lower Ground Floor, B-Wing, Art Guild House, Phoenix Market
City, L.B.S. Marg, Kurla (West), Mumbai 400070
Website: www.jssl.in, Email: swatika.gupta@jssl.in

FORM NO. MGT-11
PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN : U28112MH2009PLC191045
Name of the Company : JSW Severfield Structures Limited
Registered Office : Office No. 05-08, Lower Ground Floor, B-Wing, Art Guild House,

Phoenix Market City, L.B.S. Marg, Kurla (West), Mumbai 400070

Name of the Members(s) :

Registered address :

Email Id :

Folio No. :

I/We, being the Member (s) of .....ccccoevevveeeeveerenne. shares of the above-named Company, hereby appoint

1. Name :

Address :

E-mail Id :

Signature :

or failing him :

2. Name :

Address :

E-mail Id :

Signature :

or failing him :

3. Name :

Address :

E-mail Id :

Signature :

as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Thirteenth
Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Friday, the 15Th JULY, 2022 at 17:00 HOURS at
OFFICE NO. 05-08, B-WING, LOWER GROUND FLOOR, ART GUILD HOUSE PHOENIX MARKET CITY, L.B.S
MARG, KURLA (WEST), MUMBAI- 400 070 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such
resolutions as are indicated below:
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SPECIAL BUSINESS Vote (Optional)
(See Note no. 3)

Resolution Resolution For Against

No.

6. To increase the remuneration limit of Mr. Ranjit Pillai, Whole

Time Director of the Company
(Special Resolution)

7. To increase the borrowing limit under section 180(1)(c) of the
Companies Act, 2013
(Special Resolution)

8. To increase the limits for creation of charges / mortgages on
the moveable and immoveable properties of the company, in
respect of borrowings under section 180(1)(a) of the
Companies Act, 2013

(Special Resolution)

Signed this ................. day of ................... 2022.

Signature of the Shareholder: ..., Affix
Revenue

Signature of Proxy holder(s): .......ccceeeeveereeeeeeeeeeeerseeeeeevevevenns Stamp

Note:

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

2. Any alternation or correction made to this Proxy form must be initialled by the signatory/ signatories
3. If you wish to vote for a Resolution, place a tick in the corresponding box under the column marked
“For”. If you wish to vote against a Resolution, place a tick in the corresponding box under the column
marked “Against”. If no direction is given, your proxy may vote or abstain as he/she think fit.

ATTENDANCE SLIP

REGD. FOLIO NO.
NO. OF SHARE(S) HELD

| hereby record my presence at the Thirteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company held on Friday,
the 15Th JULY, 2022 at 17:00 HOURS at OFFICE NO. 05-08, B-WING, LOWER GROUND FLOOR, ART
GUILD HOUSE PHOENIX MARKET CITY, L.B.S MARG, KURLA (WEST), MUMBAI- 400 070

Full name of Shareholder/ProXy .......cceerieeceeeeevereeeeeneieneeveereeesssesevesessssssnsevens
(in block letters)

Signature of the Shareholder/Proxy
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Chartered Accountants

Telephone: +91 22 6257 1000

14th Floor, Central B Wing angd North € Wing, Fax: +51 22 6257 1010

Nesco IT Park 4, Nesco Center,
Western Express Highway. Goregaon (East),
Mumbai - 400 083, India

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of
JSW Severfield Structures Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of JSW Severfield Structures Limited (the “ Company™),
which comprise the standalone balance sheet as at 31 March 2022, and the standalone statement of profit and
loss (including other comprehensive income), standalone statement of changes in equity and standalone
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and its profit and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor ‘s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics tssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by
us, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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JSW Severfield Structures Limited

Other Information (Continued)

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone
financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2
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JSW Severfield Structures Limited

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

L]

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of standalone financial statements and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

{A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢} The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the standalone
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Continued)

e)

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B”.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

'c_l)

b)

c)

d)

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2022 on its
financial position in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 33 to the standalone
financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

(i} The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
ot any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

= directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™} by or on behalf of the Company or

= provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i1) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall:

= directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the Funding Party or

® provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(iii)) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (d) (i) and (d) (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Continued)
(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of
Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down
under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details
under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 101248W/W — 100022

Z

Koosai Lehery

Partner
Mumbai Membership No.112399
4 May 2022 UDIN No. 22112399A1JXRU2468
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Annexure “A” to the Auditors’ report

{Referred to in our report of even date)

)

(1

@

(@)

(1)

(ii)

(ii)

(a) {A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(a) (B)The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b)According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of
physical verification of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and
equipment are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with
this programme, certain property, plant and equipment were verified during the year. In
our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size
of the Company and the nature of its assets. No discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

{c)According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the lease agreement in respect of immovable
property of land, disclosed under Right-of-use assets in the standalone financial statements,
is in the name of the Company, where the Company is a lessee in the agreement

(d)According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property,
Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the
year.

(e)According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending
against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami
Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(a)The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our
opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as
followed by management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification
between the physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the
aggregate of each class of mventory.

{(b)According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial
institutions on the basis of security of current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or
statements filed by the Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement
with the books of account of the Company.
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(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not provided any guarantee or
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to
companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties during the year. The
Company has made investments in another company during the year. The Company has not
made any investments in firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties.

Accordingly, provisions of clauses 3(iii}(a), (c), (d), () and (f) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures conducted by us, we are of the opinion that the investments made are, prima
facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Act, with respect to investments
made. The Company has not granted any loans to, or provided any guarantees or securities to
parties covered under Section 185 or 186 of the Act therefore the relevant provisions of
Section 185 and 186 of the Act are not applicable

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
from the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company pursuant to
the rules prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records under
Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of its manufactured goods and are of
the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and
maintained, However, we have not carrted out a detailed examination of the records with a
view to determine whether these are accurate or complete.

(vii) (a)The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax

and Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has
been subsumed into Goods and Services Tax (‘GST").

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including GST, Provident fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other statutory dues
have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of GST, Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of
Customs, Cess and other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2022 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.
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(viii)

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues
relating to Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-
Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory dues, which have not been deposited with

the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute except as follows:

Name of the | Nature of the Amount Amount paid Period to Forum where
statute dues (Rs. in lakhs) under Protest “::'i::)l:l:l];e dispute is pending
(Rs. in lakhs) relates

U.P. Value Value added 161.66 40.41 | FY 2016-2017 | Additional

Added Tax Tax Commissioner

Act, 2008 Appeals ( NOIDA)

Entry of Entry Tax 0.04 0.01 | FY 2016-2017 | Additional

Goods Act, Commissioner

2007 Appeals { NOIDA}

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed
any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year,

(ix) (a)According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment
of loans and borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to banks during the year.
Further, the Company did not have any outstanding loans or borrowings from any other
lender and financial institution during the year.

{(b)According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

(¢)In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d)According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the balance sheet of the company, we report that no funds raised on short-
term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

{e)According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of
its subsidiary as defined under Companies Act, 2013,

The Company does not hold any investment in any associate or joint venture (as defined
under Companies Act, 2013) during the year ended 31 March 2022.
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(0

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(f)According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by
us, we report that the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of
securities held in its subsidiaries (as defined under Companies Act, 2013).

The Company does not hold any investment in any associate or joint venture (as defined
under Companies Act, 2013) during the year ended 31 March 2022.

(a)The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public

offer (including debt instruments) Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable.

(b)According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during
the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(a)Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company
has been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

{b)According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section
{12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the Central Government.

(c)As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii} of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
transactions with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, and the details of the related party transactions
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

(a)Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our
opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature
of its business.

(b)We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the
period under audit.
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(xv)  Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its
directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Aect, 2013 are not
applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a} and (b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) and (b) of the Order is not
applicable.

(c)The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

(d) We have been informed by the management that as per the definition of Group under
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions 2016, there is one Core Investment
Company (CIC) which is registered and three CICs which are not required to be registered
with the Reserve Bank of India, forming part of the promoter group.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

(xviil) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii} of the Order is not applicable.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is
not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.
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(xx) {(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no
unspent amount under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant
to any project. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx){a) of the Order are not applicable.

(b)In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no
unspent amount under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant
to any ongoing project. Accordingly, clause 3(xx){b) of the Order is not applicable.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 101248W/W — 100022

&4

Koosai Lehery

Pariner

Mumbai Membership No.112399
4 May 2022 UDIN No. 22112399AIIXRU2468
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Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditors’ report

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone financial statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A) (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of JSW Severfield
Structures Limited (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note™).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred
to as “the Act™).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

6 w
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Auditors’ Responsibility (Continued)

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of such internal financial
controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022
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Koosai Lehery

Partner

Mumbai Membership No.112399
4 May 2022 UDIN No. 221 12399AITXRU2468



JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022

[Rupees in lakhs)

As at As at
Particulars Notes March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
ASSETS
{1} Mon-current assets
{a} Property, plant and equipment 2(a) 24,311.31 24,879.68
{b) Right -of-use assets Hb} 2,024.52 2,285.46
{c) Capital work-in-progress 2{c} - 368,31
[d) Intangible assets 2(d) 6.24 29.72
[2) Financial assets:
{i) Investments 3 911.70 896.59
(it} Other financial assets 4 347.49 313.99
{f} Income tax assets (net) 1,113.46 1,186.23
(g) Other non-current assets 5 141.87 505.39
Total non-current assets ‘ 28,856.59 30,565.37
{2} Current assets
(a) Inventories 6 1,605.21 6,002,51
{b} Financial assets:
{i) Trade receivables 7 26,046.33 14,854.23
{ii} Cash and cash equivalents 8 2,322.32 46.19
{iii} Bank balances other than {ii) above 9 533.98 640.40
{iv) Other Financial assets 10 3271 38.00
() Other current assets 11 59,801.82 37,632.82
Total current assets 90,342.87 59,304.15
Total assets 1,19,199.46 89,869.52
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
{1) Equity
(a) Equity share capital 12 39,587.59 35,587.59
{b) Other equity 13 (8,245.47) {9,289.29)
Total equity 31,342.12 320,298.30
Liabilities
{2} Non-current liabilities
{a) Financial liabilitias
{i} Borrowings 14{a) 1,017.43 1,258.71
{ii) Lease liabilities 14(b) 488.95 810.59
{ilij Other Financial Liabilties 14{c) 300.00 300.00
{b] Provisions 15 420.17 326.93
Total non-current liabilities 2,226.55 2,696.23
{3) Current liabilities
{a) Financia liabilities
{i) Borrowings 16 11,650.78 13,551.68
{ii) Lease lLabilities 326.41 343.81
{iii} Trade payables 17
(a) total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises; and 3,747.45 1,190.23
(b} total cutstanding dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small enterprises 41,051.43 22,425.23
{iv) Other current financial liabilities 18 1,871.47 1,550.27
{b) Other current liabilles 19 26,729.12 17,278.24
{c} Provision 20 254.13 135.53
Total current liabilltles 85,630.79 56,874.99
Total liabilities 87,8572.34 59,571.22
Total equity and llabilities 1,19,199.46 89,869.52

See accompanying notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
ForB8SR & Co. LLP
Firm’s Registration No. 101248W/W - 100022

Chagtered Accountants

PAWAN KEDIA
Chairman

—~ No: 00020570
KOOSAI LEHE 6 M,‘%
Partner Q_’_,jn.‘m
Membership No.112399 SANTANU CHOUDHURY

Place: Mumbai Chief Financial Officer
Date: 4 May 2022

DEREK RANDALL
Managing Director
102433966
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SWATIKAGUPTA/ ~ 7~

Company Secretary
M.5hip no. A28582




JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

[Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars Notes Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
| Revenue from operations 21 1,00,631.2% 46,467.96
I Otherincome 22 288.05 650,92
Il Total Income {1+11} 1,00,919.34 47,11B.88
IV Expenses:
Cost of construction {including materials) 23 80,417.59 35,152,10
Purchases of stock-in-trade 7,389.43 143.42
Employee benefits expense 24 5,361.79 5,540.97
Finance costs 25 3,488.06 3,638.92
Depreciation and amaortization expense 2 {a) {b}&lc} 1,988.64 2,052.57
Other expenses 26 1,187.55 2,169.13
Total expenses {IV) 99,833.06 48,697.11
V (Loss)/Profit before tax {11I-W) 1,086.28 {1,578.23)
VI Tax expense:
Current tax =
Deferred tax - -
VIl {Loss)/Profit for the year {V-VI) 1,086.28 {1,578.23)
YlII Other comprehensive (loss)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
i) Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans {refer note no-29}) {45.32) {2.15)
ii) Change in fair value of investments In equity shares 2.86 -
Total other comprehensive loss {42.46) {2.15)
IX Total comprehensive (loss) fincome for the year [VII+VINI) 1,043.82 {1,580.38)
X Earnings per equity share of Rs 10 each
Basic 30 0.27 {0.40}
Diluted 30 0.27 {0.40}

See accompanying notes to Standalone Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached

For B5R & Co. LLP

Firm’s Registration No. 101248W /W - 100022
Chartered Accountants

KOOSAI LEHERY
Partner
Membership No.112399

Place: Mumbai
Date: 4 May 2022
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JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED

Standalone Statement of changes In equity for the year ended March 31, 2022

{a) Equity share capital {Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars
Amount

Balance as at April, 2020 39,587.59
Issue of equity sharas :
Balance as at March 31, 2021 39,587.59
Issue of equity shares -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 39,587.59

{b} Other equity {Rupees in lakhs)
Reserves and surplus
Particulars Total
Change in fair value of Remeasurements
Retained earnings  investrents in equity  of the net defined
shares benefit plans

Balance as at April 1, 2020 {7,645.11) - {63.80} {7,708.91)
Profit for the year [1,578.23) - (1,578.23}
Other comprehensive loss for the year [net of taxes) - {2.15) {2.15)
Total comprehensive (loss) for the year {1,578.23) - {2.15} [1,580.38)
Share issue expensas - -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 {9,223.34} - {65.95) {9,289.29}
Profit for the year 1,086.28 - - 1,086.28
Other comprehensive loss for the year (net of taxes) - 2.86 [45.32) (42.46)
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,086.28 2.86 [45.32) 1,043.82
Balance as at March 21, 2022 (8,137.06) 2.86 {111.27) {8,245.47)

Footnotes:

a. Retained earnings:

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date. The amount that can be distributed by the Company as dividend to its eguity
shareholders is determined based on the balance in this reserve and also considering the reguirements of the Companies Act, 2013.

b. Remeasurements of net defined plans:
It fncludes impact of actuarial gains and losses on the defined benefits obligation due to change in financial assurmptions, change in demographic
assumption, experience adjustment ete., recognised through other comprehensive income.

See accompanying notes to Standalone Financlal Staterments

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
Standal t of cash flow

{Rupees in lakhs)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

A Cash flows from operating activities
Profit befare tax 1,086.28 [1,578.23)
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortization expense 198864 2,052.57
et unrealized exchange lossf (gain} 34.30 3904
Loss on sale of fixed assetsinet) 288
Intarast income {112,686} (20.27)
Finance Cost 2,230.08 2,028.39
Bad debts written off/iracovered) 42.17 |57.68)
Provision / liabllittes no longer required written back {175.20) {475.90)
Provision for doubtful debts and unbilled receivabie 24,97 992 51
{Gain)/lass on Foreign currency forward contracts 0.18 083
Opearating profit before working capital changes 5,121.62 3,911.9
Adjust ts for In worklng capital:
Decrease/ (Increase) in inventories 4,487.30 [249.98}
{Increase) / Decreasa in trade receivables 111,259.75) 6,699.53
{increase) / Decrease in other assets (21,812.97) 3,196.57
Increase/ (Decrease} in other liabilities 9,504.48 {1,515.96}
tncreasef{Decrease) in Trade payables 21,324.32 {9,793.25}
Increase / (Decrease] in pravisions 166.53 (455,73}
Cash generated from operations 7,531.53 1,793.15
Income taxes refundf(paid) (net} 141.74 461.76
Net cash flow g from op £ activities 761227 225091
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment, Intangible assets (79115} {1,510.61)
including capital advances
Proceeds from zale of property, plant and aquipment 0.93
Purchase of equity shares. (12.25) =
Bank deposits (placed} / matured (net) T2.92 137.19)
Interest received on bank deposits 43.70 50.:90
Met cash [used in) lnvesting activities {685.85]) {1,496.90)
€. Cash flows from financing activities
[Repayments of)/ proceeds from working capital borrowangs (net} [2,155.43) 1,159.30
Lease liability paid-Principal Portion {339.05) (288.01)
Praceads of non current barrowings 76262 1,134.27
Repayment of Term loan [749.37} -
Finance ct paid {2,230.06} 2,777.32)
Met cash generated {used in} Anandng activities {4,711.29) (771.26)
Met Increase in cash and cash equivalents 2.276.13 [13.23)
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year 465.19 59.42
Cash and cash equlvalants at the end of the year 2,322.32 46,19

Notes:

The cash flow statement is prepared using the “indirect method” st out In IND A5 7 - Statement of Cash Flows.,

See accompanying notes to Standalone Financial $tatements

As per our report of aven date attached
ForB SR & Co. LLP
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JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

Note 1
1.1 General Information

ISW Severfield Structures Limited {“the Company”) was incorporated on March 19, 2009 under the
Companies Act, 1956 as a joint venture between JSW Steel Limited and Severfield-Rowen PLC, with its
registered office located at Office # 05 to 08, B-Wing, Lower Ground Floor, Art Guild House, Phoenix
Market City, LBS Marg, Kurla West, Mumbai — 400 070.

The main object of the Company is to carry on business of design, fabrication and erection of structural
steel works, including decking, for construction projects and allied activities. The fabrication facility of
the Company is located at Toranagallu, Karnataka,

1.2 Recent pronouncemeants

Ministry of Corporate Affairs {“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022,
MCA amended the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from
April 1, 2022, as below:

a. Ind AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — For items produced during testing/trail phase,
clarification added that revenue generated out of the same shall not be recognised in SOPL and
considered as part of cost of PPE.

b. Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets — Guidance on what constitutes
cost of fulfilling contracts {to determine whether the contract is onerous or not} is included.

c. Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments — The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes whaen it
applies the 10 per cent’ test in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability.

The Company does not expect the above amendments to have any significant impact in its financial
statements.

1.3 Statement of compliance

The Standalone financial statements of the Company which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year ended March 31, 2022, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (together hereinafter referred to as “Financial Statements”) have been
prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 3 of the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015
and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter {“Ind AS”} and the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act”). The Standalone Financial Statements have been approved by the Board of Directors in
its meeting held on May 4, 2022.
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JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial $tatements

14

1.5

Basis of preparation and presentation

The Standalone financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair value at end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given
in exchange for goods and services. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per the Company’s normal

operating cycle.

The Standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees [‘INR’) and all values are rounded
to the nearest lakhs, except otherwise indicated.

Significant Accounting Policies

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the Company

and it can be measured reliably.

Construction contracts

The Company’s main activity continues to be the design, fabrication and construction of structurat steel
for wide range of commercial and industrial construction projects. Such contracts are generally entered
into before construction of the project begins. Under the terms of the contract, generally, the services
provided results in the creation of steel work asset on customer site as per specific customer
requirements and accordingly, an asset / ‘construction work in progress’ created upon Company’s
performance is not readily available for an alternative use to the Company, and the Company has an
enforceable right to payment for the work done. Revenue from construction of structural steel contracts
is therefore recognised over time on cost to complete method —i.e., based on the proportion of contract
costs incurred for the work performed to date relative to the estimated total contract costs.

The Company recognises contract revenue for a performance obligation satisfied over time only if the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation can be reasonably measured. In
certain circumstances, when the outcome of a performance obligation is not reasonably measurable
but the Company expects to recover the costs incurred in satisfying the performance obligation, then
revenue is recognised only to the extent of the cost incurred until such time the outcome of the
performance obligation can be reasonably measured.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

When contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses exceed progress
billings, the surplus is shown as amounts due from customers for contract work. For contracts where
progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses,
the surplus is shown as the amounis due to customers for contract work. Amounts received before the
related work is performed are included in the balance sheet, as a liability, as advancesreceived. Amounts
billed for work performed but not yet paid by the customer are included in the balance sheet under trade

recejvables,



JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

il. Dividend and interest income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment has
been established.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

lil. Leasing
Identifying a lease

Under Ind AS 116, the Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the definition
of alease. A contract is, or contains, alease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a specified period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Company as a lessee

Under Ind AS 116, the Company recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for most of its
leases.

The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease l{ability at the lease commencement date.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or hefore the commencement date less any lease incentives received,
plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located.

The assets are depreciated to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the
lease term using the straight-line method as this most closely reflects the expected pattern of
consumption of the future economic benefits. The lease term includes periods covered by an option
to extend if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option. The Company's operating
leases mainly relate to real estate assets. Lease term is for 3 years for these assets. In addition, the
right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain
remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or rate are not included in the measurement of the lease liability.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Itis remeasured
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is
a change in the Company's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value
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JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
Notes 1o the Standalone Financial Statements

guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension
or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company has elected to apply the practical expedient not to recognize right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-
value assets. The lease payments associated with these leases are recognized as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Company as a lessor

The company recognised lease rental on a straight line basis over the lease terms.

IV. Foreign currencies

The functional currency of the Company is determined on the basis of the primary economic
environment in which it operates. The functional currency of the Company is Indian National Rupee (INR).

The transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in
which they arise except for:

* exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings; and

* exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreign currency risks.

V. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash on hand, cash at banks, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value,

VI. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributabie to the
equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for,
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JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential
equity shares that have changed the number of equity shares cutstanding, without a corresponding
change in resources, For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the
period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

VIl. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale,

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which
they are incurred.

The Company determines the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation as the actual
borrowing costs incurred on that borrowing during the period less any interest income earned on
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets, to the
extent that an entity borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. In case if
the Company borrows generally and uses the funds for obtaining a qualifying asset, borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation are determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that
asset.

The Company suspends capitalisation of borrowing costs during extended periods in which it suspends
active development of a qualifying asset.

Vill. Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply
with the conditions attached to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis over the
periods in which the Company recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate.

IX. Employee benefits

a. Short-term employee benefits:

The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the
services rendered by employees are recognised as an expense during the period when the employees
render the services.




JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

b. Long term employee benefits;

Compensated absences which are not expected to be availed or encashed within twelve months after
the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service are recognised as a liahility
as at the Balance Sheet date on the basis of actuarial valuation using projected unit credit method.

C. Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits:

Defined contribution plans:

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays
specified contributions towards Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance and Pension Scheme. The
Company's contribution is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the
period in which the eligible employee renders the related service.

Defined benefit plans:

The Company pays gratuity to the employees whoever has completed five years of service with the
Company at the time of resignation/ superannuation. The gratuity is paid @ 15 days salary for the
every completed year of service as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Company’s liabilities
towards gratuity and other post-employment benefit is determined on yearly basis using the
Projected Unit Credit Method and spread over the period during which the benefit is expected to be
derived from employees’ services. Re-measurement of defined benefit plans in respect of post-
employment and other long term benefits are charged to the Other Comprehensive Income.

X. Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. Income tax
expense is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent it relates to items
directly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax is the amount of tax payable based on the taxable profit for the year as determined in
accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Current tax
assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at the
Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liahilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used.
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JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authority.

Property, plant and equipment

The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts
and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the
tax authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use,
including relevant borrowing costs for qualifying assets and any expected costs of decommissioning.

Cost of major inspection / overhauling is recognised in the carrying amount of the item of property,
plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. Any remaining carrying
amount of the cost of the previous inspectionfoverhauling (as distinct from physical parts) is de-
recognised.

Properties in the course of construction are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss, as
capital work in progress. Upon completion, such properties, are transferred to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment and the depreciation commences.

Where an obligation (legal or constructive) exists to dismantle or remove an asset or restore a site
to its former condition at the end of its useful tife, the present value of the estimated cost of
dismantling, removing or restoring the site is capitalized along with the cost of acquisition or
construction upon completion and a corresponding liability is recognized.

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses.

Anitem of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
henefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss.

tntangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no further economic benefits are expected




JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

X, Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. Depreciable amount for
assets is the cost of an asset, ar other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value.
Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of assets {other than properties under
construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using straight-line method, based on a
technical evaluation or those prescribed under Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives.

All leasehold tand is amortized over the period of the lease, except where the leasehold land is
acquired by the Company, with an option in the lease deed, entitling the Company to purchase on
outright basis after a certain period at no additional cost.

Major overhaul costs are depreciated over the estimated life of the economic benefit derived from
the overhaul. The carrying amount of the remaining previous overhaul cost is charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss if the next overhaul is undertaken earlier than the previously estimated
life of the economic benefit.

The Company reviews the residual value, useful lives and depreciation method annually and, if
expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting
estimate on a prospective hasis.

Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated
useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Estimated useful lives of the intangible assets are as follows:

-

| Computer Software 3-5 years
| Licenses as per license terms

Impairment of Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverahle amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss {if any). Where it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
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JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
Motes to the Standalone Financial Statements
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XIv.

XV.

a)

b)

rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or cash-generating unit} is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset {or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount, An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Any reversal of the previously recognized impairment loss is limited to the extent that the assets
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined if no
impairment loss had previously been recognized.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of inventories are
determined on weighted average basis.

Cost of raw materials include cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Cost of finished goods and work in progress include cost of
direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal
operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Provisions, contingencies and commitments

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive), as a
result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources, that can be reliably estimated,
will be required to settle such an obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the cbligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect
of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is-

a possible ohligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence’of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the entity; or

a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because:
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i} itis not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation; or
ii} the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the entity.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each reporting
period,

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to he derived by the
Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under
the contract.

Investment in Subsidiaries

Investment in subsidiary is shown at cost. Where the carrying amount of an investment is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount, the difference (impairment) is recorded in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. On disposal of investment, the difference between the net disposa! proceeds and the carrying
amount is charged or credited to the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when an entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets ana financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities {other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through Statement of Profit and Loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financia! assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are recognised immediately in standalone $tatement of
Profit and Loss.

A. Financlal assets:

i) Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial assets are initially recognised at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted
to the fair value on initial recognition. Purchase and sale of financial assets are recognised using trade
date accounting.

ii} Subsequent measurement:

Financial assets carried at amortised cost - A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised
cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flow{._g_wat are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

\ \;\_
:. | S

\ / |
\




JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) - A financial asset is
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractua! cash flows and selling financial assets and
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL) - A financial asset which is not classified in
any of the above categories are fair valued through profit or loss.

Financial assets, other than equity instruments, are subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of both:

{a) the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and

{b) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Equity Investments:

All equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognised in standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss, except forthose equity investments for which the Company has elected
to present the value changes in ‘Other Comprehensive Income’,

i) Impairment:

The Company recognises a loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses {ECL) on financial assets that
are measured at amortised cost and at FVOCI, The credit loss is difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to an entity in accardance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
entity expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate.
This is assessed on an individual or collective basis after considering atl reasonable and supportable
including that which is forward-looking.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result
from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115, the Company always measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

For financial assets other than trade receivables, the Company recognises 12—months expected
credit losses for all originated or acquired financial assets if at the reporting date the credit risk of
the financial asset has not increased significantly since its initial recognition. The expected credit
losses are measured as lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on financial asset increases
significantly since its initial recognition. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument
improves such that there is no longer significant increase in credit risks since initial recognition, then
the Company reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12 months ECL. The
impairment losses and reversals are recognised in standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. For
equity instruments and financial assets measured at FVTPL, there is no requirement for impatrment
testing.
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De-recognition:

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantiaily
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to controi the transferred asset, the Company
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
coliateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised
in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal
of that financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety {e.g. when the Company retains an
option to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Comipany allocates the previous carrying
amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing
involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts on the date of the transfer, The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part
that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been
recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated
between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the
basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

B. Financial liabilities and equity instruments:

)

i)

Classification as debt or equity:

Debt and equity instruments issued by a company are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments:

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity
after deducting ali of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or toss is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments,

i} Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in case of loans net of directly
attributable costs. Fees of recurring nature are directly recognised in profit or loss as finance cost.

iv) Subseguent measurement:

Financial liabitities are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. For trade and
other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts
approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

v) Derecognition:

Financial liabilities are derecognised when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged,
cancelfled or have expired. An exchange with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different
terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a
new financial liahility. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability
{whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

C. Derivative finandial instruments:

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to foreign exchange rate
risks, including foreign exchange forward contracts, and ¢ross currency swaps.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or
loss is recognised in standalone Statement of Profit and Loss immediately unless the derivative is
designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in Statement
of Profit and Loss depends on the nature of the hedge item.

D. Offsetting of financial instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

E. Fair value measurement:

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

i) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
i) ii) In the absence of a principal market, inthe most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financiai asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use,

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are avatlable to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant cbservable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

1.6 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

/

In the course of applying the policies outlined in all notes under section 1.5 above, the Company is
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and
liabitities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
NN
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period, or in the period of the revision and future period, if the revision affects current and future
period.

i} Revenue and profit recognition

Recognition of revenue and profit from construction contracts is based on judgements made in respect
of the ultimate profitability of a contract. Such judgements are arrived at through the use of estimates
in relation to the costs and value of work performed to date and to be performed in bringing contracts
to completion, These estimates are made by reference to recovery of pre-contract costs, changes in
work scope, the contractual terms under which the work is being performed, including the
recoverability of any income from variations and the likely outcome of discussions on claims and costs
incurred,

Management continually reviews the estimated final outcome on contracts and makes adjustments
where necessary.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

—

Management reviews the useful lives of property, plant and equipment at least once a year. Such
lives are dependent upon an assessment of both the technical lives of the assets and also their likely
economic lives hased on various internal and external factors including relative efficiency and
operating costs. Accordingly depreciable lives are reviewed annually using the best information
available to the Management.

iii) Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Determining whether the property, plant and equipment are impaired requires an estimate in the
value in use of plant and equipment. The value in use caiculation requires the Management to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the property, plant and equipment and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value. When the actual cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

iv) Impairment of unbilled revenue, trade and other receivables

The provision policy for impairment of unbilled revenue, trade and other receivables is based on
the ongoing evaluation of the collectability, ageing analysis of the outstanding amounts and
management’s judgement. A considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these amounts, including creditworthiness and the past coliection history of
each customer. If the financial conditions of the customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to make payments, additional allowances may be required.

v} Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that itis probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.




JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
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Note 2(a) Property, plant and equipment

(Rupees in lakhs)
Plank and Furntture and Office
Total
Partlculars Bulkfings equipment fintures Vehicles N
At cost f deemad cost
Balance as at Aprll 1, 2020 12,773.60 18,516.77 307.36 31428 277.98 32,189.99
Additions &71.97 563.09 119.44 = 3166 1.386.16
Balance as at March 31, 2021 13,445.57 19,079.86 426,80 314,28 09.64 33,576.15
Disposals - - - {14.58} - {14.58}
Additions 569.13 445 58 1033 14.54 . 1,039.68
Balance as at March 31, 2022 14,014.70 19,525.54 437.13 31424 309.64 34,601.25
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at April 1, 2020 1.489.34 521273 97.10 109.18 177.58 7,085.93
Depreciation charge for the year 451.17 1,041.78 2493 49.09 33.57 1,610.54
Balance as at March 31, 2021 1,940.51 6,254.51 132.03 158.27 211.15 8,696.47
Cisposals {10.75) {10.75})
Depreciation charge far the year 457.01 1,049.49 4069 27.65 29,38 1,604.22
Balance as at March 31, 2022 2,397.52 7.304.00 172.72 17517 240.53 10,289,949
Carrying amounts as at March 31, 2021 11,505.06 12,825.35 294.77 156.01 98.49 24,879.68
Carrylng 89 at March 31, 2022 11,617.18 12,221.54 264.41 139.07 6911 24.311.31
Useful life of the assets {years) 0 15-30 g-1% 8-1% 5-10
Method of depreciation SL 5L SLM SLM SLK
During tha previous year ended 31 March 2021, based on the technical evaluation carried out by an external expert, the gement has d the

useful lives of certain plant and machinery. Accardingly, the useful lives of such plant and machinery have been revised from 15 years to a range of 15-30
years depending on the number of shifts of usage. Had the Company continued with the previcusly assessed useful lives, depreciation expanses for the
year anded 31 March 2021 would have been higher by Rs.448.87 lakhs,

Note : Property, plant and equ] { pt building and leasehald land) are pledged against borrowings. The details relating to which has been
described in Mote 14 (3) and 16.




JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
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Note 2({b) Right -of-use assets
Rupees.in lakhs

" 3
Particulars Right -of-use
assets
At cost
Balance as at April 01, 2020 3,073.38
Additions -
Deletion -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 3,073.38
Additions -
Deletion -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 3,073.38
Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at April 01, 2020 322.42
Amortisation expenses 365.50
Balance as at March 31, 2021 687.92
Amortisation expenses 360.94
Balance as at March 31, 2022 1,048.86
Balance as at March 31, 2021 2,385.46
Balance as at March 31, 2022 2,024,52
Useful life of the assets {range in years) 3-5
Method of amortisation SLM

The above consists of Leasehold Land of Rs.1,319.50 lakhs and office premises and Guest house
Rs.705.02 lakhs. {31 March 2021 Leasehold Land of Rs.1,319.50 lakhs and office premises and Guest
house Rs.1,065.96 lakhs).
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

Note 2{c) Capital Work in progress

(Rupees.in lakhs)

Particulars

Capital Work in progress

Balance as at March 31, 2020
Additions
Capitalisations

165.56
202.75

Balance as at March 31, 2021
Additions
Capitalisations

368.31
200.82
569.13

Balance as at March 31, 2022

Amounts in CWIP as at 31st March 2022

Particulars

Less thanl year

1-2 years

Total

Projects in progress

Projects temporarily
suspended

Total

Amounts in CWIP as at 31st March 2021

Particulars

Less than1 year

1-2 years

Total

Projects in progress

202.75

165.56

368.31

Projects temporarily
suspended

Total

202.75

165.56

368.31
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Note 2(d) intangible assets

{Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars Computer Licence fees Total
software
At cost / deemed cost
Bafance as at Aprll 1, 2020 125.06 297.34 42240
Additions 0.96 - 0,96
Balance a3 st March 31, 2021 126.02 297.34 42336
Additlons i = &
Balance as at March 31, 2022 12602 297.34 423,36
Accumulsted amortisation
Balance as st April 1, 2020 99.54 217.57 317.11
Depreciation charge for the year 2361 52.92 76.53
Balance as at April 1, 2021 123.15 270.49 393.64
Depreciation charge for the year 2.40 21.08 213.48
Balance as at March 31, 2022 125.55 291.57 417.12
Carrying as at March 31, 2021 2.87 26.85 29,72
Carrying amounts as at March 31, 2022 047 5.77 6.24
Useful life of the assets (range} 35 Sl ?eriod
of license
Method of amortisation SLM SLM
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Notes to the Standalone Financlal Statements

{Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Note 3
Investments {non-current)
Unquoted investment in equlty instruments of a subsidiary {at deemed cost}
8,965,850 aquity shares {3“151 Marth 2021: 8,965,850) of Rs 10 each, fully paid up of 896.59 896.59
JSW Structural Metal Decking Limited
Quoted investment in equity instruments.(at cost)
5,000 Equity shares (31st March 2021: Nil) of Rs 10 each, fully paid up of JSW Energy 15.11
limited
Total 911.70 896.59
Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments {carrying value) 896.59 896.59
Aggregate amount of quoted investments [at cost) 12.25 -
Aggregate amount of quoted investments [at market value) 15.11
Aggregate amount of imapirament n value of investments - -
Note 4
Other financial assets (non-current)
Security deposits 245.49 245.49
Margin money deposits (under lien with banks) 102.00 68.50
Total 347.49 313.99
Note 5
Other non-current assets
Capital advances 16.91 421
Indirect Tax recoverable {amounts paid under protest) 41.41 446,30
Prepayments and others 76.22 897
Security deposits 7.33 45,81
Total 141.87 505.19
Note &
Inventories {at lower of cost and net reallsable value)
Construction raterial [refer note 41) 957.03 5,501.79
Consumables, stores and spares 648.18 590,72
Total 1,605.21 6,092.51
Note 7
Trade recelvables
(@) Trade receivables considered good - Secured - -
{b) Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured 26,046.83 14,854.23
{c} Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk = -
{d} Trade receivables - credit impaired 468.94 443 97

Less : Bad Debt Written off - -

Less : Allowance for doubtful receivables (468.94) {443.97)
Total 26,0465.83 14,854.23

Movement in allowance for expected credit loss:

(Rupees in lakhs)

Balance as at April 1, 2021

Allowances for doubtful debts {expected credit loss allowance)}
Bad debts written off

Balance as at Agril 1, 2022

Allpwances for doubtful debts {expected credit loss allowance)
Other adjustments

Balance as at March 31, 2022

213
441.84

443,97
24.97

468.94

{Refer note 27{ii) for other relevant notes)
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JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Staternents

{Rupees in lakhs)

A of trade receivable as at at 31st March 2022

Particulars Less thanb Months 6 Months-1 Year 1 -2Ygar | 2-3Years | More than3 Years Not due Total
Undisputed:
Considered Sood 6,387.75 3,130.42 1,945.43 745.73 463.19 | 13,374.32 | 26,046.83
Considered Doubtful . 1.27 - 71.31 186,16 258.74
Disputad:
Considered Good - - .
Considered Doubtful . . . - 210.20 210,20
Gross Carrying Amount 6382.75 3,131.69 1,945.43 817.04 659.55 | 13,374.32 | 26,515.77
Less: Provision 1,27 - 7131 396.36 468.94
Net carrying t 6,387.75 3,130.42 1,945.43 745.73 #63.19 | 13,374.32 | 26,046.83
A ts of trade receivable as at at 31st March, 2021

Particulars Less than6 Months & Months-1 Year 1 -2Year | 2-3¥ears | More than3 Years Not due Total
Undlspated:
Considered Good 5,384.17 802,70 1,573.50 334.28 131.34 6,627.84 | 14,854 23
Considered Doubtful . - 40.17 2242 17118 23377
Disputed:
Considered Good - -
Considered Doubtful - - - 210.20 - 210.20
Gross Carrylng Amount 5,384.17 8OL7G 1,614.07 566.90 302.52 6,627.84 | 15,298.20
Lass: Provish - = 40.17 232.62 171.18 44397
Net carrying t 5,284.17 802.70 | 1573.90 334.28 13134 | 6,627.84 | 14,854.23
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{Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Note &
Cash and cash equlvalents
Cash on hand 0.47 0.91
Balances with banks in current accounts 59.51 45.28
Term deposits with maturity less than 3 months at inception 2,262.34 -
Total 2,322.32 46.1%
Note 9
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Margin money deposits (under lien with banks} 533.98 640,40
Total 533.98 640.40
Note 10
Other Financial assets
{Unsecured, considered good)
Security deposits 32.22 37.38
Forward contract assets 0.49 0.62
Total 32.71 38.00
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{Rupees In lakhs}

Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Note 11
Other current assets
Unbilled revenue
Contralct waork in progress {construction cost incurred plus recognised profit less 251,300.41 1,93,45297
recognised losses to date)
Less : Progress billings 1,598,468 .95 1,55,663.06
Gross amount due from customers for contract waork 52,840.46 33,759.91
Provision for Doubtful receivable 548.54 548.54
52,291.92 33,211.37
Indirect tax balances/credits 4,924.24 3,229.73
Advances to suppllers 1,505.06 42492
Prapayment and others 1,052.21 724,54
Security deposits 28.39 42.26
Total 59,801.82 37,632.82
Note 12
Equity share capltal
Authorised :
400,000,000 Equity shares {As at 31 of March 2021 : 400,000,000 ) of Rs.10 each 40,000,008 40,000.00
I$3ued, subscribed and fully paid up:
395,875,880 equity shares {As at 31 March 2021: 395,875,880) of Rs.10 each fully paid up 39,587.59 39,587.59
Reconclllation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year :
Particulars As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Murmnber of shares Amount in lakhs
35,58,75.8380  39,58,75.880 39,587.59 39,587.59

Outstanding at the beginning and end of the year

Terms / rights attached to equity shares

The Company has a single class of equity shares. Each sharehoider is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the
Board of Directors Is subject to the approval of the shareholders. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive
the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

5hares in respect of each class in the Company held by shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Name of the holder No. of Shares % No. of Shares %
ISW Steel Limited and its nominees 19,79,37,940 50% 19,79,37,940 50%
Severfield Mauritius Limited and 1ts nominees 19,79,37,940 5% 19,79,37,940 50%
Shares in respect of each promotors holding shares in the Company
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Name of the holder No. of Shares % No. of Shares %
I5W Steel Limited and its nominees 19,79,37,940 50% 19,79,37,940 50%
Severfield Mauritius Limited and its nominees 19,79,37,940 S0% 19,79,37,940 50%
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(Rupees In lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Note 13
Other equity
Retained earnings {8,137.06) (9,223.34)
Other comprehensive income/{loss) {108.41) {65.95)
Total (8,245.47) (9,289.29)
Note 14 (a)
Borrowings [secured) (Non-current)
Term loan from bank
Rupee term loan at amortized cost 1,831.39 1,818.14
Less: current maturity of long term borrowings(refer note 16) 813.96 559,43
Total 1,017.43 1,258.71

Details of security:

Rupee term loan from bank aggregating to Rs.1,831.39 lakh {31 March 2021: Rs. 1,818.14 lakh) was secured by first charge by way of
hypothecation on property, plant and equipmaent {excluding land and building) of the Company and second charge by way of hypothecation on
antire current assets (present and future} of the Company. The loan was bearing floating interest rate of bank plus 2.75%. Repayment of term

loan in 16 quarterly installment.

Note 14 (b)

Lease Liabilities

Lease Liabilities 815.36 1,154.40
Less: Current Maturity of lease liabilities {326.41} {343.81})
Total 488.95 810.59

The details of lease liabllities are mentioned below:

Particulars

Opening balance of IND AS 116 1,154.40 1442.41

Addition - -

Interest expense 76.91 132.25

Cash Outflow {415.95) {420.26)

Cancellation of Lease Agreement - -

Closing balance 815.36 1,154.40

Current 32641 343.81
Non-Current 488.95 810.59
Note 14 (¢}

Security deposits 300.00 300.00
Total 300.00 300.00
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[Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Note 15
Provislons {non-current)
Provislon for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity {refer note 29) 235.65 176.20
Provision for compensated absences (refer note 29) 184.52 150.73
Total 420,17 326.93
Note 16
Borrowings (current)
Secured
Working capital loans from banks 10,836.82 12,992.25
Current maturity of long term borrowings 813.96 559.43
Total 11,650.78 13,551.68

Details of security

Working capital loans {repayable on demand) from banks aggregating to Rs. 10,836.43 lakhs {31 March 2021:12,992.25 lakhs) is secured by first
charge by way of hypothecation on all current assets including stock {present and future} of the Company, second charge an property, plant and
equipment (excluding land and building) of the Company. The working capital loans are bearing floating interest rate of bank plus 0.80% to

3.60%.(31st March 2021: 0.80% to 3.60%)

Quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the company with banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of

accounts.

Note 17
Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
Qther than acceptances {refer note 35}

Total outstanding dues of ereditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Acceptances

Other than acceptances
Total

3,747.45 1,190.23

29,228.11 12,953.63
11,823.32 5,471.60
44,798.88 23,615.46
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{Rupees In lakhs)
Trade Payable Ageing Schedule (from the due date of payment):
Particulars Less than 1 -2 Year 2-3 Years More than 3 Unbliled Not due Total
1 Year Yesrs
As at March 31, 2022
Disputed:
MSME {applicable to Indian cos) -
Others -
Others:
MSME{applicable to Indian cos) BB5.58 74.96 103.92 125.68 - 2,557.31 3,747.45
Others 7,363.47 95.47 45.82 51.78 558.15 32,936.74 41,051.43
Total 8.249.05 170.43 149.74 177.46 558.15 35,494.05 44,798.88
Trade Payable Ageing Scheduls (from the due date of payment):
Particulars Ll 1 -2Year 3-3vears | MOTEUANI | iled Not due Total
1 Year Years
As at March 31, 2021
Disputed:
MSME (applicable to Indian cos)
QOthers z E -
Others:
MSME(applicable to Indian cos) 1,025.29 51.76 42.19 70.99 - - 1,190.23
Others 4,604.71 507.49 38.12 24.01 265.00 16,985.50 22,425.23
Total 5,630.00 559.25 80.31 95.00 265.00 16,985.90 23,615.46
S b Co ™ b
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JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

(Rupees in lakhs)

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Note 18

Other current financial liabilities
Accrued Salary

Payables for capital projects
Interest accrued

Total

Note 19
Other current liabilities
Progress billings

Less: Contract work in progress (construction cost incurred plus recongnised profit

less recognised losses to date)

Gross amount due to customers for contract work

Deferred Goverments Grants *

Statutory liabilities {includes TDS, GST and PF liabilities}

Advances from customers
Total

761.08 785.15
98.88 231.28
1,011.51 933.84
1,871.47 1,950.27
81,517.48 48,363.40
78,569.87 45,264.78
2,947.61 3,098.62
250.54 259,54
210.84 170.76
23,311.13 13,749.32
26,729.12 17,278.24

* Represents government assistance in the form of duty benefit availed under Export Promotion Capital goods (EPCG) Scheme on purchase of
property, plant and equipments accounted for as government grant and recognised as income upon fulfillment of corresponding export

obligation (Refer note 33)

Note 20

Provisions {current)

Provision for ernployee benefits
(a) Provision for employee benefits:

Provision for gratuity (refer note 29)
Provision for compensated absences (refer note 29}

{b} Provision - others:

Provision for estimated losses on contracts

Total

For movement in provisions refer movement schedule helow:

126.47 120.65
24.43 14.88

150.90 135.53

103.23

254.13 135.53

Provision for estimated

As at March 31,2022

Particulars
josses on contracts

As at April 01, 2020 444.79
Recognised during the year -
Utilization during the year {444.79)
As at March 31,2021 -
Recognised during the year 103.23
Utilization during the year -
Unused amounts reversed

103.23
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(|
|
\ N ulestarn Exprass Hghvay

.‘. I 3
‘\'\‘ \ RULEEER L L/ /
W ~ - ;




I5W SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED

Nates to the Financial )
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
= March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Note 21
Irom operations[refer note 34 and 38)
Contracied revenue
Vame of complated coniracts 11429 7.558.96
Work in progress
s at the end of the pear 3,20777.75 2,38,719.45
At at the beginning of the year 2,38,719.45 2,01 70041
91,058.30 37,019.09
Sales of Traded Goods 5,015.74 90690
Other operating rqvenus
Sale of scrap material A0 TH B48.62
Income from design services 26.08 44.49
Total 1,00,631. 29 46,467.96
Note 22
Other Income
Interest income fram banks on deposits 4370 50.90
Interest on income tax refund 6897 1937
Prowislon / liabilities no langer required written back 175.20 475.90
Bad debis recovered (net} 57.68
MThA gain on forward conttact .18 .
Other mizcellanaous incoms . - 707
Total 288.05 650.92
Note 23 N
Cout of (Bnciudl
Purchase of materialy and companents T5,174.10 3039675
Equipment hire charges{refer note 31| 1,367.94 327563
Transpart charges 2,018 24 692,66
Draughting-design charges 335.54 T4.82
Contract labour and subcontracking charges 151r73 71234
Total B80,417.59 35,152,140
Note 24
Empioyee benefits gupense
Salaries, wages and bonls 4,845 16 5001 92
Contr/bution to provident and cther funds {refer note 29) 0252 208 08
Gratuity (refer note 29) 6688 6. 30
Staff wellare 17,23 167 .67
Total 5361.79 5,580.97
Hote 25
Flnanca cost1
Interast an becrowings from banks 1,97459 2,645.07
Interest on Lesse Liabilities 7691 13225
Interest on Others 178.56 25107
Other borrowing costs {indudes LC, BG,bill discouting charges commissian and
barik chargas) 1,258.00 610.53
Todal 3,483.06 3.638.92
Note 26
Othar anpenses
Rent 3378 5219
Repairs and malntenance
-Plant and equipment 476 10,71
-Buldings 17.00 T30
-Others 0.26 0.84
Inturance 161.35 309,54
Rates and taxes 9.75 70,95
C5A Expenditure [rafar note no-42) 48,15 B1.15
[img and convey 111.02 8967
Commssion an scrap salas 21.87 07
Legal and professional fees 17548 155,75
Qffice maintenance expenses 108.28 48,51
Payment ta Auditors {refer note balow| 8274 6a.78
MITH loss on forward contract 08
Net loss on foreign currency transactions and irensletion 2563 51.04
Provislon for daubiful debs 1497 992.51
Loss on tale of fixed assets{net] 232
Bad debis written off 4217
Miscallaneous eipanses 280.98 228.06
Total _ 1,187.55 2,169.13
Pay to P H
For audit [including limited reviews) 57.00 57.00
Far tax sudit 3,00 3.00
For tasation mattars 2063 273
For cartification service 040 041
For out of pocket expenses 11 104
Total 8274 BE.7E




JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
Notes 1o the Standalone Financisl Ststements

Hote 2T
L Fi e vakyns and

I, Accourting chessification end falr values
Carrying amounts of financiel aveets and Mnancisl Nobilitles are presented below:

[Rupees in lakhs]
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 202
Carrying value

Financhil assats

Maswrad st amontisad cost

Hon-cutrant

Cther financhl assets T4 FFER
Current

Trade recelvables 2604582 1465923
Caah and cash equivalents PRk #6.1%
Bank balances other than cazh and cash squivalents 53398 640 40
Other flasncisl assels ann IN00
Tetal fnanciel susts 19,283.33 15,892.81

Anancial Rabitda

Testurad at smontied cost

Hon-currest

Boerowings 101743 125871
Lease Liabllties A88.95 1059
(e financial lwblkthes 3000 30000
Curent

Barrowings 11,550.78 1355168
Trade payahbles 44,796.88 2161546
Lewen Llabllitles 326 91 LA
Other currend fnanclal Rabiiey LB71.47 1,950.27
Total financial flabilivies measured as amortised cost 50,453.92 4143052

Tha fair value of daposits, irnde recetvables, cosh and cash equivalents, bank balancas, loans, bomrowings, Irade payabies sd othar lnanclels Kablllies are considered to be same as
thelr cannying value.

Falr valua of financial nssat / (liabikyh

[Rupees in lakhs)
Fakt valu Fair value as at h d
particulers hierrch March 31,2022 | Marchar, 2021 Wy input
Unhlfty at Fir value basis

Foreign curmency forsands contrms Lewvel 2 049 062 |DAcounted  cash  faw
Future  cash  fovs  we
estimated hased on forward
exchange et and
contracled eschange mtes,
ciacounted at a rate reflect
the credit ritk on varkou
colnternarties

Transiers batwaan Lovels

Thers have been na transfers b Lavaks during the reporiing periods

€. Finandnl rjsk managemant

Th Comparry b i to Ihe riiks griging from Angnclal inslrumeants:

= Credht risk ; and

= Liguidity risk

I, Risly, munsgemant framework

The Company’s Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establish and Ight of the rrsk k

The Company's risk policles are to identfy and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk lmits and conirols and to

monitor Hsks and adherence 1o fimits. Rlsk management policies and systems are reviewsd regularly to rellect changes in markst conditions and the Company's

activities. The Comgany, through its trakidng snd management standards and procedures, 3ims to maintain a disciplined and e tva control I which

all amployees undersiand ther roles and oblgatians

The audit committes is assisted in its oversight role by intermal audit, Intemal sudit undertakes both regular and adhoc raviews of risk management conirgls ang
procedures. the results of which are reported ra the audit committes.




15W SEVERFIELD STRULCTURES LIMITED
Motes to the Standalone Financial Statemants

Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management [continued)

MNota 27
ii. Credit risk

Credit risk referes to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial |oss bo the Company. Credit
risk encompasses of both, the direct risk of default and the risk of deterloration of credit worthiness as well as concentration nisk. The
Company has adoptad a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as
mean of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. Company’s credit risk arises principally from the loans, trade receivablas, cash and
cash equivalents and bank deposits

Trade recelvables

The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer, However, management alse
considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in which
customers operate.

The Company has an internal risk appraizal process in which the concerned head of departments prowde thair inputs with reference to the
credit policy of the Company. Each new customer 15 analysed individually for creditworthiness bafore the Company’s standard payment and
delivery terms and conditions are offered. The Company’s review includes external ratings, if they are available, and in some cases bank
references, Sale limits are established for aach customer and reviewed periodically

At March 31, 2022, the Company’s has three customear who accounts for more then 10% of total deblors amounting ta Rs.14,578.54 lakhs
which is 56% of total debtors and As at 31 March 2021 one customer who accounts for more then 10% of total debtors amounting to INR
7,696.20 lakhs)

The ageing of trade recelvables that were not impaired was as follows.

Carrying ampunt {Rupees |n [akhs)

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Meither past due nor impaired 13,374.32 6.627.54
Past due 1-30 days 4,907.68 1,69541
Past due 31-90 days 1,258.71 236793
Past due 21 plus days 6,506.12 4,163.05
26,046.83 14,854.23
% t beli that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by mare than 30 days are still collectible in ful), based on historical

payment behaviour and axtensive analysis of customer credit risk.

An analysis of the credit quality of trade and other receivables that are nerther past due nor impaired is luated by r g t on
regular intervals and is considered ta be good

Loans to others

The credit worthiness of the counter party is evaluated by the mant on an ongoing basis and is considered to be good. The Company

did not have any amounts that were past dus but not impaired.The Company has no collateral in respect of these loans,

Cash and cash equivalants and other bank balances
Tha Company maintains its cash and cash squivalents and other bank balances with credlt worthy banks and reviews it on cngoing basis

The credit worthiness of such hanks and financial institutions is evaluated by the g 1t on an ongelng basis and is considered to be
good.

Derbvatives

The derivatives are entered into with credlt worthy banks. The credit worthiness of such banks is lusted by tha 1t on an

ongoing basls and 15 considered to be good.




J5W SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements
Note 27

Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)

Tii. Liquidity rigk

Liquldity risk refers to the risk of financial distress or extraordinary high financing costs arising due to shortage of liquid funds in a situation where a
business conditions unexpectedly deteriarate and requiring financing. The Company generates sufficient cash flow for operations, which togather with
the available cash and cash equlivalents provide liquidity in the short-term and long-term. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity

profiles of financial assets and llabilities.

The following tahle detalls the Company's remalning contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial labilitias with agreed repayment periods and
non-derivative financial assets. The table has been drawm up based on the undlscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on

which the Company s required to pay.

As at March 31, 2022

Financial Assets

Non current

Other financial assets

Current

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Other financial assets

Total

Finanelal Liablllties

Non currenmt

Borrowings

Lease Liabilities

Other financial liabilities
Cumrent

Borrowings

Trade payables

Leasea Liabilities

Other current finzncial liabilities
Total

As at March 31, 2021

Financlal Assets

Non current

Other financial assets

Current

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than above
Cther financial assets

Total

Flnancial Liabilitles

Non Current

Borrowings

Lease Liabilities

Other financial liabitities
Current

Borrowings

Trade payables

Lease Liahilities

Other current financial lizbilities
Total

LCarrying amount

347.49

26,046.83
2,322.32
533.98
3271
29,283.33

1,017.43
488.95
300.00

11,650.78
44,798.88
326.41
1,871.47
60,453.92

Carrying amount

31398

14,854.23
46.19
64040
38.00
15,892.81

1,258.71
810.59
300.00

13,551.68
23,615.46
343.81
1,950.27
41,830.52

Contractual cash flows

{Rupees in lakhs)

M than 5
Less than 1 year 1-5 years ore than Total
years

B 34749 347.49
26,046.83 26,046.83
2,322.32 2,322.32
533.98 533.98
32.71 - 3271
28,935.84 347.49 - 29,283.33
101743 1,017.43

488.95 488.95

300.00 300.00

11,650.78 - 11,650.78
44,798.88 44,798.88
32b6.41 - 32641
1,871.47 - 1,871.47
58,647.54 1,306.38 - 50,453.92
Contractual cash flows {Rupees In lakhs)

Less than 1 year 1-5 years More than 5 Total
years

- 313,99 313.99
14,854.23 - 14,854.23
46,19 - 46.19
640.40 640.40
38.00 - 38.00
15,578.82 313.99 15,892.81
- 1,258.71 1,258.71

- 810.59 810.59

- 300.00 300.00
13,551.68 13,551.68
23,615.46 - 23,615.46
343381 - 343.81
1,950.27 . 1,950.27
39,461.22 2,369.30 - 41,830.52

The company alsc has access to undrawn warking capital sanctioned facilities from the bank Rs. 253.63 crore.

Collateral:

The Campany has pledged its current assets in order to fulflll certaln collateral requirements for the banking facilities extended to the Company. T

a obligation to/ re_leas{é.tﬂg pled"ge:@ce these banking facilities are surrendered, {Refer note 2,14 (a} and 16).

13104 Floar _r\-

i' .I.. ; ,.




J5W SEVERFEELD STRUCTURES LIWITED
Mobes to the Jalghe Financial

Nove 27
Financlal Instruments — Fair vahues snd stk managamant {continued]
e, Markat risk

Markat risk s the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates, ntarest ratas and equity prices — will affect the Company’s income
or the value of Its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of markat risk management Is to manage and zontrol market risk exposures within

P p while optimising the return
. Currency risk
The Company is expased to currency fisk an account of its irade recalvablas and payables in foreign curency. The functional currency of the Company s
Indign Rupee, These other hles are p ity In US dollars, GBP and Euro

The Company uses forward michanga contracts to hedgs its currancy risk, mest with a maturity of kess than one year from the reporting date

The currancy profile of inandal acsets and financis! liabil d Inated in y ather than the financial currency of the company as at the year
end are as Tollows:
{Rupsas i lskhs)

March 31,2022 Mwrch31,2022  Merch 31, 2022

usD EURD GOP
Finumcial agsats
Current
Trade recalvables 219 1513
7219 1513
Financial NabiNties
Current
Payables for capital projects BEE “66.71
Trade payablas 18787 36.09 455.0%
10563 3609 A55.05
*The Company Lses [orward axchangs contracts to hadge ks currancy risk,
[Rupees In lakhs)
March 31, 2021 March 31,2021 March 31, 2021
usx EURD GHP
FinanciH assets
Trage receivables 1219 - 41.95
T8 - 4195
Financinl Hubiitles
Cuvrant
Payables for capifal projects 256 *126 81 -
Trade prysbles 553.98
B.66 126.81 553.98
*The Company uses forward exchange contracts te hedge its currency risk.
The following exchange rates have been applied at the pear end,
Year-and spot rine
INR March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
uso BT 73.50
EUR B4, 24 B6.10
GBP 99 46 100.95
Senskivity anabysh
The following table detalls the Company's sensilivity ta a 1% Ivrease and decreass In the TNR against the ralzvant foreign currencies net of hedge
g impact. The ity analysis includes onby ding foreign y o inated ¥ ltems and adjusts their translalion at the

year end for a 1% change in foreign currency rates, with all other variablas held constant A positive number below indicates an increass in proflt or equity
where INR strengthens egainst the relevant forefgn currency. For a 1% waakening of INR against the relevant foreign cuency, thers would be a
comparable impact an profit or equity, and the balances balow would b negative

Prodit { {lnss)
Effact In INR (Rupees i lakhsh . kening
Warch 31, 2022
Financial assats Financial Financial sssets Financial
liabilitins Rabikilies
USD - 1% Movement 072y 107 072 {207}
EUR - 1% Movement . 036 D36}
GBP - 1'% Movement [0.15) 455 01s 4,55}
Profit f {loss)
Effect in INR [Ruj in lakhs) 4
March 31, 3021
Fingnelal aszets Financial Financlal a1sets Financial
liabilities Habdlitles
USD - 1% Movement 072) 009 nr {008}
EUR - 1% Movement 117 {121
GRP - 1% Movement [LEF] 554 LLE ¥ {5.54)




JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
Motes to the Standalone Financial Statements

Note 27
Financial instruments - Falr values and risk management {continued})

vl. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the market interest rates.
The Company is exposed to interest rate risk because the funds are borrowed at floating interest rates. Interest rate risk is measured by using the cash flow
sensitivity for changes in variable interest rates. The horrowings of the Company are principally denominated in rupees. The Company has exposure to
interest rate risk, arising principally on changes in base lending rates.

Exposure to interest rate risk
The following table provides a break up of the Company's fixed and floating rates borrawings:

Nominal amount In INR {Rupees In lakhs)
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Borrowlngs
Variable rate borrowings 12,668.21 14,810.39
Total 12,668.21 14,810.39

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for floating rate liabilities assuming the amount of the liability
cutstanding at the year end was outstanding for the whole year.

A reasonabiy possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased / (decreased} profit or loss by the amounts
shawn below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant.
Profit or {loss) In INR {Rupees in lakhs})

INR Rupees in lakhs 100 bp increase 100 bp decrease
March 31, 2022

Variable-rate instruments (126.68) 126.68
Cash flow sensitivity (net) {125.68) 12668
March 31, 2021

Variable-rate instrurnents (148.10) 148.10
Cash flow sensitivity (net) {148.10) 148.10




JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

Note 28
Capital management

The Company policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and
to sustain future development of the business. Management monitors the return on capital as well as the level of
dividends to ordinary sharehoiders.

The Company monitors capital using Adjusted net debt to equity ratio. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined

as total debt less cash and bank balances
{Rupees in lakhs)

As at March 31,2022  As at March 31, 2021
Borrowings {includes lease liabilities of Rs.815.36 13,483.57 15,964.79
{akhs){31 March 2021 Rs.1,154.40 lakhs)

Less - Cash and cash equivalents (2,322.32) {46.19)
Less - Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (533.98) {640.40)
Adjusted net debt 10,627.27 15,278.21

Total equity 31,342.12 30,298.30
Gearing ratio .34 0.50




15 SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
Motes i@ the Jal

Financlal

Note 29
The Company oparales dafined coniribution relirement benefil plans for all qualifying employees

{i} Defined Conribution Plans:

The Company recognisad Rs. 202,52 lakhs for 31 March, 20221 31 March 2021 ; Rs. 205.08 lakhs) provident fund coninbutions , Labour Wellare Fund contnbutlons and
Emplovaas state insurance corporation contributions in the Statement of Profit and Loxs {refer note na, 24}

[ii} Dafined Benefit Plan:

Gratuity

The gratuity liabillty is parily funded and the same is accounted for based on third party or independ ial

Under the graluily plan, the eligible employees are enliled 1o pestreliremenl benefit al the rale of 15 days salary for sach year of service untd Ine retirement age of 58 years
wilhoul any payment cading Tha vasling parlad for graluity as payabla under The Payment of Graluiy Act is 5 years

Under the P plan leave is payable 1o al ehgrble emp of §&p from the pany dus b celi P o0, resig

or dealh al the rale of daily salary as par curent accumulalion of leave days with & ceiling of 190 days

The plans in India lypicafly expose he Company io acluarial risks such as inlerest rate sk, salary risk, assel Kablity malching risk and modality Ask

Interast rate risk A fall in 1he discount rate which is Enked t¢ the G Sec Rale will increass the present value of the liabdlity requiring
higher provision

Salary nak The presan| value of tha defined benefit plan Rabilty is calculaied by reference 10 Ihe future salarms of members
A3 such, an merease in salary of Ihe bers more Ihan d |avel will i the plan's liabiity

Mo edhwir paovsl-rali benafils are providad to the employ

The mosl recant acturial valuation of tha plan azselz and the presenl value of the defined benelil obbgaton were camed out al 31 March, 2022 by M/ K A Pandil
Consullanls & Acluanies The present valug of the defined bansfil oblgalion, and he ralaled currenl sarvica cosl and pasl sarvice cost, were measured using the propcled
unit credil method

The lollpwing table sets out the unfunded status of the defined benefil scheme and the amount recopnised In the financial statement

{Rupess in lakhs)
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Defined benefit obllgatlon 401.44 2421
Fair value of Plan Astets at the end of the year {39.32) 137 36}
Mat Obligation atthe end of the year 352,12 296.85
A. Movermnaent in nel defined banafit (assat)/Hinbility
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benelit (asset)f habiity and its components
(Rupees in lakhs)
Defined benefit abligation Falr value of plan assets Net defined banelt

{aste1) / Habikty

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2022 March 31,2021 | March31, 2022 March 31, 1021

Opening balanca 334.21 315,98 3736 3348 296 85 28250
Simtement of profit and loss ;- {refer note 24)

Current service cost 46,55 57.03 . - 4655 57.03
Past service cost - . - -

Transferred 1o trial run expense . . B :
Inlerest cost 2289 21,55 256 2.28 2033 19.27
403.65 394.56 39.92 35.76 363.74 358.80

Included in OCI :-
Remeasurement loss {gain]:
Actuarial loss (gain) arising fram; - . s :
Demographic assumplions 27.90 37.30 - . 27.90 2730

Financual assumptions 2241 {087} - - 2241 087}

Exparlence adjustment {5.55) [22.68) - - [5.59] {22.68}

Return on plan assets excluding interest income - - 10,60) 1.60 060 11,600
448,37 398.31 39.22 37.36 409.06 35095

Qthar :- -

Benefits paid 145.93) 164.10) . 146.93) | 164.10}

Closing balance (refer nate 15 and 19) 40144 334.21 39.32 3736 362.12 29695

The current service cost and net interest anpansa for the year are included in “Employee benefits expense” line kem in the statement of profit and loss
The remeazuremant of the net defined Nabiity i Included in other comprehensive income

Represanted by
Rs. in Iokhs
Met defined benefit liabikty {refer note 15 and 20} 36212 296 85
36212 296.85




B. Plan assets

Since gratuity plan is partly funded, hance figures In respect of plan assets as at March 31, 2022 are Rs. 39 33 lakhs. (March 31, 2021 : Rs 37 37 Lakhs}

€. Dafined benelit abligations
i. Actunrinl mzsumptions

The lollowing were the principal acluarial assumpiions at the reporting date {

Discount rate

Salary escalation rate
Attrition rate
Mortality Rate

ii. Sensitivity analysis

R bl e atthe

obhgation by the amounts shown below

Discount rate (1% movement)
Future salary growth {1% movemen)
Rate of employ (1% )

March 31, 2022
&9
5.00%
10.00%
Indign  Assured

March 31, 2021
6.85%
4.00%
5.00%

Indian  Assured

Lives Martality Lives  Mortality

2012-14 {Urban)

2006-08
{Uitimate}

ing date to one of the ralevant actuariz| assumptions, holding othar assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit

{Rupess in lakhs)
Merch 31, 2022 farch 31, 2021
Increase I e,
{2290} {27 03} 3142
2602 3202 {2757}
252 6598 {797

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method thet extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obNgation as a result of reasonable changes in key

assymptions occurring at the end of the reparting period,
[ the above

F , 0 p

end of the reporting period, which is the sarme 2 that applked in calculating the defined benefit obligation liabilty recognised In the balance sheet.

There wat no change in the methods and
Expected future cash flows

The expected future cash flows in respect of gratulty as at March 31, 20227 were a3 follows
Expacted contrbution

ione ysed i p ing the ilvity analysis from prior years.

y anahysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the profected unlt credit method at the

The wxpacted contributions for defined benefit plan for the next financlal year will be in lina with tha contribution for the vear ended March 31, 2022, ie. B3 12054 lakhs

{March 31, 2021 ; Ps.126 57 Lakhs)

{iny usadIn for 1 at A3 In [akhs
Particulars Mareh 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Present value of unfunded obligation |refer note 15 and 20| 208.95 16561
P 1in the of Profit and Loss Fiss 3370
Discount rate (p.a ) 6.90%p-a, 5.85%p.a.
Sajary escalation {p.a} S%pa 4% p.a
| Attrition rate [p.a) 10% pa 5% pa
Nota 30
Eernings par shara
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Profit attribuiakds to the equity sharehckders (R4 ) (4) [R3 in lakhs) 1,08628 {1578.23)
Waighted aversge number of equity shares cutslanding HNos 39,58,75,880 39,58,75,850
during the year for basic and diluled eamings per shace
®
Nominal vake per share (Rs.) Hos 10 10
Eamings per share - basic and diuled {4/B} Rs. 027 10.40}




J5W SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements
Note 31

Operating lease as leasee

a Carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements durlng the period : Refer Note 2{b)
b Carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movement during the period : Refer Note 14(b}
{Rupees In lakhs)
¢ Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Less than one year 392,71 42191
One 10 five years 521.82 950.22
Moare than five years -
Total undiscounted lease labilities 914.53 1,372.13
Variable lease payments based on per page printed*
Particulars
Total Variable pay Estimated | impact on rent
of a 1% increase in oumber of
pagea
Leases with |ease payments based on number of pages 6.70 007
*Variable Jease pay are not included in the of lease liabilities as there is no minimum commitment and hence, the amount is not determinable.

The Company incurred during the year Rs.1,367.94 lakhs{March 31, 2021 Rs.3,275.63 lakhs) towards expenses relating to short-term leases of
machinery - Cranes, fork-lifters, cherrypickers etc which can he cancelled by giving 7 days written notice.

N Gored

\\r.h:mll‘u -4 L




JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

Note 32
Related party relationships, transactlons and balances
{A} Parties with whom the Company has entered into transactions.

1 The shareholder or venturer or the holding company of the shareholder or venturer in respect of which the reporting
enterprise |s a Joint venture
ISW Steel Limited
Severfield Pic
Severfield Mauritius Limited

2 Subsidiary of the Company
JSW Structural Metal Decking Limited

3 Enterprises over which the shareholder or venturer in respect of which the reporting enterprise is a joint venture exercise
control / significant influence
Severfield reeve International Limited
Fisher Engineering Limited
Severfield (NI Limited
Severfield Products and Processing Itd
Severfield (UK) Limited
Atlas Ward Structures Limited
15W Paradip Terminal Private Limited
15W Vijaynagar Metallics limited
15W Steel Coated Products Limited

4 Key management personnel (KMP)
Dr. Derek Randall
Mr. Pawan Kedia
Mr. Rajeev Pai
Mr. Jugal Kishore Tandon
Ms. Anuradha Bajpai
Mr. Vaibhav Bhardwaj (resigned w.e.f.0t. 16,10.2020}
Mr. Ranjeet Pillai
Mr. Santanu Choudhury
fs. Nupur Burman {from w.e.f.D1.18.03.2020 10 16.10,2020)
Ms, Swatika Gupta
Mr. Alan Dunsmore
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JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

Noie 33
Contlngent liabilitles and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

{Rupees in lakhs}
Particulars March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Contingent liabilities
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts

Disputed clakms/levies in respect of VAT/CST/WCT/GST{including show couse notice) 613.48 447,82
Commitments

8. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and 149.21 28110
not provided For

b. The eompany has imported capital goods under the export promaotion capital 1,557.25 1,557.25

goods scheme to utilise the benefits of concessional customs duty rates. These
benefits are subject to future export within the stipulated period refer note-20

MNote 34
Segment reporting

The Campany 5 mainly In the business of design, fabrication and erection of structural steel business primarily operating in India. This

business is regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker for assessment of Company's performance and resource allocation,

A, Non-Curvent aperating assets,
All non-current assets other than financial instruments of the company are located In india

8. Information about major customers
Revenue from major customers of the Company was Rs 12,688.42 lakhs as on March 31, 2022 {Previous year March 31 2021: Rs.15,473.42

lakhs.]

. Revenue from aperations
{Rupees in takhs)
For the year ended March 31, 2022 For the year ended March 31, 2021
Within India Outside ndia Total Within India Qutside India Total
Revenue from operations 1,00,605.21 26.08 1,00,631.29 46,423.52 44.44 45,467 .96

Revenue from operations has been allocated on the basis of location of customers,




JSW SEVERFIELD 5TRUCTURES LIMITED
Mates to the Standalone Finandal Statements
Nate 35 {Rupees In lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2022  March 31, 2021

Dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 17)
The amounts remaining unpaid to micra and small suppliers as at the end of the

year
Principal 3,528.85 992.78
Interest 218.60 197.45

The amount of interest paid by the buyer as per the Micro Small and Medium Enterprises
Developmeant Act, 2006 [MSMED Act, 2006)

The amounts of the payments made to micro and small suppliers heyond the appointed day during - .
each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been
paid but beyond the appeinted day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under
MSMED Act, 2006

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpald at the end of each accounting year

FY-2016-17 48.90 48.90
F¥-2017-18 17.52 17.52
FY-2018-19 4184 41.84
FY-2013-20 48.58 48.58
FY-2020-21 40.61 40.61

FY-2021-22 211s
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeading years, until such -
date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of

disallowance as a deductible expenditure under the MSMED Act, 2006

Note 36
Derivatives
The Company uses foreign currency forward contracts to mitigate its risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations relating to certain
firm commitments.,
The Forward Exchange Contracts entered into by the Company and remaining outstanding are as under:

As at No of Type Currency value INR Equivalent in
tracts Iakhs

March 31,2022 1 Buy Euro 79,500 £8.00

March 31,2021 2 Buy Eure 1,59,000 138.30

The year end foreign currency exposures that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise are given below:

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Type Currency Amountin | Rupees in lakhs Amount in Rupees in lakhs
Forelgn Foreign currency
Finantial assets
R UsD 98,209 7219 98,209 ¥2.19
T
rade vable GBP 13,042 15.13 39,978 41.95
Total 87.32 114.14
Flnancial liabllitles
3 N Euro 79,502 66.71 1,599,002 126.81
Trad bles - tal Projects ' e
ade payables - Capi ol UsD 12,000 B.66 12,000 8.66
Euwro 45,167 36.09 - 0.00
Trade payables ust 2,66,900 13797
GBP 4,45,274 455.05 5,80,163 553.98
Total 764.47 685.45




JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

Note 37
Income tax expenses / { benefits ) {Rupees in Lakhs}
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Profit or loss section:

(i} Deferred tax -

Income tax expense reported in profit or loss - -
Other comprehensive income section:

(1] lems not to be reclassified to profit orioss in subsequent periads
Income tax expense reported in other comprehensive income - -
Total tax expenses - -

A reconciliation of income tax eupense applicable to accounting profit / {loss) before tax at the statutory income tax rate to

recognised incame tax expense for the year indicated are as foll ows:
{Rupees in Lakhs]

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Prafit [ {loss) before tax 1,086.28 [1,578.23)
Enacted tax rate in India 25.168% 25.168%
Expected Income tax expenses / [ benefit ) at statutory tax rate 27239 {297.21)
Deferred tax asset nat recognised (273.39) 397.21
Tax expenses for the year - -
Effective tax rate - -

Deferred tax assets f { liabilities )
Significant components of deferred tax assets / [ liabilities | recognized in the financial statements are as follows :

{Rupees in Lakhs)
Asat Recognised / Recognised in /
. " =~ - For the period ended
Deferred tax balance in relation to March 31, reversed through reclassified from other pe
) L Mareh 31, 2022
2021 profit and loss  comprehensive income
Property, plant and equipment [1,973.56} (323.77) . {2,297.33)
f 1
Carried forward buslin?ss oss f 1,853.74 296.43 2150.17
unabsorbed depreciation
Provisions for employes benefit 116.39 27.34 - 143.73
Others 343 E - 3.43
Total - - -
{Rupees in Lakhs)
As at Recognised f Recognised in / .
For the period ended
Deferred taxn balance in relation to April 11,  reversed through  reclassified from other ° pen
March 31, 2021
2020 profit and loss  comprehensive income
Property, plant and equipment (1,774.11) 1199.45) - {1,973.56)
Carried forward business loss / 1,652.07 20167 -
unabsorbed depreciation 1,853.74
Provisions for employee benefit 118.61 {2.22) - 116.39
Others 3.43 - - 3.43
Total - - -

Deferred tax assets on carry forward business loss f unabsorbed depreciation have been recognised to the extent of deferred
tax liabilities on taxable temporary differences available. It is expected that any reversals of the deferred tax Nabillty would
be offset against the reversal of the deferred tax asset.
Expiry schedule of below losses on which deferred tax assets have been not recognised as at 31st March 2022

Less than 1

Particulars year 1-5 years More than § years Total
Business losses 155.76 - 155.76
Unabsorbsed depreciation - - 896,39 896.39
Expiry schedule of below losses on which deferred tax assets have been not recognised as at 31st March 2021
. Less than 1

Particulars year n 1-5 years More than 5 years Total
Business lnsses 1,016.50 - 1,016.50
Unabsorbsed depreciation . 4,443 .63 4,443.63




15W Severfield Structures Limited

Motes to the Financlal
Note 38

Disclogure under (nd AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

|Rupe=es in lakhs)
March 31, 2022 harch 31, X121

Details of contract asset
Unbilled Revenue:

Balance as on April 1, 2021 3321137 35,110.83
Add: Cost Incurred plus attributable proflts on contracts-in-prograss 2,17,54951 1,508,342 14
Less: Prograss billings made towards contracls-in-progress 1,998,468 96 1,59,693.06
Less: Due from contract custamers impalred during the reporting period - S48 .54
Balance as on March 31, 2022 52,291.92 33,211.37

Details of contract Kabilities
Advances receivad from tha customers:

Balance as on April 1, 2021 3,098 62 3,179.06
Add: Advances received from the customers 7EA19.E6 45,184 34
Lass: Cumulative revenoe recognised agalnsl advance recenad Irom the customer 7547125 42,922 25
Revenue recognised againgt the advance ived from the ¢ a3 at the beginning of the reporting perlod 3,098 62 2,342.53
Balance as on March 31, 2022 2,947.61 3099.62
in lakhs)
Particulars WMarch 31, 2022 farch 31, 2021
Within India 1,00,605.21 ABA21 52
Qutside Indla 26.08 44 44
Total revenue from contracks with custamers 1,00,631.29 46,467 96
{Rupees In lakhs)
Timing of revenue recognition March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
At & poant in time 9,422 52 1,845 52
Gver a peried of time 51,208 77 44,622 44
Tetal revenwe from contracts wilh cuslomers 1,060,631 29 46,467 96
{Rupees in lakhs)
Product wise March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Design, Fabricated and Erection of Stuctural Stee| Struciures 91,18269 44,578.00
Sakes of Traded Goods G015 74 99490
Sale of scrap matenial 3,406 79 A48 62
Income from design services 2608 44 44
100,631 29 46,967 96
Mote: The major product sold by the Comp is Design, fabri and ion of structural steel structures
Raconcilistion of the revenus rom with with L disclosed in the sag)
{Rupees in lakhs)
Revenue March 31, 2022 Marth 31, 2021
External Customar 10063129 44 467 96
Intar-ssgment .
Inter dj and elk ) - .
Total 1,00,631 29 44,467 96

There |5 no adjustment bebween contract price and amount recognised in statement of profit and loss aceount

Inf jan an perf & oblig in contracts with Customers:
Contract with custamers:
The following table includes revanue to be racognisad in future related to performance obligations that are islied ds the contracts with the customers as at
March 31, 2022

{Rug In lakhs)
Particulars 2023 xza 2025 Bayond 2025 Total
Contract Revenug 1,250d46 40,985 - 1,866,031
Total 1,25 (46 40,985 - - 1,566,031
The following table [nchudes revenue 1o be recagnised in future related to perlorman:e.. bligations that are ks fied ds Lhe with the 5 as ab
March 31, 202]

[Rug in lakhs)
Particulars 2022 20231 2024 Beyond 2024 Total
Contract Revanue 55,240 48,653 . 1,02,903
Total 55,240 448,663 - - 1,03,503

L]




JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

Note 39
COVID-19 Update

The Company has assessed the impact of COVID-19, on the recoverability of the receivables and other current and non-current
assets considering information available. The Company, based on the current estimatas, believes that the carrying value of
these assets are recoverable. Considering the fact that the global situation is evolving continuously, the economic impact of
pandemic could be different from that estimated till date by the management. Tha management is continuously monitoring the
material changes.

Note 40
Recoverability of Inventory relating to earlier contract

The Company had, in earlier peried, entered into a contract for construction and supply of pre-fabricated structural steel with
an EPC contractor {"the customer”) for the customer's a project ("the Project"). In the earlier year, the National Company Law
Tribunal {“"NCLT") had ordered liquidation of the custormer under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. Pursuant ta above, the
owner of the Project has floated a fresh tender for completion of the Project on as-is-where is basis . As at 21st March 2021 the
Company was in possession and control of semi constructed pre-fabricated structural steel relating to the Project. The Company
had submitted bid and was in discussions with the EPC contractors of the Project wherein the aforesaid inventory would be
used. Management based on an independent fair valuation had determined that the cost of such inventory is expected to be
lower than its realizable value and accerdingly, the inventory was considerad fully recaverable,

During the year 31st march 22,the aforesaid inventory is sold te third party.The company has incurred loss on this sale which
has been appropriatly charged in the standalone statement of profit and loss in the current year.

Note 41

THe Company was required to spend Rs.48.11 lakh {31 March 2022 Rs.59.32 lakhs} and has spent Rs.48.15 lakh {31ist March
2021 Rs.27.52 lakhs) towards Corporate Social Responsibility as prescribed under 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. The details
are as follows.

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31st March 2022 31st March 2021

1. Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the 48.11 £9.32
year {as prescribed under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013)

2. Amount of expenditure incurred
(i} Constructionfacquisilion of any asset - =
(i) For the purpose other than (i) above 48,15 48.15
3. Shaortfall at the end of the period/year = =
4. Total of previous years shortfall = =
5. Reason for shortfall -

Other then Other then

6. Nature of CSR activities constructionfacquisition of | construction/acquisition
assets of assets

7. Details of Related party transactions - -
8. Liability incurred by entering into coniractual obligati : -

Note 42

There are receivables of INR 72 lakhs from customer related to export of goods and services which are outstanding for more
than prescribed period under master circulars issued by Reserve Bank of India with respect to timelines for collection of export
proceeds. Management has approached its AD bank for seeking an approval for extension of the timelines for collection of such
amount, however no confirmation on extension has been received from Reserve Bank of India yet. This amount has been fully
provided in the books of account.
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JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

Note 46
Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the Balance Sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Mon-cash changes
. As at . As at
Particuars March 31,2021| Cohflows | Amortisedcost/ |\ W0, 2620
Fair value changes
Long-term borrowings 1,818.14 13.25 1,831.39
Short-term borrowings 12,992.25 {2,155.43) - 10,836.82
Lease liabilities 1,154.40 {415.95} 76.91 8§15.35
tal liabiliti f fi i
Total labilities from financing) o o0ca79|  (2,558.14) 76.91 13,483.56
activities
(Rupees in Lakhs)
Non-cash changes
) As at ) As at
Particulars March 31, 2020| Coshflows | Amortisedcost/ |\ 0y 2001
Fair value changes
Leng-term borrowings 683.87 1,134.27 - 1,818.14
Short-term borrowings 11,832.45 1,159.80 - 12,992.25
Lease Liability 1,442.41 (420.26) 132.25 1,154.40
Total liabilities from flnancing 13,958.73 1,873.81 132.25 15,964.79

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

As per our report of even date attached
= %@—U

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Firm's Registration No. 201248W/W - 100022
PAWANNEDIA

Chartered Accountants
Chairman

; !; DIN N¢: 00020570
KOOSAI LEHERY Q/,,E.,w_ D

Partner SANTANU CHOUDHURY
Membership No.112399 Chief Financial Q

DEREK RANDALL
Managing Director
DIN No: 02433966

SWATIKA GUPTA
Company Secretary
M.Ship no. A28582

Place: Mumbai
Date: 4 May 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of
JSW Severfield Structures Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of JSW Severfield Structures Limited (hereinafter
referred to as the “Holding Company™) and its subsidiary (Holding Company and its subsidiary together
referred to as “the Group”™), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2022, and the
consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2022, of its consolidated
profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor ‘s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements
in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant
provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Registered Offlce:

B SR & Co japartnership lirm with Aagistration Mo, BAG1223) comvertad Into B 5 R & Co LLP 14¢h F N Wi IT Park 4, Mesco Cemer,
{a Limbed Liability Fartnership with LLP Registration No. AAB-8181} wath effac from Cctaber 14, 3012 wﬁmﬁoé;::x:ﬂ:hﬂnﬁ ;r;ies:r;l: 'Cgm',:s'.\.:ﬁ; - 4-1;0065 i ’



BSR & Co.LLP
Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

JSW Severfield Structures Limited

Other Information

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon,

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

[n connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true
and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit/ loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Management and Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of each company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have
been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Management and
Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of each company to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concemn basis of
accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies in¢cluded in the Group are responsible for overseeing the
financial reporting process of each company.



BSR & Co.LLP
Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

JSW Severfield Structures Limited

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fravd may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis
of accounting in preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

JSW Severfield Structures Limited

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continned)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies {Auditor’s Report} Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

1.

(A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report, to the extent applicable,
that:

a)

b)

c)

d)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements,

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
and its subsidiary company as on 31 March 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of
the Holding Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in India, none of the directors
of the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 March 2022 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in India and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”,
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

JSW Severfield Structures Limited

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Continued)

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

a} The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March
2022 on the consolidated financial position of the Group. Refer Note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements.

b) The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts during the year ended 31 March 2022.

¢) There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company or its subsidiary company incorporated in India
during the year ended 31 March 2022,

d) (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or its subsidiary company
incorporated in India to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall:

= directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the Holding Company or its
subsidiary company incorporated in India or

* provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(ii) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Holding Company or its subsidiary company incorporated in
India from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or its
subsidiary company incorporated in India shall:

= directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever (*“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the Funding Parties or

= provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(iiiyBased on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (d) (i) and (d) (ii) contain any material mis-statement,

¢} The Holding Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in India have neither declared
nor paid any dividend during the year.
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JSW Severfield Structures Limited

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Continued)
C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid during the current year by the Holding Company and its subsidiary company to its directors is
in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director
by the Holding Company and its subsidiary company is not in excess of the limit laid down under
Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under
Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 101248W/W — 100022

008 L-Ehery

Partner

Mumbai Membership No.112399
4 May 2022 UDIN No. 22112399A1XBM8387
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JSW Severfield Structures Limited

Annexure “A” to the Auditors’ report
(Referred to in our report of even date)

(xxi)  According to the information and explanations given to us during the course of audit,
companies incorporated in India and included in the consolidated financial statements did
not have any unfavourable answers, qualifications or adverse remarks in their respective
Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order (CARO).

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 101248W/W — 100022

L.

Koosai Lehery

Partner

Mumbai Membership No.112399
4 May 2022 UDIN No. 22112399A1JXBM8387
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JSW Severfield Structures Limited

Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph A(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date)

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year
ended 31 March 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements of JSW Severfield Structures Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™) and its
subsidiary company incorporated in India under the Companies Act, 2013, as of that date.

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in India which, have, in all
material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and
such internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were operating effectively
as at 31 March 2022, based on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements criteria established by such companies considering the essential components of such internal
controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note™).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements based on the
criteria established by the respective Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013
(hereinafier referred to as “the Act™).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness

7
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JSW Severfield Structures Limited

Auditors’ Responsibility (continued)

of the internal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
ar¢ being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to consolidated Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

For BS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 101248W/W — 100022

4

Koosai Lehery

Partner

Mumbai . Membership No.112399
4 May 2022 UDIN No. 22112399A1JXBM8387



JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022

{Rup in lakhs)
. As at As at
Particulars Motes March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
ASSETS
{1} Non-current assets
la] Property, plant and equipmant 2(a) 24,657 22 25,299.74
{b} Right -of-use assets 2{b} 2,123.95 2,511.87
(¢} Capital work-in-progress 2ic} 368, 31
{d} Intangiable assets 2(d) 696 3142 i
(&) Financial assets:
(i} Investments 3 1516 0.05
(i) Other financial assats 4 35753 22313
[F} Income tax assets (net) 1,130.15 1,202.92
{g) Deferred Tax assats {net} 0.10 .
(h) Othar non-current assets 5 141 87 512.03
Tatal non-current assets 28,432.89 30,249.57
{2) Current assets
{4} Inventories [ 337124 721585
(b} Financial assets:
{i} Trade receivables ? 26,952.08 15,127.00
(i1} Cash and cash equivalents &(a) 2,336.16 46.53
(iil} Bank balances other than (i) above 8ib) §94.05 936.12
(iv) Other Financial assets k] 3431 3948
{c} Other current assets 10 59,971 24 38,003.75
Total current assats 93,659.09 61,368.73
Total assets 1,22,002.03 91,618.30
EGUITY AND LIABILITIES
{1) Equity
{a} Equity share capital 11 39,587.59 39,587 59
{b) Gther equity 12 {7,084.05) {8,750.05)
Equity attributable to owners of the graup 32,503.54 30,837.53
{2} Non controlling Interest 1,028.45 F17.32
Total equity 33,532.00 31,554.85
Liabllities
(3] Non-current labilities
{a) Financlal liabilities
{i} Borrowings 13{a} 1,01742 1,258,71
(i) Lease Jlahilities 13{&) 571.85 915.81
(b} Provisions 14 445,69 34853
fc} Deferred Tax liabilities {net) 368
{d] Other non-current liabilities 15 - 40.66
Total non-current liabilities 2,034.97 2,567.39
{4] Current liahilities
(2) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 12,861.92 14,245.23
{ii} Lease Liabilities 34873 28219
i} Trade payables 17
{a) total outstanding dues of mitro
enterprises and small enterprises;
and 3,756.22 1,154 99
{b] total outstanding dues of creditars
other than micro enterprises and
small enterprisas 40,489.9% 21,897.61
(iv) Other Financizl Liabilities 18 1,871.47 1,950.27
(b} Other current liabilites 19 26,900.77 17,709.69
(e} Provisions 20 255.33 13607
{d] Current tax lizhilities {net) 40,63
Total current liabilities 86,525.06 57,496.05
Total liabilities 88,560.03 60,063.44
Fotal equity and liabilitles 1,22,092.03 91,618.30

See accompanying nates to the Consolidated Financial Statements

In terms of our report attached
For B 5 R & Co. LLP For and on behaif of the Board of Directors

Flrm's Registrabion No. 101243W/W - 1000322 —
Chartered Accountants \(‘—_'“\\2‘(;'1 /, \\ W
KOOSAI LEHERY é [

PAWAN KEDIA DEREK RANDALL

Chairman Director
IN No: 00020570 DIN No:p3433966

éﬁ‘wv\/tf){’\__.v‘_.,(\ i 3 p '
D ='“Ln—~Y\— ——-D\ Y kaﬂ./ u':’.

Partner
Membership No-112399

SANTANU CHOUDHURY _—
Chief Financial Officer,~”

Plaze: Mumbai
Date : 04 May 2022

SWATIKA GUPTA
Company Secretary
M.ship no, A28582




15w SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
Consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Rupees in Jakhs, except per share data and as stated otherwisa}
For the year ended For the year ended

PARTICULARS . Notes

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
| Revenue from operations 21 1,04,383.05 49,626 .46
I Other incame 22 2545 67231
il Total revenue [14)1) 1,04,708.50 50,298.77
IV Expenses:
Cost of construction (including materials) 23 ¥9,035.36 34,687.24
Cost of material consumed 3,978.48 2,564.07
Purchase of stock-in-trade 6,345 20 91.01
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-
in-prograss and stock-in-trade 24 {37.00) 2TFT
Employee benefits expense 25 5,534.53 5,693.68
Finance costs 26 3,814.73 3,743.03
Depreniation and amortization expense 2{a}(b] & [c) 2,003.26 2,158.00
Other expenses 27 1,605 .46 2,560.44
Total expenses {IV) 1,02,378.02 51,530.14
¥ (toss} f Profit before tax (I1I-1v) 2,330,428 {1,231.37)
Y| Taxes expense:
Current tax 38 315.15 70.80
Deferred tax ag {3.29) 40.24
Wil {Loss) f Profit for the year {v-v1} 2,019.22 {1,342.41)
Total [Loss) f Profit for the year attributable to:
- Oweners of the group 170813 (1,421 20)
- Non-tontrolling interasts 311.09 78.79
2,019.22 {1,342.41)
¥l Other comprehensive (loss) / income
Items that will not be redlassified to proiit or foss
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit plans fa4.86} {1.35)
ii] Change in fair value of investrnents in equity shares 286 -
Income tax relating to iterns that will not be reclassified to prafit or oss (0.12) (0.23]
[42.12) {1.58}
Other comprehensive (loss) / income for the year attributable to:
- Ownters of the group (42.23) {1.77)
- Non-cantrolling interests 011 0.1%
1% Total comprehensive {loss) f income for the year VIV 1,977.10 (1,343.99)
Total comprehensive (loss) / incoma for the year attributable to:
- Owners of the group 1,665.90 {1,422,97}
- Non-cantrolling interests 311.20 1392
X Earnings per equity share of Rs 10 each
Basic 31 0.43 {0.36)
Diluted 31 0.43 0.35}
See accompanying notes to the Consclidated financlal Statements
In terms of our report attached
For B SR & Co. LLP For and on behalfof the-Board of Directors
Firm's Registration Na. 101248W /W - 100022 Q T
Charteged Accountants qu \ W ﬁ f /

I\ Y,
KOOSAI LEHERY '; 1 PAWAN KEDIA DEREK RANDALL

Partner Chairman irector
IN MNo: 00020570 Dj No:02433966

Membership No-112399 1
6/& A AAAL - ufp
/._( M,.,-M “

I S b

SANTANU cuoun:yv/ i SWATIKA GUPTA
Chief Financial Qffice Company Secretary
M.ship no. 428582

it |

Place: Mumbai
Date : 04 May 2022




JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED

{Rupees in lakhs)

Consolidated stat of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2022

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
A. Cash flows from operating activities
Proflt before tax 2,330,48 {1,231.37)
Adjustments for ;
Depreciation and amortization expense 2,093.26 2,158.00
Net unrealized exchange loss 34.28 39.74
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment net 288 -
Interast Income (128.97) {109.06)
Finance costs 2,556.74 313250
Bad debts written off{Recovared) 42,17 [57.68)
Provision / liabillties no longer required written back (195.08) {475.50)
Provision for doubtful debts and unbilled receivable 2497 992.51
Gain on lease modification [1.16)
Property plant and equipment written off - 076
{Gain)/loss on foreign currency forward contract 0.18 0.82
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 6,760,90 4,449.17
Adjustments for movement in working capital:
Decrease fitncrease} in inventories 3,844.61 (72.42)
{Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivables {14,590.70) 749277
{Increase) / Decraase in other assets (21,604.84) 2,961.80
Increase / (Decrease) In trade payable 23,717.58 {11, 776.29)
Incraase / [Decrease} in other liabilitles 9,504.48 {1,538.07)
Increase / (Decraase) in provisions 166.53 [455.73)
Cash generated from operations 7,798.59 1,061.23
Income taxes refund/{paid} (net) (132,78} 360.38
Net cash generated from operating activities 7,665.80 1,421.61
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant & equipment, intangible assets including [793.52) {1,510.28)
capital advances
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 0.93
Purchase of equity shares. {12.25) -
Bank deposits (piaced)/ matured (net) [91.43) [51.27)
Interest income received 59.01 £8.33
Net cash {used in} investing activities {837.26) {1,493.22)
€. Cash flows from financing activities
{Repayment of}/ Proceeds from working capital borrowings {net} [1,627.93) 1,851.64
Lease liability paid-Principal Portion {357.43) {310.24)
Proceeds of non current borrowings 762.62 1,134.27
Repayment of Term loan {749.37) s
Finance charges paid {2,556.74) {2,879.65]
Net cash {used in) financing activities {4,538.90) {204.68)
Net increase/ [decrease] in cash and cash equivalents 2,288.04 {276.25)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 46.53 322.82
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2,336.16 46.53

Notes:

The cash flow statement is prepared using the “indirect method” set out in IND AS 7 - Statement of Cash Flows.

See accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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15W SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
Consolidated stat

t of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2022

{Rupees in lakhs)

{a} Equity share capital As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
Qutstanding at the beginning and end of the year 39,58,75,880 35,587.59 34,58,75,330 39,537.59

(b) Other equity

Reserves and Items of other comprehensive
surplus income Attributableta | |
Particulars Change in fair owners of the . & Total
. Remeasurements t interest
Retained value of paren
. of the net defined
earnings investment in L
benefit plans
equity shares
Balance as at April 1, 2020 {7,273.96) (53.12) {7,327.08} 638.34 [6,688.74)
Profit for the year {1,421.20) - [1,421.20) 78.79 {1,342.41)
Other comprehensive income for the year [net of taxes) - (1.77} 1.77) 0.19 {1.58)
Movement during the year - -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 {8,695.16) (54.89) {8,750.05) 717.32 {8,032.73)
Profit far the year 1,708.13 - 1,708.13 311.09 2,019.22
Other comprehansive loss for the year (net of taxes) - 2.36 {44.99) {42.13) 0.04 [42.09)
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,708.13 2.86 {44.99) 1,666.00 31113 1,977.13
Balance as atMarch 31, 2022 {6,987.03) 2.86 {99.88} (7,084.05) 1,028.46 {6,055.60)
Footnotes:

a. Retained earnings:

Retained earnings are the profits that the Group has earned till date. The amount that can be distributed by the Group as a dividends to its equity shareholders is
determined based on the balance in this reserve and also considering the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013,

b. Remeasurements of net defined plans:
It includes impact of actuanial gains and losses on the defined benefits obligation due to change in financial assumptions, change in demographic assumption, experience
adjustment etc., recognised through other comprahensive income.

See accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

In terms of our report attached
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JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1
1.1 General Information

ISW Severfield Structures Limited (“the Company or “the parent”) was incorporated on March 19, 2009 under the
Companies Act, 1956 as a joint venture between ISW Steel Limited and Severfield-Rowen PLC, with its registered
office located at Office # 05 to 08, B-Wing, Lower Ground Floor, Art Guild House, Phoenix Market City, LBS Marg,
Kurla West, Mumbai - 400 070.

The main object of the Company is to carry on business of design, fabrication and erection of structurat steel works,
including decking, for construction projects and allied activities. The subsidiary of the Company namely, 1SW
Structural Metal Decking Limited {the Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the group”} also carry on
the business of design, roll-forming and installation of structural metal decking. The fabrication facilities of the group
is located at Toranagallu, Karnataka.

1.2 Recent pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022,
MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from
April 1, 2022, as below:

a. Ind AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — For items produced during testing/trial phase, clarification
added that revenue generated out of the same shall not be recognised in SOPL and considered as
part of cost of PPE.

b. Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets — Guidance on what constitutes cost
of fulfilling contracts (to determine whether the contract is onerous or not} is included.

¢. Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments — The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it
applies the ‘10 per cent’ test in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability.

The Group does not expect the above amendments to have any significant impact in its financial
statements.

1.3 Statement of compliance

The Consolidated financial statements of the Group which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended
March 31, 2022, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information {together
hereinafter referred to as “Financial Statements”} have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 3 of the Companies {Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter (“Ind AS") and the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”). The consolidated Financial Statements have been approved by the Board of
Directors in its meeting held on May 4, 2022.

1)




JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.4 Basis of preparation and presentation

1.5

1.6

The Consolidated financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair value at end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. All assets and liabilities have been classified as
current and non-current as per the Group’s normal operating cycle.

The Consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees {'INR’) and all values are rounded to the nearest
lakhs, except otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary.
Control is achieved where the Company:

®  has power over the investee

* isexposed to, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

*  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns

The Company reassess whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of controt listed above.

Profit or lass and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
ta the non-controlling interests, Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this resuits in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustrments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group’s accounting palicies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Significant Accounting Policies

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the Group and it can be
measured reliably.

Construction contracts

The Group’s main activity continues to be the design, fabrication and construction of structural steel for wide range
of commercial and industrial construction projects. '

v,




JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Such contracts are entered into before construction of the project begins. Under the terms of the contract, generally,
the services provided results in the creation of steel work asset on customer site as per specific customer
requirements and accordingly, an asset / ‘construction work in progress’ created upon Group’s performance is not
readily available for an alternative use to the Group, and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for the work
done, Revenue from construction of structural steel contracts is therefore recognised over time on cost to complete
method - i.e.,, based on the proportion of contract costs incurred for the work performed to date relative to the
estimated total contract costs.

The Group recognises contract revenue for a performance obligation satisfied over time only if the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation can be reasonably measured. In certain circumstances, when
the outcome of a performance obligation is not reasonably measurable but the Group expects to recover the costs
incurred in satisfying the performance obligation, then revenue is recognised only to the extent of the cost incurred
until such time the outcome of the performance obligation can be reasonably measured.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

When contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the
surplus is shown as amounts due from customers for contract work. For contracts where progress billings exceed
contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is shown as the amounts
due to customers for contract work. Amounts received before the related work is performed are included in the
balance sheet, as a liability, as advances received. Amounts billed for work performed but not yet paid by the
customer are included in the balance sheet under trade receivables.

Sate of goods

The Group recognises revenue when control over the promised goods or services is transferred to the customer at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
and services,

The Group recognises revenue generally at the point in time when the products are delivered to customer or when it
is delivered to a carrier for export sale, which is the paint of time when the control over product is transferred to the

customer,

In contracts where freight is arranged by the Group and recovered from the customers, the same is treated as a
separate performance obligation and revenue is recognised when such freight services are rendered.

Revenue is adjusted for variable consideration such as discounts, rebates, refunds, credits, price concessions,
incentives, performance bonuses, or other similar items in a contract when they are highly probable to be provided.

The amount of revenue excludes any amount collected on behalf of third parties or government such as goods and
service tax levied on sales.




JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I}. Dividend and interest income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment has been
established.

Interest income is accrued on a time hasis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financiaf asset to that asset’s net carrying amourt on initial recognition.

lll. Leasing
Identifying a lease

Under tnd AS 116, the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the definition of a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a specified
period of time in exchange for cansideration,

The Group as a lessee
Under ind AS 1186, the Group recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for most of its teases.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is
initially measured based on the initial amount of the Jease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or hefore the
commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located.

The assets are depreciated to the earlier of the end of the usefui life of the right-of-use asset or the lease term using the
straight-line method as this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits.
The lease term includes periods covered by an option to extend if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option.
The Group’s operating leases mainly relate to real estate assets. Lease term is for 3 years for these assets. In addition,
the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain measurements of the
lease liahility.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Group uses its incremental berrowing rate as the discount rate. Variahle lease
payments that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of the lease liability.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Group’s estimate of
the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Group changes its assessment of whether
it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

term Jeases that have a'lease term of 12 months o less and leases of low-value assets. The lease
witﬁ',thefe leasés’are recoghised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group as a lessor

The Group recognised lease rental on a straight line basis over the lease terms.
V. Foreign currencies

The functional currency of the Group is determined on the basis of the primary economic environment in which it
aperates. The functional currency of the Group is Indian National Rupee {INR}.

The transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retransiated at the rates prevailing at the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in
which they arise except for:

* exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future productive
use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on
those foreign currency borrowings; and

» exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreign currency risks.

V. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash on hand, cash at banks, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Vl. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Group by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted
for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the
number of equity shares outstanding, without a carresponding change in resources. For the purpose of calculating
difuted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

VIl. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantfally ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

The Group determines the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation as the actual borrowing costs incurred
on that borrowing during the period less any interest income earned on temporary investment ofspeuflc horrowings
pendmg thelr expendlture on quallfylng assets, to the extent that an entity borrows funds speuﬁca‘lly fo




JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

asset, borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation are determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures
on that asset.

The Group suspends capitalisation of borrowing costs during extended periods in which it suspends active
development of a qualifying asset.

Vill. Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attached to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which
the Group recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate,

IX. Employee benefits

a. Short-term employee benefits:
The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered
by employees are recognised as an expense during the period when the employees render the services.

b. Long term employee benefits:
Compensated absences which are not expected to be availed or encashed within twelve months after the end of the
period in which the employee renders the related service are recognised as a liability as at the Balance Sheet date on
the basis of actuarial valuation using projected unit credit method.

¢. Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits:
Defined contribution plans:
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Group pays specified contributions
towards Provident Fund, Employee State (nsurance and Pension Scheme. The Group’s contribution is recognised as
an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which the eligihle employee renders the related
service.
Defined benefit plans:
The Group pays gratuity to the employees whoever has completed five years of service with the Group at the time of
resignation/ superannuation. The gratuity is paid @ 15 days salary for the every completed year of service as per the
Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Group’s liabilities towards gratuity and other post-employment benefit is
determined on yearly basis using the Projected Unit Credit Method and spread over the period during which the
benefit is expected to be derived from employees’ services. Re-measurement of defined benefit plans in respect of
post-employment and other long term benefits are charged to the Other Comprehensive Income.

X. Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. Income tax expense is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent it relates to items directly re¢ognisedig-equity or
in other comp_rehenswe income.

/|
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JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Current tax is the amount of tax payable based on the taxable profit for the year as determined in accordance with
the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Current tax assets and fiabilities are measured
at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that
are enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consohdated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary difference to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to he
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation

authority.
XI. Property, plant and equipment

The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any
impart duties and other taxes {other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly
attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use, including relevant borrowing costs for
qualifying assets and any expected costs of decommissioning.

Cost of major inspection / overhauling is recognised in the carrying amount of the item of property, plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. Any remaining carrying amount of the cost of
the previous inspection/overhauling (as distinct from physical parts) is de-recognised.

Properties in the course of construction are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss, as capital work in
progress. Upon completion, such properties, are transferred to the appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment and the depreciation commences.

Where an obligation (legal or constructive) exists to dismantle or remove an asset or restore a site to its former
condition at the end of its useful life, the present value of the estimated cost of dismantling, removing or restoring
the site is capitalised along with the cost of acquisition or construction upon completion and a corresponding liability
is recognised.

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and-is recognlsed in Statement of Profit and Loss. .




JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Xll. Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost Jess accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no further economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gain/loss on de-recognition are recognised in profit or loss.

XN, Depreciation and amortisation

Bepreciation commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. Depreciable amount for assets is the cost
of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value. Depreciation is recognized so as
to write off the cost of assets (ather than properties under construction) less their residual values over their useful
lives, using straight-line method, based on a technical evaluation or those prescribed under Schedule 1l of the
Companies Act, 2013.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives.

Leasehold land is amortised over the period of the lease, except where the leasehold land is acquired by the Group,
with an option in the lease deed, entitling the Group to purchase on outright basis after a certain period at no
additional cost is not amortised.

Major overhau! costs are depreciated over the estimated life of the economic benefit derived from the overhaul. The
carrying amount of the remaining previous overhaul cost is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss if the next
overhaul is undertaken earlier than the previously estimated life of the economic benefit.

The Group reviews the residual value, useful lives and depreciation method annually and, if expectations differ from
previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate on a prospective basis.

Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Estimated useful lives of the intangible assets are as follows:

Computer Software 3-5 years

Licenses as per license terms

XIV. Impairment of Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss {if
any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

oS =3 NN . . LA
Recoverabje amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessin
estimatefl future cash flows'are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount ratg
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JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverabte amount of an asset {or cash-generating unit} is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognhised immaediately in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Any reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is limited to the extent that the assets carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that woutd have been determined if no impairment loss had previously been
recognised.

XV. Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on weighted
average hasis.

Cost of raw materials include cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost of finished goods and wark in progress include cost of direct materials and labour and a
propartion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

XVI. Provisions, contingencies and commitments

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation {legal or constructive), as a result of past events,
and it is probable that an outflow of resources, that can be reliably estimated, will be required to settle such an
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
abligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present cbligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows {(when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered froma third
party, a receivable is recognised as asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount
of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is-

a) a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of gne or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
entity; or

b) apresent obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:

i} itis not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
ebligation; or
i} the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

the occurrence: or'non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly withi
entity. : i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

xvil.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each reporting periad,

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the Group from a
contract are fower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obfigations under the contract.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when an entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities {other than financiat assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through Statement of Profit and Loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are
recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss.

A.

aj

b}

Financial assets

initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are initially recognised at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on
initial recognition. Purchase and sale of financial assets are recognised using trade date accounting.

Subsequent measurement
Financial assets carried at amortised cost - A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is

held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and
the cantractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVYTOCI) - A financial asset is measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by
both collecting contractual cash flows and seliing financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount gutstanding,

Financial assets at fair value through profit or foss (FVTPL) - A financial asset which is not classified in any of the
above categories are fair valued through profit or loss.

Financial assets, other than equity instruments, are subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of both:

{a) the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and
(b} the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Equity Investments: :

\

All equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognised in Stateme .,..- ofitand Loss,
except for those equity investments for which the Group has elected to present the valyd eNahed§4nNOther
Comprehensive Income’ .

©

LY
‘



JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

c}

d)

Impairment

The Group recognises a loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses {ECL) on financial assets that are measured at
amortised cost and at FVOCI. The credit lass is difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to an
entity in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive {i.e. all cash
shortfalls}, discounted at the original effective interest rate. This is assessed on an individual or collective basis
after considering all reasenable and supportable inctuding that which is forward-looking.

The Group's trade receivables or contract revenue receivables do not contain significant financing companent
and loss allowance on trade receivables is measured at an amount equal to life time expected losses i.e. expected
cash shortfall, being simplified approach for recognition of impairment loss allowance.

For financial assets other than trade receivables, the Group recognises 12—months expected credit losses for all
originated or acquired financial assets if at the reporting date the credit risk of the financial asset has not
increased significantly since its initial recognition. The expected credit losses are measured as lifetime expected
credit losses if the credit risk on financial asset increases significantly since its initial recognition. If, in a

. Subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer significant increase in

credit risks since initial recognition, then the Group reverts to recognising impairment lgss allowance based on
12 months ECL. The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. For equity
instruments and financial assets measured at FVTPL, there is no requirement for impairment testing.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another party. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss wouid
have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety {e.g. when the Group retains an option to
repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset
between the part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises
on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the
carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for
the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss aflocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or (oss would have otherwise been recognised
in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is no
longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.
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B. Financial liabilities and equity instruments

a) Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments issued by a Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

b) Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Repurchase of the Group's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group's own
equity instruments,

<) Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in case of loans net of directly attributable cost.
Fees of recurring nature are directly recégnised in profit or loss as finance cost.

d) Subsequent measurement:
Financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other
payables maturing within one year from the Bafance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value
due to the short maturity of these instruments

e) Derecognition:

Financial liabilities are derecognised when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. An exchange with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for
as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a
substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not attributable to the financial
difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition
of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

C. Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to foreign exchange rate risks, including
foreign exchange forward contracts, and cross currency swaps.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised
in Statement of Profit and Loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument,
in which event the timing of the recognition in Statement of Profit and Loss tdepends on the nature of the hedge item.

D. Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liahilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle of a net basis, to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.




JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

E. Fair value measurement:

The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

i) In the principal market for the asset or liabifity, or

ii) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal ar the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or fiability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A Tair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market patticipant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs,

All assets and Nabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the fowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

1.7 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

tn the course of applying the policies outlined in all notes under section 1.6 above, the Group is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimaies and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future period, if the revision affects current and future period.

i} Revenue and profit recognition

Recognition of revenue and profit from construction contracts is based on judgements made in respect of the
ultimate profitability of a contract. Such judgements are arrived at through the use of estimates in relation to the
costs and.value of work performed to date and to be performed in bringing contracts te co i

estimg_tés a_'re made by reference to recovery of pre-contract costs, changes in work scope, the g6
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under which the work is being performed, including the recoverability of any unagreed income from variations
and the likely outcome of discussions on claims and costs incurred.

Management continually reviews the estimated final outcome on contracts and makes adjustments where
necessary. Based on the above, management believes it is reasonably possible, on the hasis of existing
knowledge, that outcomes within the next financial year that are different from these assumptions could require
a material adjustment,

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Management reviews the useful lives of property, plant and equipment at least once a year. Such lives are
dependent upon an assessment of both the technical lives of the assets and also their likely economic lives based
on various internal and external factors including relative efficiency and operating costs. Accordingly depreciable
lives are reviewed annually using the best information available to the Management.

iii} Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment

iv)

Determining whether the property, plant and equipment are impaired requires an estimate in the value in use
of plant and equipment. The value in use calculation requires the Management to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the property, plant and equipment and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
present value. When the actual cash flows are less than expected, a materiat impairment toss may arise.

Impairment of unbilled revenue, trade and other receivables

The provision policy for impairment of unbilled revenue, trade and other receivables is based on the ongoing
evaluation of the collectability, aged analysis of the outstanding amounts and management’s judgement. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these amounts, including
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each customer. If the financial conditions of the customers
were to deteriorate, resuiting in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional allowances may be
required.

v} Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgement is required to determine
the amaunt of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
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Note 2{a) Property, plant and equipment
{Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars Buildings f annd iisnii Vehicles o.ffu:e Total
equipment | and fixtures equipment
At cost
Balance as at April 1, 2020 12,773.60 19,331.50 312.76 315.16 297,58 33,030.61
Additions ©71.97 563.64 11244 . 32,07 1,387.12
Disposals - - {1.76) . (1.76)
Balance as at March 31, 2021 13,445.57 19,895.14 430.24 315.16 329.65 34,415.96
Additions 569.13 44721 10.33 14.54 0.34 1,042.05
Disposals - (14,58} (14.58)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 14,014.70 20,342.35 440.77 315.12 330.49 35443.43
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at April 1,2020 1,489.34 5,535.93 99.83 109.72 193.96 7,428.78
Depreciation expense 451.17 1,116.65 35,51 49,23 35.83 1,688.42
Disposals - - {0.99) - {0.89)
Balance as at March 31, 2021 1,940.51 6,652.62 134.35 158,95 220,78 9,116.22
Depreciation expense 457.01 1,124.48 40.91 22,75 30.62 1.680.78
Disposals . . . {10.75) [10.75})
Balance as at March 31, 2022 2,397.52 7,777.10 175.26 175.95 260.40 10,786.25
Carrying amounts as at March 31, 2021 11,505.07 13,292.52 296.09 156.21 949,86 25,299.74
Carrying amounts as at March 31, 2022 11,617.18 12,565.25 265.51 139,17 70.10 24,657.22
Useful life of the assets {years} 30 15-30 8-15 815 L&-10
Methad of depreciation SLM S5LM 5L SLM SLm

During the previous year ended 31 March 2021, based on the technical evaluation carried aut by an external expert, the management has
reassessed the useful lives of certain plant and machinery. Accordingly, the useful lives of such plant and machinery have been revised
from 15 years 10 a range of 15-30 years depending on the number of shifts of usage. Had the Group continued with the previously
assessed useful lives, depreciation expenses for the year ended 21 March 2021 would have been higher by Rs.448.87 lakhs

Note : Property, plant and equipments {except building and leasehaold land] are pledged against borrowings. The details relating to which
has been described in Note 14{a} and 16
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Note 2({b) Right -of-use assets

(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars Nightial-ose
assets
At cost
Balance as at April 01, 2020 3,117.94
Addition 135.28
Deletion 38.24
Balance as at March 31, 2021 3,214.98
Additions -
Deletion -
Balance as atMarch 31, 2022 3,214.98
Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at April 01, 2020 344.70
Amortisation expenses 391.76
Deletion 33.45
Balance as at March 31, 2021 703.01
Amortisation expenses 388.02
Deletion ' =
Balance as atMarch 31, 2022 1,091.03
Balance as at March 31, 2021 2,511.97
Balance as atMarch 31, 2022 2,123.95
Useful life of the assets (range in years) 3-5
Method of amortization SLM

The above consists of Leasehold Land of Rs.1,319.50 lakhs and office premises and Guest house
Rs.804.45 lakhs. (31 March 2021 Leasehold Land of Rs.1,319.50 lakhs and office premises and Guest

house Rs.1,192.47 lakhs).

0
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Note 2{c) Capital Work in progress

{Rupees.in lakhs)

Particulars

Capital Work in progress

Balance as at March 31, 2020
Additions
Capitalisations

165.56
202.75

Balance as at March 31, 2021
Additions
Capitalisations

368.31
200.82
569.13

Balance as at March 31, 2022

Amounts in CWIP as at 31st March 2022

Particulars

Less thanl vear

1-2 years

Total

Projects in progress

Projects temporarily
suspended

Total

Amounts in CWIP as at 31st March 2021

Particulars

Less thanl vear

1-2 years

Total

Projects in progress

202.75

165.56

368.31

Projects temporarily
suspended

Total

202.75

165.56

368.31

v
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Note 2{d] Intangible assets

(Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars Sope Licence fees Total
software
At cost fdeemed cost
Balance as at April 1, 2020 129.23 299,93 429,16
Additions 0.96 - 0.96
Balance as at March 31, 2021 130.19 299,93 430.12
Additions 0.00 - 0.00
Balance as at March 31, 2022 130.19 299,93 430.12
Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at April 1, 2020 102.36 218.53 320.89
Amortisation expenses 24.89 52.92 77.81
Balance as at March 31, 2021 127.25 271.45 394.70
Amaortisation expenses 2,40 22,06 24.46
Balance as at March 31, 2022 129.65 293.51 423.16
Carrying amounts as at March 31, 2021 294 28.48 31.42
Carrying amounts as at March 31, 2022 0.54 6.42 6.96
Over the
Useful life of the assets (range} 3-5 period of
license
Method of amortization SLM SLM
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{Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Note 3
{nvestments (Non-current)

Quoted investment in equity instruments.{at cost)

5,000 Equity shares {31st March 2021: Nil) of Rs 10 each, fully paid up of JSW

Energy limited 15.11
Investment in Government securities {Unquoted) (at amortised cost)

Mational saving certificate {Pledged with commercial tax department) 0.05 0.05
Total 15.16 0.05
Aggregate amount of quoted investments {at cost) 12.25 -
Aggregate amount of quoted investments (at market value) 15.11 -
Aggregate amount of imapirement in value of investments - -
Note 4
Other financial assets (non-current)

Security Deposits 255.53 254,63
Margin money deposits {under lien with banks} 102.00 68.50
Total 357.53 323.13

Note 5
Other non-current assets

Capital advances 16.91 431

Prepayments and others 76.22 8.97

Indirect tax balances with government authorities { amount paid under protest) 41.41 452,94
Security deposits 7.33 45.81
Total 141.87 512.03

Note 6

Inventories {at lower of cost and net realisable value)

Consumables Stores and Spares 648.18 590.72

Raw Materials 1,485.20 879,51

Construction Materials {refer note 42) 957.03 5,501.79

Work-in -Progress 14.99 7.47

Finished goods [including Goods-in-transit of Rs. 67.62 lakhs (previous year

Rs.109.92 lakhs) 250.45 217.99

Traded goods 15.39 18.37
Total 3,371.24 7,215.85

Note 7

Trade receivables
(a) Trade receivables considered good - Secured - -
(b) Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured 26,952.09 15,127.00
{c) Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - -
(d} Trade receivables - credit impaired 489.54 484.45

Less : Bad Debt Written off - -
Less : Allowance for doubtfu! receivables [489.54) {484.45)

Total 26,952.09 15,127.00
Movement in allowance for expected credit loss: (Rupees in lakhs)

Balance as at April 1, 2020 42,61
Allowances for doubtful debts (expected credit foss allowance) 441.84
Bad debts w/off -

Balance as at March 31, 2021 ; . " 484,45
Allowances for doubtful debts (expected credit loss allowance) 5.09
Bad debts w/off ff '

Balance as at March 31, 2022 489.54

{Refer note 28 for other relevant notes): ' : ' L)
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JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Note 8 {a)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 0.61 0.91
Balance with banks in current accounts 73.21 45.62
Term Deposit with maturity less than 3 months at inception 2,262.34 -
Total 2,336.16 46.53
Note 8 {b)

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Margin money deposits {under lien with banks) 994.05 936.12
Total 994.05 936.12
Note 9
Other Financlal Assets

{Unsecured, considered good)
Security deposits 33.82 38.86
Forward contract assets 0.49 0.62
Total 34.31 39.48
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{Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Note 10
Other current assets
Unbilled revenue
Contract work in progress {construction cost incurred plus recognised profit less recognised
losses to date) 2,51,309.41 1,593,452.97
Less : Progress billings 1,98,468.95 1,59,693.06
Gross amount due from customers for contract work 52,840.46 33,759.91
Provision for Doubtful receivable 548,54 548.54
52,291.92 33,211.37
Indirect tax batances/credits 5,016.26 3,592.50
Less : Allowance for doubtful indirect tax balances {21.21) {21.21)
4,995.05 3,571.29
Advance to suppliers 1,584.60 446,99
Advance to Employees 1.06 0.18
Prepayment and others 1,070.22 731.66
Security deposits 28.39 42,26
Total 59,971.24 38,003.75
Note 11
Equity share capital
Authorised :
4000,000,000 equity shares of Rs.10 each 40,000.00 40,000.00
Total 40,000.00 40,000.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up:
395,875,880 (as at March 31, 2021: 395,875,880) equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up 35,587.59 39,587.59
Total 39,587.59 39,587.59
Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year :
As at As at As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Beginning and end of the year

Number of shares

Amount in lakhs

39,58,75,880 | 35,58,75,880

39,587.59

39,587.5%

Terms /rights attached to equity shares

The Group has a single class of equity shares, Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held . The dividend proposed by the Board of
Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining
assets of the Group after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

Shares in respect of each class in the Group held by its holding company and Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Group

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 March 31, 2021

Name of the holder No. of Shares % No. of Shares %
JSW Steel Limited and its nominees 19,79,37,940 50% 19,79,37,940 S0%
Severfield Mauritius Limited and its nominees 19,79,37,940 50% 19,79,37,940 50%
Shares in respect of each promoters holding shares
Particulars As at \ Asat

/ 31 March 2022 arch 31, 2021
Name of the holder > No. of Shares % No. of SHargs
JSW Steel Limitec:l and its nominees 19,79,37,940 50% /A\

19,79,37,940 50%

Severfield Mauritius Limited and its nominees
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{Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars

As at
March 21, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Note 12

Other equity

Retained Earnings

Other comprehensive income (loss)
Total

Note 13{a)

Borrowings (secured} {Non-current)
Term loan from bank

Rupee term loan at amortized cost

Less: current maturity of long term borrowings {refer note 19)

Total
Details of security:

(6.987.03) (8,695.16)
(97.02) (54.89)
(7,084.05) (8,750.05)
1,831.39 1,818.14
813.96 559.43
1,017.43 1,258.71

Rupee term loan from bank aggregating to Rs.1,831,39 lakhs (31 March 2021: Rs.1,818.14 lakhs ) was secured by first charge by way of
hypothecation on property, plant and equipment {excluding land and buiiding) of the Group and second charge by way of hypothecation
on entire current assets (present and future) of the Company. The loan was bearing floating interest rate of bank plus 2.75%.

Repayment of term loan in 16 quarterly installments.

Note 13{h)

Lease Liabilities 920.58 1,278.00

Less: Current Maturity of lease liabilities (348.73) (362.19)
Total 571.85 915.81
The details of lease liabilities are mentioned bejow:

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Opening balance of (ND AS 116 1,278.00 1,465.66
Addition - 129.23
Deletion - {5.95)
Interest expense 83.83 137.63
Cash Qutflow {446.24) (448.57)
Cancellation of Lease Agreement -
Closing balance 920.58 1,278.00




JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
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{Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Note 14
Provision {non-current}

Provision for gratuity (refer note 31) 250.38 188.85
Provision for compensated absences (refer note 31) 195.31 159.64
Total 445,69 348.53
Note 15

Other non-current liabilities

40.66

Export obligation deferred income*
Total

40.66

* Represents government assistance in the form of duty benefit availed under Export Promotion Capital goods (EPCG) Scheme on
purchase.of property, plant and equipments accounted for as government grant and recognised as income upon fulfilment of

corresponding export obligation {Refer note 35)

Note 16

Borrowings [current)

Secured

Working capital loans from banks 12,047.96 13,685.80
Current maturity of long term borrowings 813.96 555.43
Total 12,861.92 14,245.23

Details of security

Working capital loans (repayable on demand) from banks aggregating to Rs. 12,022.08 lakhs {31 March 2021:13,684.09 lakhs) is secured
by first charge by way of hypothecation on all current assets including stock (present and future} of the Group, second charge on
property, plant and equipment (excluding land and building) of the Group. The working capital loans are bearing floating interest rate of

bank plus 0.80% to 3.65%.(31st March 2021: 0.80% to 4.00%)

Quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Group with banks or financial institutions are in agreament with the books

of accounts,

Note 17
Trade and other payables
Dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises

Other than acceptances (refer note 37) 3,756.22 1,194.99
Dues to creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Acceptances 32,449.06 13,518.85
Other than acceptances 8,040.93 8,378.76
Total 44,246.21 23,092.60
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JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Note 18
Other current financial liabilities
Accrued Salary 761.08 785.15
Payables for capital projects 98.38 231.28
interest accrued 1,011.51 933.84
Total 1,871.47 1,950.27
Note 1%
Other current liabilities
Progress hillings 81,517.48 48,363.40
Less: Contract work in progress (construction cost incurred plus recognised profit
less recognised losses to date) 78,569.87 45,264.78
Gross amount due to customers for contract work 2,947.61 3,098.62
Employee benefits payable 15.60 13.1%
Deferred government Grants * 259.54 259.59
Statutory liabilities (includes TDS, GST and PF liabilities} 219.17 175.59
Advances from customers 23,458.85 14,162.75
26,900.77 17,709.69

Total
H ‘] . e ——————————
* Represents government assistance in the form of duty benefit availed under Export Promotion Capital goods (EPCG) Scheme on

purchase of property, plant and equipments accounted for as government grant and recognised as income upon fulfillment of

corresponding export abligation {Refer note 35)

Note 20
Provisions (current)
{a} Provision for employee benefits:

Provision for gratuity (refer note 31) 126.86 120.95
Provision for compensated absences (refer note 31) 25.24 15,12
152.10 136.07
(b} Provision - others:
Provision for estimated losses on contracts 103.23 E
255.33 136.07

Total

For movement in provisions refer movement schedule below:

. Provision for estimated
Particulars
losses on contracts

As at April 01, 2020 444.79
Recognised during the vear
Utilization during the year
As at March 31,2021
Recognised during the year
Utilization during the year
As at March 31,2022 103.23

(4424.79)

103.23




J5W SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Rupees in lakhs}

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Note 21
Revenue from operations(refer note 36 and 40)
Contracted Revenue
Value of completed contracts 124.39 7.558.96
Worl in progress.
As at the end of the year 3,29,777.75 2,38,719.45
As at the beginning of the year 2,38,719.45 2,01,700.41
91,058.31 37,019.04
Sale of products
Manufactured Goods 3,412.39 2,683.01
Traded Goods 6,049.37 1,098.62
$,461.76 3,781.63
Sale of services
Job work charges 16.05 151.11
Other operating revenue
Sale of scrap 3478.80 87811
Freight charges 176.13 191.84
Duty drawback & benefits on exparts 41.53 133
Income from design services 26.08 44.44
Total 1,04,383.05 49,626.46
Note 22
Other income
Interest income earned on financial assets that are not designated as FVTPL
a) Interest income from banks on deposits 59.00 68.33
b} Financial assets carried at amortised cost 1.00 1.36
Interest an incorne tax refund 68.57 35,92
Provision/liabilities no longer required written back 175.20 475.90
Bad debts recoveredinet) 19.38 57.68
Credit balance written back 0.18 -
Other miscelleneous income 1.22 29.12
Total 325.45 672,31
Note 23
Cost of construction {including material)
Purchase of materials and compaonents 73,795.87 29,931.79
Equipment hiring charges (refer note 33) 1,367.94 3,275.63
Transport charges 2,018.24 692,66
Draughting-design charges - 335.58 74.82
Contract labour and subcontracting charges 1,517.73 712.24
Total 79,035.36 34,687.14
Note 24
Changes in inventorles of finished goods ,wark in progress and stock in trade
Opening Stock :
Finished Goods 217.9% 252.78
Wark-in-progress 7.47 6.38
Stock in trade 18.37 17.44
{a) 243.83 276.60
Less:
Closing Stock;
Finished Goods 250.45 217.99
Work-in-progress 14.99 7.47
Stock in trade 15.39 13.37
(b) 280.83 243,83
Changes in inventories of finished goods ,work in progress and stock in trade {a)-
(b} {37.00) 32.77
Note 25
Employee benefits expense
Salaries and wages and bonus 4,99%.12 5,225.69
Contribution to provident and other funds {refer note 31} 209.07 211,50,
Gratuity (refer note 31) 69.47 79.37
Staff welfare expenses 256.87 177.12
Total 5,534.53 5,693.68




JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
Notes to the Consclidated Financial Statements

(Rupees in lakhs)

For the year ended

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Note 25
Employee benefits expense
Salaries and wages and bonus 4,999.12 5,225.69
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 31) 209.07 211.50
Gratuity (refer note 31) 69.47 79.37
Staff welfare expenses 256.87 177.12
Total 5,534.53 5,693.68
Note 26
Finance costs
Interest on borrowings from banks 2,166.59 2,695.75
interest on Lease Liabilities 38.83 137.63
Interest on Others 178.56 251.07
Other borrowing costs {includes LC, BG commission and bank charges) 1,380.75 658.58
Total 3,814.73 3,743.03
Note 27
Other expenses
Lease rent (refer note 33) 33.78 52.19
Repairs and maintenance
Plant and equipment 54.86 37.36
Buildings 17.00 2.50
Others 514 3.50
Insurance 167.82 31154
Rates and taxes 9,80 70.99
CSR Expenditure {refer note no-42} 59.75 70.65
Advertising and Busoness promotion Expenses 0.14 0.30
Travelling and conveyance expenses 116.24 595.35
Commission an scrap sales 27.87 6.07
Legal and professional fees 206.79 207.64
Office maintenance expenses 108.28 48.51
Payments to auditors 8743 94.34
MTM loss on forward contract - 0.83
Net less on foreign currency transactions and translation 26.03 52.23
Provisian for doubtful debts 24.97 992.51
Bad debts written off 42.17
Miscellaneous expenses
Freight Qutward 176.20 179.51
Loss on sale of assets 2.88 -
Property plant & equipment written off - 0.76
Miscellaneous expenses 442 31 333.66
1,609.46 2,560.44

Payments to the auditors comprise:
For audit (including limited reviews}
For tax audit

For taxation matters

For certification service

Far out of pocket expenses

Total -

61.50
3.00
27.33
1.31
1.20

94.34




JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 28
1. Financiat instrements - fair values and risk r B t

1. Accounting classification and fair values
Carrying armounts of financial assets and financial liabiiities are presented below:

{Rupees in lakhs}

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Carrying value
Financial assets
Measured at amortised cost
Non-current
Investments 15.16 0.05
Other financial assets 35353 323.13
Current.
Trade receivables 26,952.09 15,127.00
Cash and cash equivalents 2,336.16 46,53
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 934,05 936.12
Other Financial assets 3431 35.48
Total Financial assets 30,689.30 16,472.31
Financial liabilities
Measured at amortised cost
Non-current
Barrowings 1,017.43 1,258.71
Lease Liabilities 571.85 915.81
Current
Short term borrowings
Borrawings 12,361.92 14,245,23
Trade payables 44,246.21 23,092.60
Lease Liabilities 348.73 362.19
Other finandal liabilities 1.871.47 1,950.27
Total financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 60,917.61 41,824.81

The fair value of deposits, loans, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, bank balances, investments, trade payables Jborrowings and other financials liabilities are considered to

be same as their carrying value

Fair value of financia) asset /{liability)

(Rupees ir iakhs)

Particulars Fair value Fair value as at Valuation technigue and
hierarchry March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 key input
Financial liability measured at fair value on recurring basis
Foreign currency forwards contracts Leve! 2 0.49 0.62 |Discounted cash  flow.
Future cash flows are

estimated  based on
forward exchange rates
and contracted exchange
rates, discounted at a rate
reflects the credit risk on
varlous counter parties.

Transfers between Levels
There have beean no transfers between Levels during the reporting periods

€. Financial risk management

The Group has exposure to the foliowing risks arising from financial instruments:
= Credit risk ; and

= Liquidity risk

i. Risk management framework

The Group’s Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk management framewaork,

The Group’s risk management policies are estabiished to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set approprlate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and
adherence to limits, Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities. The Group, through its training

and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligatians.

The audit committee islassi-sled in its ovérsighl"rnle by internal audit. Internal audit underiakes bath regular and adhoc reviews of risk managemenj(tontrols and procedures, the

results of which are regorted to the audit committee, L
{ f




JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management {continued)

Note 28
ii. Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group. Credit risk
encompasses of both, the direct risk of default and the risk of detericration of credit worthiness as weall as cancentration risk. The Group has
adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as mean of
mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. Group's credit risk arises principally from the loans, trade receivables, cash and cash
equivalents and bank deposits

Trade receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management also
considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in which

customers operate.

The Group has an internal risk appraisal process in which the concerned head of departments provide their inputs with reference to the credit
policy of the Group. Each new customer is analysed individually for creditworthiness before the Group’s standard payment and delivery terms
and conditions are offered. The Group’s review includes external ratings, if they are available, and in some cases bank references. Sale limits
are established for each customer and reviewed periodically.

At March 31, 2022, the Company’s has three customer whe accounts for more then 10% of total debtors amounting to Rs.14,578.74 lakhs
which is 54% of total debtors and As at 31 March 2021 one customer who accounts for mare then 10% of total debtors amounting to INR

7,696.42 lakhs)

impairment
At March 31, 2022 the ageing of trade receivables that were not impaired was as follows.

Carrying amount [Rupees in lakhs)

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Neither past due nor impaired 14,250.13 6,153.51
Past due 1-30 days 4,925.95 1,743.58
Past due 31-90 days 1,265.51 2,432.12
Past due 91 plus days 6,510.50 4,792.79
26,952.09 15,127.00

Management believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than 20 days are still collectible in full, based on historical
payment behaviour and extensive analysis of customer credit risk, including underlying customers’ credit ratings if they are available.

An analysis of the credit quality of trade and other receivables that are neither past due nor impaired is evaluated by management on regular
intervals and is considerad to be good.

The Group has had no significant history of credit default except as identified in case of specific customers and accordingly no amount has
been recognised towards allowance for expected credit loss for other than those specified customers,

Loans to others
The credit worthiness of the counter party is evaluated by the management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be good. The Group did

not have any amounts that were past due but not impaired.The Group has no collateral in respect of these loans.

Cash and cash equivalents
The Group maintains its cash and cash equivalents and ather bank halances with credit worthy banks and reviews it on ongoing basis. The

credit worthiness of such banks and financial institutions is evaluated by the management on an ongoing basis and is congidered to be good,
: v\

Derivatives . A
The derivatives are entered into with credit worthy banks, The credit worthiness of such barks is evaluated by the

ongoing basis and is considered to be good.




J5W SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financiai Statements

Note 28

Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management {continued)

iii. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk refers ta the risk of financial distress or extraordinary high financing costs arising due to shortage of liquid funds in a situation where a

business conditions unexpectedly deteriorate and requiring financing. The Group generates sufficient cash flow for operations, which together with the
available cash and cash equivalents provide liquidity in the short-term and long-term. The Group manages liquidity rlsk by maintaining adequate
reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continucusly menitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity
profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The foltowing table details the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial fiabilities with agreed repayment periods and non-
derivative financial assets. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which

the Group is required to pay.

Contractual cash flows {Rupees In lakhs}
As at March 31, 2022 Carrying amount Less than 1 year 1-5 years Mo;::::n 3 Total
Financial Assets
Non current
Investments 15.16 - 15.16 15.16
Other financial assets 357.53 - 357.53 357.53
Current
Trade receivahles 26,952.09 26,952.09 - 26,952.09
Cash and cash equivalents 2,336.16 2,336.16 - - 2,336.16
Bank balances other than above 954,05 954.05 994.05
Qther Financial assets 34.31 34.31 - 34.31
Total 30,689.30 30,316.61 372.69 - 30,689.30
Financial Liabilities
Non current
Borrowings 1,017.43 - 1,017.43 - 1,017.42
Lease Liabilities 571.85 - 571.85 - 571.85
Current
Borrowings 12,861.92 12,861.92 . - 12,861.92
Trade payabies 44,246.21 44,246,21 - ; 44,246.21
Lease Liabilities 348.73 348.73 - - 348.73
Other financial liabilities 1,871.47 1,871.47 - - 1,871.47
Total 60,917.61 59,328.33 1,589.28 - 60,917.61
Contractual cash flows {Rupees in lakhs)
As at March 31, 2021 Carrying amount Less than 1 year 1-5 years Mo;::l;an 5 Total
Financial Assets
Non current
Investments 0.05 . 0.05 0.05
Other financial assets 323.13 - 323.13 323,13
Current
Trade receivables 15,127.00 15,127.00 - - 15,127.00
Cash and cash equivalents 46.53 46,53 - . 46,53
Bank balances other than above 936.12 936.12 - - 936.12
Foreign currency forward contracts - - -
Other Financial assets 39.48 319.48 - 39.48
Total 16,472.31 16,149.13 323.18 - 16,472.31
Flnancial Liabilities
Non current
Borrowings 1,258.71 - 1,258.71 - 1,258.71
Lease Liabilities 915.81 . 915.81 . 915.81
Current
Borrowings 14,245.23 14,245,23 - - 14,245.23
Trade payables 23,092.60 23,092.60 - - 23,002.60
Lease Liabilities 362,19 362.19
Other financial liabilities / 1,950.27 1,950.27 . 1
Total ; v 0N 41,824.81 39,650.29 2,174.52 -

The group also has access to'undrawn working 'capi"lal sanctioned facilities from the bank Rs. 253.63 crore.
Collateral: |

The Group has pledged its current assets in order to fulfil certain collateral requirements for the banking facilities extended to the
obligation to release the pledge once these banking facilities are surrendered. {Refer note 2,14 {a) and 16).

W,




ISW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LWNTED
Nates to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 28
Financial instruments — Falr values and risk g t {continued)

iv. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices — will affect the Group’s income or the
value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable
pararneters, while optimising the return. The Group uses derivatives to manage market risks,

v, Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk on account of its trade receivables and payables in foreign currency. The functional currency of the Group is Indian
Rupee. These other payables are primarily denominated in US doilars, GBP and Euro.

The Group uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its currency risk, mast with a maturity of less than one year from the reporting date.

The currency profile of financlal assets and financial liabilities denominated in currency other than the financial currency of the group as at the year end are

as fallows:
{Rupees in lakhs)

March 31, 2022  March 31, 2022 March 31, 2022

UsD EURO GBP
Financial assets
Current
Trade receivables 72.19 - 15.13
72.19 15.13
Financial liabilities
Current
Payables for capital projects 8.66 *66.71 -
Trade payables 197.97 36.09 460,22
206.63 36.09 460.22
{Rupees in lakhs)
March 31,2021 March 31,2021 Warch 31, 2021
UsD EURD GBP
Financial assets
Trade receivables 72.18 - 15.13
72.19 - 15.13
Financial liabilities
Current
Payables for capital projects 8.66 *126.81 :
Trade payables - - 556.75
8.66 - 556.75

The following exchange rates have been applied at the year and.
Year-end spot rate

INR March 31, 2022  March 31, 2021
uso 75.77 73.50
EUR 84.24 86.10
GBP 99.46 100.95

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 1% Increase and decrease in the INR against the relevant foreign currencies net of hedge accounting
impact. 1% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency internally to key management personnel and represents managemant's assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sansitlvity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the year end for a 1% change in foreign currency rates, with all other variables held constant, & positive number balow
indicates an increase in profit or equity where INR strengthens agalnst the relevant forelgn currency. For a 1% weakening of INR against the relevant foreign
currency, there would be a comparable impact on profit or equity, and the balances below would be negative.

Profit / {loss}
Effect in INR [Rupees in lakhs) Strengthening Weakening
March 31, 2022
Financial assets Financial liabilities  Financial assets Financial
liabilities
USD - 1% Movement [2.72) 2.07 0.72 {2.07)
EUR - 1% Movemant . 0.36 - [0.36)
(3BP - 1% Movement (0.15) 460 0.15 {4.60})
- o : Profit / {loss)
Effect in INR (RUPQBJS,II"I- lakhs) —- N\ Strengthening Weakening
March 32,2021/ 0, T Tl
/Y e ! Financial assets Financial habilities Financlal assets Financial
[ % |J| _ A | liabilities
USD - 1% Movement) v/ {0.72} 0.09 0.72 [0.09)
EUR - 1% Movement’ - 1.27 - (1.27)
[0.42) 5.54 .42 {5.54}

GBP - 1% Movement:



15W SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
Notes to the Consclidated Financial Statements

Note 28
Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management {continued)

vl. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financial instrument will fluctuate because of cha nges in the market interest rates.
The Group is exposed ta interest rate risk because the funds are borrowed at floating interest rates. Interest rate risk is measured by using the cash flow
sensitivity for changes in variable interest rates. The borrowings of the Group are principally denominated in rupees, The Group has exposure to interest rate

tisk, arising principally on changes in base lending rates.
Exposure to interest rate risk

The following table provides a break up of the Group’s fixed and floating rates borrowings:

Nominal amount {Rupees in lakhs)
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Borrowings
Variable rate borrowings 13,879.35 15,503,894
Total 13,879.35 15,503.94

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the exposure 10 interest rates for floating rate liabilities assuming the amount of the liability
outstanding at the year end was outstanding for the whole year.

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased / {decreased) profit or loss by the amounts
shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant.
{Rupees in lakhs)
Profit or (loss)
100 bp increase 100 bp decrease

March 31, 2022

Variable-rate instruments {138.79) 138.79
Cash flow sensltivity (net) {138.79) 138.79
March 31, 2021

Variable-rate instruments {155.04) 155.04
Cash flow sensitivity {net) {155.04} 155.04




JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 29
Capital management

The Group policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain
future development of the business. Management monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends to ordinary
shareholders.

The Group monitors capital using Adjusted net debt to equity ratio. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total debt less

cash and hank balances
{Rupees in lakhs)

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Borrowings (includes lease liabilities of Rs.920.58 lakhs){31 March 2021 Rs.1,278 14,799.93 16,781.54
lakhs)

Less - Cash and cash equivalents (2,336.16) (46.53)
Less - Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (994.05) (936.12})
Adjusted net debt 11,469.72 15,799.29
Total equity 32,503.54 30,837.53

Gearing ratio 0.35 0.51




JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
Motas to the Consolidated Financial Statemants

Note 30
The Group operates defined contribution retirement benefit plans for all quallfying employeeas.

{i) Defined Contribiution Plans:

The Group recognised Rs. 205.07 lakhs for 31 March, 2022 { 31 March 2021 - Rs. 211.50 lakhs) provident fund contributions , Labour Welfare Fund contributions and
Employees state insurance corporation contributfons in the Statement of Profit and Loss (refer note no, 26},

{ii} Defined Benefit Plan:

Gratuity

The gratuity liability is partly funded and the same is accounted for based on thirg party actuarial valuation,

Under the gratuity plan, the eligible employees are entitled to post-retirement benefit at the rate of 15 days salary for each year of service until the retirement age of 58 years without any
payment ceiling, The vesting period for gratuity as payabie under The Payment of Gratuity Act 1s § years.

Under the compensated absences plan, leave encashment is payable to all eligible employeas on separation from the group due to retirement, superannuation, resignation or death at the rate
of daily salary as per current accumulation of leave days with a ceiling of 180 days.

The plans in India typically expose the group to actuarial risks such as interest rate risk and salary risk.

Interast rate risk A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the G.Sec. Rate will increase the present value of the liabihty requiring higher
provision,

Salary rigk The present value of the defined benefit plan liabillty is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. A such, an
increase in salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability.

No other post-retirement benefits are provided to the employees,

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benafit obligation were carried out at 31 March, 2021 by M/s. LA Pandit, Consultants & Actuaries.
The present value of the defined benefit obligatian, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method,

The following table sets out the unfunded status of the defined benefit scheme and the amouni recognised in the financial statement.
{Rupees in lakhs)

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Defined benefit obligation 416,56 347,20
Fair value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 39.32 37.36
Net Obligation at the end of the year 377.24 309.84

A. Movement in net defined benefit {asset) liability
The following table shows a reconcillation from the opaning balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit {asset) liability and its components
(Rupees in lakhs)

Gratuity
Defined benefit obligation Fair value of plan assets Net defined benefit
(asset) / liability
March 31, 2022 | March 31,2021 | March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 [ March 31, 2021

QOpening balance 347.20 33059 37.36 33.49 309.84 297,10
Statement of profit and loss :- {refer note 26}
Currant service cost 47,45 53.01 - . 47.45 58.01
Past service cost . - - -
Transferred to trial run expense - - - - - -
Interest cost (income) 24,58 23.62 2.56 2.28 22.02 21.34
419,23 412,22 39.92 35.77 379.31 376.45
Included in OCI :-
Demaographic assumptions 27.90 27.30 - . 27.90 27.30
Financlal assumptions 2241 0.87) . . 22.41 [0.87)
Experience adjustment {6.05}) {23.48) . - (6,05} (23.48)
Return on plan assets excluding interest income - - 0.60} 1.59 0.60 (1.59)
463.49 415.17 39.32 37.36 424.17 377.81
Other :-
Contributions paid by the employer . . - -
Benefits paid {46.93} {67.97) - - (46.93) (67.97)
Closing bafance {refer note 15 and 20) 416.56 347.20 39.32 37.36 377.24 309.84

The current service cost and net interest expense for the year are included in "employee benefit expense" line itern In the statement of profit and loss.

The remeasurerent of the net defined Ifability is included in other comprehensive income.

Represented by

{Rupees in lakhs)
Net defined beneflt asset ~ -
Net defined benefit ltability {refer note 15 and 20) 309.84

309.84




JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B. Plan assets

Since gratuity plan is partly funded, hence Figures in respect of plan assets as at March 31, 2022 are Rz, 39.23 lakhs, {March 31, 2021 : Rs.37.37 Lakhs)

C. Defined benefit obligations
i. Actuarial assumptions

The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date {expressed as weighted averages).

Discount rate
Salary escalation rate
Attrition rate

Assumptions regarding future mortality have been based on published statistics and Indian Assured Lives Moartahty (2012-14) Urban.

iL. Sensitivity analysis

March 31, 2022

March 21, 2021

6.90% - 7.29%
5.00% - 5.00%
2% - 10%

6.85% -6.93%
4.00% - 6.00%
2% - 5%

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to ane of the relevant actuarial assumgtions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined banefit

obligation by the amounts shown below.

Discount rate (1% movement)
Future salary growth (1% movement}
Rate of employee turnaver (1% movement)

March 31, 2022

{Rupees in lakhs)

March 31, 2021

Increase Increase Decrease
{24.25) {28.29) 3290
27.61 33.50 {29.25)

2.68 7.07 8.08

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key

assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period,

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit eredit method at
the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benafit obligation liability recognised in the bafance sheat.
There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years,

Expected future cash flows

The expected future cash flows In respect of gratuity as at March 31, 2022 were as follows

Expected contrlbution

The expected contributions for defined benefit plan for the next financial year will be in line with the contrlbution for the year ended March 31, 2022, i.e. Rs. 123.69 lakhs

{March 31, 2021 : Rs. 123.23 Lakhs)

(iii) Assumptions used in accounting for comp d absences Rs in lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Present value of unfunded obligation {refer note 15 and 20) 220.56 174.76
Expense racognised in the Statement of Prefit and Loss 76.34 34.32
Discount rate {p.a.) 6.90% - 7.29% 6.85% - 5.93%
Salary escalation (p.a.} 5.00% - 6.00% 4.00% - 6.00%
Attrition rate {p.a.) 2% - 10% 2% - 5%
Note 31
Earnings per share
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Profit attributable to the Owners of the group (Rs,] {A) Rs. in lakhs 1,708.13 (1,421.20)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding Nos. 30,58,75,880 30,58,75,880
during the year for basic and diluted earnings per share (8}
Mominal value per share (Rs.) Rs. 10 10
Earnings per share - basic and diluted (A/R) Rs, .43 {0.36)

-




JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED

Notes to the Consclidated Financial Statements
Note 32

Operating lease as leasee

a Carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the period :

b Carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movement during the period :

Refer Note 2{b)

Refer Note 14(b)
{Rupees in lakhs}

Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows

Less than one year
One to five years
More than five years

Total undiscounted lease liabilitles

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
424.68 452.07
619.76 1,080.13
1,044.44 1,532.20

Variable lease payments based on per page printed*

Particulars

Total Variable

Estimated annual impact on rent
payments

of a 1% increase in number of
pages

Leases with lease payments based on number of pages

6.70 0.07

*Variable lease payments are not included in the measuretment of lease liabilities as there is no minimum

commitment and hence, the amount is not determinable.

The group incurred during the year Rs.1,367,94 lakhs(March 31, 2021 Rs.3,275.63 lakhs} towards expenses relating to short-term leases of
machinery - Cranes, fork-lifters, cherrypickers etc which can be cancelled by giving 7 days written notice.




JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 33

Related party disclosure

List of related parties with the Group

The shareholder or venturer or the holding Group of the shareholder or venturer in respect of which the reporting enterprise is a Joint venture

I5W Steel Limited

Severfield Plc

Severfield Mauritius Limited

Parties with whom the Group has entered into transactlons during the year )

Enterprises aver which the shareholder or venturer In respect of which the reporting enterprise is a joint venture exercise control / significant influence

Severfield Reeve International Limited

Severfield {NI] Limited (formerly known as Fisher Engineering Limited)
Severfield Products and processing

Atlas Ward Structures Limited

15w Steel Coated Products Limited

15W Cement Limited

JSW Prajects Limited

Severfield (UK) Limited

Enterprises which exercise significant influence over the subsidiary
Structural Metal Dacks Limited

Firth Steeis Limited

SMD Asia LLP

Key management personnel (KMP)

Dr. Derek Randall

Mr. Benedict Pratlen (Director)

Mr, Rajeeyv Pai

Mr. Pawan Kedia

Mr. Jugal Kishore Tandon

Ms. Anuradha Bajpai

Mr. Vaibhav Bhardwaj (resigned w.e.f.Dt,16,10,2020}

Mr. Nupur Burman {from w.e.f.Dt,18.03,2020 te 16,10.2020)
Mr. Ranjeet Pillat

Mr. Santanu Choudhury

Mrs. Swatika Gupta (Company Secretary) (from 18 January 2021)
Mr. Alan Dunsmore
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JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial $Statements

Note 34

Contingent Habilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)
(Rupees in lakhs)

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Particulars

Contingent liabllities

Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts: _
Disputed claims/levies in respect of VAT/CST/WCT/GST (including show cause notice} 613.48 447.82

Commitments
a. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net 989.77 281.10

of advance)(refer note 21})
b. The Group has imported capital goods under the export promotion capital goods scheme to utilise the
benefit of zero or concessional customs duty rate, These benefits are subject to future exparts. The export 1,557.25 3,273.66

ohligation aggregates to :(refer note 16 and 21)

Note 35
Segment reporting

The Group is mainly in the business of design, fabrication and erection of structural steel, roll forming and installation of structural metal
decking business primarily operating in India. This business is regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker for assessment of

Group's performance and resource allocation.

A. Non - current operating assets
Ali nen-current assets other than financial instruments of the Group are located in India.

B. Information about major customers
Revenue from major customers of the Group was Rs 12,688.42 lakhs as on March 31, 2022 (Previous year March 31 2021: Rs.15,473.42 lakhs.)

C. Revenue from operations
(Rupees in lakhs}

For the year ended March 31, 2022 For the year ended March 31, 2021
Within India Outside India Total Within India Outside India Total
Revenue from operations 1,04,300.69 32,36 1,04,383.05 49,538,76 872.70 49,626.46

Revenue from operations has been allocated on the basis of location of customers.




JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
Notes to the Consclidated Financial Statements
Note 36

Particulars

Dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises {refer note no-18)
The amounts remaining unpaid to micro and small suppiiers as at the end of the year

Principal
Interest

The amount of interest paid by the buyer as per the Micro Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006)

The amounts of the payments made to micro and small suppliers beyond the appointed
day during each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment
{which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under MSMED Act, 2006

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting
year

FY-2016-17

FY-2017-18

Fy-2018-19

FY-2019-20

Fy-2020-21

FY-2021-22

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding

years, unti! such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small
enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under the

MSMED Act, 2006

Note 37
Derivatives

{Rupees in lakhs)

March 31,2022  March 31, 2021
3,536.87 996.79
219.35 198.20
48.90 48.90
17.52 17.52
41.84 41.84
48.62 48.62
41.32 41,32
21.15 -

The Group uses foreign currency forward contracts to mitigate its risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations relating ta certain firm
commitments. The use of foreign currency forward contracts is governed by the Group's strategy approved by the Board of Directors.
The Forward Exchange Contracts entered into by the Group and remaining outstanding are as under:

As at No of contracts Type Currency Value INR Equivalent in
lakhs

March 31,2022 1| Buy Euro 79,500 68.00

March 31,2021 Buy Euro 1,59,000 138.30

The year end foreign currency exposures that have not heen hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise are given below:

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Type Currency Amountin | Rupees in lakhs Amount in Rupees in lakhs
Foreign Foreign currency
currency
Financial assets
; ust 98,209 72.19 68,209 72.19
Trade receivables
GBP 13,042 15.13 39,978 41.95
Total 87.32 114.14
Financial liabilities
Trade payables < capital projects Euro 79,502 66.71
; ust 12,000 8.66
2 | Euro 45,167 36.00
Trade payables ) usD 2,66,300 197.97
A2 \ GBP 4,50,470 460.22
Total \ v 769.65




1SW SERVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED

Motes to the Consclidated Financial Statemants

Note 38
Income tax expenses / [ benefits }

{Rupees in lakhs}

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Profit or loss section:
Current tax 315.15 70.80
Deferred tax (3.89) 40.24
Income tax expense reported in profit or loss 311.26 111.04
Other comprehensive income section:

{1} items not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods 0.12 0.23

Income tax expanse reported in other comprehensive income 0.12 0.23
311.38 111.27

Total tax expenses

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to accounting profit before tax at the statutory income tax rate to
recognised income tax expense for the year indicated are as follows:

{Rupees in lakhs}

Particulars Far the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Profit before tax 2,330.48 {1,231.37)
Enacted tax rate in India 25.168% 25.163%
Expected income tax expenses at statutory tax rate 586.52 (308.91}
Income exemnt from taxation 10.23 -
Deferred tax asset not recognised 273.39 [1397.21)
Mat credit/carried forward business loss / unabsorbed depreciation
utilised in current year
Effects of tax payable at different rate in subsidiary company . (9.23)
Expenses not Deductible in detarmining taxable profit due to permanent {6.52} 6.20)
Other Adjustment {1.83) {8.21)
Tax expenses for the year 311.26 111.04
13.36% -9.02%

Effective tax rate

Deferred tax assets / { liabilities )

Significant components of deferred tax assets / { liabilities } recognized in the consolidated financial statements are as

follows :

{Rupees in lakhs}

As at Recognised /

Recognised in /

Deferved tax balance in relation to March 31, reversed through reclassified from other As at
. March 31, 2022
021 profit and loss  comprehensive income

Proparty, plant & equipments {1,996.21) (317,33} (2,313.54}
Carried forward business loss /
unabsorbed depraciation 1,853.74 296.43 2,150.17
Provisions for employee benefit 124.43 29.08 [0.12) 153.39
Others 14.36 {4.29) . 10.08
Total [3.68) 3.89 {0.12} 0.10

{Rupees in fakhs)

s at 'Recognised / Recognised in / Asat
Defi in relati f
eferred tax balance in relation to April 1, 2020 reversed through  reclassified from other March 31, 2021
profitand loss  comprehensive income
Property, plant & equipments (1,798.33) (197.88) (1,996.21)
Carried forward business loss /
. 1,652.07

unabsorbed depreclation 201.67 1,853.74
Provisions for employee benefit 128.23 {3.57) (0.23) 124.43
Othars 54.81 {40.45) . 14,36
Total 36.78 [40.23) {0.23} [3.68)

Deferred tax assets on carry forward business loss / unabsorbed depreciation have been recognised to the extent of
deferred tax llabilities on taxable temporary differences available. it is expected that any reversals of the deferred tax
liability would be offset against the reversal of the deferred tax asset.

Expiry schedule of below losses on which deferred tax assets have been not recognised:

{Rupees in lakhs)

As at March 31, 2022
Particulars Les;::ran 1 1-5 years More than 5 years Total
Business lossas 155.76 - 155.76
Unabsorbed depr@ciq_t-fuq ] 896.39 £96.39

Expiry schedule of below lasses on which deferred tax assets have been not recognised:

{Rupees in lakhs)

\ As at March 31, 2021
Li t 1
Particulars 'ES:E=::n 1-5 years More than 5 years Total
Business losses g 1,016.50 1,015.50
Unabsorbed depreciation / 4,443.63 4,443.63

W

P




JSW Severfield Structures Limlied
Motes to the Consolidated financial Staternents

Mote 38
Disclosure under Ind A% 115, R from & with C 5

[Rupees in lakhs)
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 _

Detalls of contract asset
Unbilled Revenue:

Balance as on Apnl 1, 2021 33,211.37 35,110.83
i Costincurred plus sttributable profits on contracis-in-progress 2,17,549,51 1,558,342 14
Less: Progress billings made towards contracts-in-progress 1.98,468.96 1,59,603.06
Less: Due from contract custamers impaired during the

raparting pericd - 54854
Balznce as on March 21, 2022 52,291.91 31,211.37
Details of contract liabilities

Balance as on April 3, 2021 3,094.52 3179.06
Add: Advances recered from the customers 78.418.86 45,184.34
Less: Cumulative revenua recognised against ad ived from the cust: 7547125 4292225
Revenud recognised against the advance recelved from the customer a5 at the biginning of the reporting pariods 3,098.62 2,342,535
Balance as on March 21, 2022 2,947.61 3,098.62

As on March 31, 2027, ravenue recognised in the current period from parfarmance obligation eatisfled/partially satisfied in previous year is WL (Previous year NIL}

[Rupess in lakhs)
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Particulars

Sale of products and servicas [refer note 22§ 1,00.660.51 48 510.74
Other pperating revenue 372254 1,115.72
Total from ¢ with et s 1,04,383.05 49.626.46

[Rupess in lakhs}
March 31, 2022 March 3], 2021

Particulars

Within india 1,04,300.69 49 538 V&
Owtside India B2.36 E7.70
Tetal revanue from contracts with custemers. 1,04.383.05 48,625.46

[Rupees in lakhs)
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Timing of revenue recognition

At a paint In bime 13,158,272 4,852.91
Over a parind af time 91,224.83 44,773 55
Total ravanue from contracls with customers 1,04,383.05 49626 45
(R in lakhs)

Product wise March 31, 2022 Wrarch 31, 2021
Deslgn, Fabricated and Erection of Structural Steal Structures 91,182.70 44 578.00
Sale of products (including Traded Goods) 9,461.75 3,781.62
lob work charges 16.05 15111
Sale of serap matedial 3.478.80 £73.11
Fralght Charges 176.13 141,84
Duty drawback & benefits on exports 41.53 133
Income fram dasign services 26.08 44.44
1,04,383.05 48,626.46

Mote: The major product sold by the group is Design, fabrication and arection of structyral steel structuras and metal deckings,

Reconcilistion of the from with with the discloced in the seg infi L

[Rupees in lakhs)
Ravenue March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Extarnal Customer 1,04,383.05 49,626 46
Intar-zagment =
inter-ssgment adjustment and eliminahon . .
Totat 1,04,383.05 45,626.46
There i ne adjustment betwaen contract price and recognisad in of profit and less account,
Information on performance obligations in contracts with Customers:
Contract with customers:
Tha following table nciudes revenus to be recognisad in fulure related to performance . bligations that are isfied t ds the contracts with the customers as at March
31, 2022
Particulars 2023 2024 2025 Beyond 2025 Tatal
Contract Revanus 1,25,046 40,985 - - 1,66,031
Total e ('~ « NN 1,25,046 40,985 - - 1,66,031

Tha following table includes revenue to be recognised in future refated to performance chligations that are unsatisfied towards the contrects with the customers as at March

31, 2021 :
|

Particulars i 2022 2023 2024 y 7024 Total
Contract Revenue P 55,240 48, EE3 - 1,035,905
Total N 55,240 48,663 . - 1,03,903




JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 40
Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the Balance Sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities

Effective April 1, 2017, the Group adopted the amendment to Ind AS 7, which require the entities to provide disclosures that enable
users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash
flows and non-cash changes, suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the Balance $heet for
liabilities arising from financing activities, to meet the disclosure requirement.

(Rupees in lakhs)

ncat Non-cash changes As at
Particulars Cashflows | Amortised cost/ | March 31,
March 31, 2021 i
Fair value changes 2022
Long-term borrowings 1,818.14 13.25 - 1,831.35
Short-term borrowings 13,684.09 {1,636.13) - 12,047.96
Lease liabilities 1,278.00 (446.25) 88.83 920.58
Total liabilities from financin
2 ANl 16780.23 | (2,069.13) 88.83 |  14,799.93
activities
(Rupees in lakhs)
neat Non-cash changes As at
Particul 5h f) March 31,
i March 31, 2020 Cash flows Amortised cost / 32021
Fair value changes
Long-term borrowings 683.87 1,134.27 1,318.14
Short-term borrowings 11,832.45 1,851.64 - 13,684.09
Lease liabilities 1,465.66 (448.57) 260.91 1,278.00
Total liabitities from financing 13,981.98 2,537.34 260.91 16,780.23
Note 41

Recoverability of Inventory relating to earlier contract.
The Group had, in earlier period, entered into a contract for construction and supply of pre-fabricated structural steel with an EPC

contractor (“the customer”) for the customer's a project ("the Project"). In the earlier year, the National Company Law Tribunal
{“NCLT"} had ordered liquidation of the customer under Insalvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. Pursuant to above, the owner of the
Project has floated a fresh tender for completion of the Project on as-is-where is basis . As at 31st March 2021 the Company was in
possession and control of semi constructed pre-fabricated structural steel relating to the Project. The Company had submitted bid and
was in discussions with the EPC contractors of the Project wherein the aforesaid inventory would he used. Management based on an
independent fair valuation had determined that the cost of such inventory is expected to be lower than its realizable value and
accordingly, the inventory was considered fully recoverable.

During the year 31st march 22,the aforesaid inventory is sold to third party.The company has incurred loss on this sale which has been
appropriatly charged in the consolidated statement of profit and loss in the current year.

\)



JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED
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Note 42
COVID-19 Update

The Group has assessed the impact of COVID-19, on the recoverability of the receivables and other current and non-current
assets considering information available. The Company, based on the current estimates, believes that the carrying value of these
assets are recoverable. Considering the fact that the global situation is evolving continuously, the economic impact of pandemic
could be different from that estimated till date by the management, The management is continuously monitoring the material

changes.

Note 43
The Group was required to spend Rs.59.63 lakh {31 March 2021 Rs.68.71 lakhs} and has spent Rs.59.75 lakh {31st March 2021

Rs.70.65 lakhs) towards Corporate Social Responsibility as prescribed under 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. The details are as
follows.

Particulars Year ended Year ended

1. Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 59.63 68.71
(as prescribed under Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013)
2. Amount of expenditure incurred

(i} Construction/acquisition of any asset -
(ii) For the purpose cther than (i} above 59.75 70.65
3. Shortfall at the end of the period/year =
4. Total of previous years shortfall
5. Reason for shortfall

Other than Qther than
8. Nature of CSR activities construction/acquisition of | construction/acquisition
assets of assets

7. Details of Related party transactions -
8. Liability incurred by entering into contractual obligatic -

Note 44
The group has receivables of INR 72 lakhs from customer related to export of goods and services which are outstanding for more

than prescribed period under master circulars issued by Reserve Bank of India with respect to timelines for collection of export
proceeds. Management has approached its AD bank for seeking an approval for extension of the timelines for collection of such
amount, however no confirmation on extension has been received from Reserve Bank of India yet. This amount has been fully

provided in the books of account.




J5W SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED

Motes to the Standalone Financial Statements
{Rupees in lakhs)

Note 45
No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any

cther person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities {“Intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall
lend or invest in party identified by or on behaif of the Company {Ultimata Beneficiaries). The Company has not received any fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with
the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Uitirate Beneficiaries.”

Note 46
The company has no transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of Companles Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 except followling :

(Rupees in lakhs)

Name of struck off Company Nature of transactions with Balance Relationship

DARCL LOGISTICS LTD Trade payable 2677 Not related party




JSW SEVERFIELD STRUCTURES LIMITED

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 47

Disclosure of additional information as required by Division I of Schedule (1) to the Companies Act, 2013

As at and for the year ended 31st March,2022

(Rupees in lakhs)

Net Asset, i.e. total assets . Share in other Share in total camprehensive
. o Share in profit or loss . )
minus total liabilities Camprehensive income income
Mame of the entity in the Group As % of As % of
As % of As % of consolidated consofidated
consolidated | Amount | consolidated | Amount other Amount toral Amount
net assets profit or loss Comprehensive comprehensive
income income
Parent
JSW Severfield Structures Limited 93.46%| 31,339.26 53.80%| 1,086.33 100.80% {42.46) 52.800%| 1,043.87
Subsidiary
J5W Structural Metal Decking Limited 6.13% 2,055.38 30.86% 623.16 -0.54% 0.23 31.53% 623.39
Nen Controlling Interast 3.07%| 1,028.46 15.41% 311.09 -0.27% 0.11 15.74% 311.20
Adjustment arising out of consclidation -2.66% (891.10) -0.07% [1.38) 0.00% - -0.07% {1.38)
Total 100.00%| 33,532.00 100.00%| 2,019.22 100.00% (42.12) 100.00%| 1,977.10

As at and for the year ended 31st March,2021

(Rupees in kakhs)

Net Asset, i.e. total assets

Share in profit or loss

Share In other

Share in total comprehensive

As % of As % of
Name of the entity in the Group As % of As % of consolidated consolidated
consolidated | Amount | consolidated | Amount other Amount total Amount
net assets profit or loss Comprehensive comprehensive
income income
Parent
JSW Severfield Structures Limited 96.02%| 30,298.20 117.57%| (1,578.23) 97.50% {2.15} 117.59%| [1,580.28)
Subsidiary
JSW Structural Metal Decking Limlted 4.54% 1,431.74 -11.79% 158.33 17.90% 36.98 -14.53% 195.31
Non Controlling Interest 2.27% 717.43 -5.87% 7879 -15.40% {36.41} -3.15% 4233
Adjustment arising out of consolidation -2.83% {892.67) 0.10% 1,30} 0.00% 0.10% (1.30)
Total 100.00%| 31,554.85 100.00%| {1,342.41) 100.00% {1.58} 100.00%| [1,343.99)

Note 48

Appropriate adjustments have been made to the prior period comparatives, wherever required, to bring them in line with current period classification and
graupings in accordance with amended Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013, which has been effective from 1 April 2021,
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